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VISION FE=

The Group aspires to be a leading Chinese property
developer with a renowned brand backed by
cultural substance.
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MISSION f# s

The Group is driven by a corporate spirit and fine
tradition that attaches importance to dedication,
honesty and integrity. Its development strategy
advocates professionalism, market-orientation

and internationalism. It also strives to enhance

the architectural quality and commercial value of
the properties by instilling cultural substance into
its property projects. Ultimately, it aims to build

a pleasant living environment for its clients and
create satisfactory returns to its shareholders.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive directors

XUE Ming (Chairman)

HAN Qingtao (Managing Director)
WANG Xu

YE Li Wen

Non-executive director
IP Chun Chung, Robert

Independent non-executive directors
CHQY Shu Kwan

LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia

WONG Ka Lun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia (Chairlady)
IP Chun Chung, Robert

CHQY Shu Kwan

WONG Ka Lun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

WONG Ka Lun (Chairman)

CHQY Shu Kwan

LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia

XUE Ming (Resigned on 18th December, 2015)
WANG Xu (Resigned on 18th December, 2015)
HAN Qingtao (Appointed on 18th December, 2015)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
(SET UP ON 18TH DECEMBER, 2015)

CHQY Shu Kwan (Chairman)
LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia
WONG Ka Lun

IP Chun Chung, Robert
HAN Qingtao

YE Li Wen

COMPANY SECRETARY AND
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

POON Man Man

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED Annual Report 2015

Exg

BITES
ER(EE)

BB (EFAIE)
)2

ERHE

FUITES
BEIRS

BYFHITES
£3589

e

rMEES

"2XRMW(EE)

2583
SHM_T—AFT-A+/\HEHE)
FRR=F-—AF+=A+\BEEI)
BweE (R_T—RFT-_A+/\HEZME)

ERHEEEES
(R=B—REFE+=ZB+N\BKI)

£ (EE)
e
EIRE
BEE

g 4

ARE
BEAR

e

5%



LEGAL ADVISER

Ashurst Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Shu Lun Pan Union (HK) CPA Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China CITIC Bank International Limited
Malayan Banking Berhad

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Bank of China Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
China Everbright Bank Co Ltd

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Dah Sing Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT

DLK Advisory Limited

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Room 2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower 1
18 Harcourt Road
Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.polyhongkong.com
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QHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHRE

CORPORATE BACKGROUND —_—
The Group is one of the foremost property = =
developers in China and is the real estate
offshore listed flagship of China Poly Group (a
state-owned enterprise). Its major businesses
include property development, investment
and management. The Group develops
residential and commercial properties in the
cities along Yangtze River Delta and Pearl
River Delta as well as the second-tier cities
and provincial capitals. Projects of the Group
are located in 22 cities including Shanghai,
Hong Kong, Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Wuhan,
Suzhou, Guiyang and Nanning, among
others. Meanwhile, the Group maintains a
high-quality investment portfolio in various
cities comprising of landmark properties
such as Shanghai Poly Plaza, Shanghai Stock
Exchange Building and Beijing Poly Plaza.

TURNOVER
EXE

HK$24.

BILLION
249F8 T

Xue Ming &8
Chairman ¥ &
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE#H &

BUSINESS REVIEW

China’s economy has entered the new norm in
2015. Against the backdrop of economic downturn,
China maintained its national policy of “Encourage
consumption, reduce inventory” on the real estate
market. The implementation of these favourable policies
benefitted both the demand and supply so as to improve
market sentiment. On the demand side, the government
frequently provided short-term stimuli, such as the
decrease in interest rate and down payment as well as
tax reduction. In terms of the supply side, policies such
as adjusting the scale and structure of land supply and
strengthening monetary compensation for relocation has
rolled out in the Year, stimulating the market to optimise
its resources allocation. Such policies allow the real estate
market to gradually establish systems and rules for healthy
development in the long run and tackle the fundamental
problem of oversupply in the industry. Fostered by the
strong support of these policies, the real estate market
regained tractions in sales. According to the National
Bureau of Statistics, the area sold of commodity housing
reached 1.28 billion square metres in 2015, representing
a year-on-year increase of 6.5 percent. Sales value also
reached a historical record high at RMB8,728.1 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 14.4 percent.

Market polarisation between different tiers of cities
continued to intensify. The average price and sales
volume of the first-tier and major second-tier cities were
well-performed, while cities with poorer economy were
underperformed. After the intensive competitions in the
past few years, the real estate industry has been further
consolidated with competition getting fiercer.
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As the real estate industry and market sentiment
continued to recover in 2015, the Group responded
swiftly by adjusting sales strategies, and therefore,
successfully captured market opportunities, increased sell-
through rate and achieved record high results. In 2015,
the Group launched 56 new and continual projects, with
a total property contracted sales reached RMB30.0 billion,
representing an increase of approximately 25%. This
is the first time that the property contracted sales have
reached RMB30.0 billion. Contracted area sold amounted
to 2.56 million square metres, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 9%, while the average
selling price amounted to approximately RMB11,700
per square metre, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 14%. During the Year, the Group
actively responded to market changes, targeted markets
with rigid demand and focused on launching products
for first-time homebuyers and first-time upgraders.
Residential projects accounted for 89% of contracted
sales for the Year, representing a continual year-on-year
increase of 4 percentage points, among which, small-
to-medium-sized residential units accounted for 82%
of all residential products, year-on-year decreased by 8
percentage points. With destocking as the top priority in
the agenda, the Group implemented precise marketing
strategies to enhance sell-through rate and the outcome
was promising. The sell-through rate recorded a year-on-
year increase of 6 percentage points during the Year.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT £E&# %
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE#H &

In 2015, the Group recorded loss attributable to
shareholders, mainly due to the time lag between sales
and revenue recognition. During the Year, most of the
projects being recognised were those sold in or prior
2014. However, as the economy was sluggish when
these projects were launched and price adjustment was
introduced to boost sales. At the same time, the sales
mix was adjusted according to marketing strategy. As
a result, the overall revenue decreased in the Year and
the gross profit margin was also adversely affected.
Despite the noticeable recovery of the overall real estate
industry during the Year, polarisation of the property
market intensified. Transaction volume in some second-
tier cities and most third-tier and fourth-tier cities has not
been improved remarkably. Based on a prudent financial
strategy, the Group made provision of impairment loss
for some projects that are high in risks. Owing to the
devaluation of Renminbi during the Year, the Group and
its subsidiaries in China have suffered a certain degree of
loss over the foreign exchange of loans and transactions
in RMB.

In 2015, the overall investment in the real estate industry
and land market has slowed down, while segregation
of cities also intensified. Lands of high premium were
frequently recorded in first-tier cities and some of the
second-tier cities whereas land purchases in the third
and fourth-tier cities were relatively rare. The Group
continued to adopt a prudent investment strategy with a
reasonable balance between the amount of investment,
pace of expansion and strict control on investment
scale. Only three pieces of land were acquired with an
aggregated GFA of approximately 0.4 million square
metres in Hong Kong, Wuhan and Yantai. The Group also
steadily put forward its development strategy in Hong
Kong in accordance with the market condition. The Hong
Kong Kai Tak Project has commenced construction in
February 2015, which is currently in progress as planned.
Successfully acquired the project in Tuen Mun, Hong
Kong, has further enhanced the Group’s competitiveness
and consolidated its position in expanding its business in
Hong Kong.
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During the Year, the Group has maintained a
stable financial position and healthy cash flow by
reasonably controlling and arranging investment as
well as strengthening investment process and dynamic
management. At the end of the Year, cash balance of
the Group remained unchanged as compared to that of
last year, amounted to approximately HK$18.3 billion.
The cash inflow from operating activities reached HK$5.4
billion, representing a strengthening capital position.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Looking ahead in 2016, it is expected that a proactive
financial policy and stable currency policy will lead to
a steady economic development in China. The macro-
economy has entered into a new norm of medium-to-
high growth. The real estate sector will continue to play a
vital role in driving the stable growth of China’s economy.
With third and fourth-tier cities suffering from high
inventory problems, “decreasing inventory” will remain as
an important task for the real estate industry in 2016. To
tackle such problem, the Central Government highlights
“Destocking and encouraging sustainable development
of the property market” in supply-side reform and the
adoption of various ways for effective destocking will be
a main focus in the property market.

The pressure of inventory clearance will continue to
differentiate according to different tiers of cities. The
demand among the core first-and-second-tier cities will
remain strong with an occasional possibility of excess
demand. As for the majority of second-and-third-tier
cities, destocking will continue to be the main emphasis.
Competition among industry players will continue to
intensify due to market changes, further increasing
market consolidation. Against the backdrop of new norm,
accelerating the transformation and upgrade of business
model will become the common goal of the real estate
industry.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE#H &

The Group strives to become one of the prominent
and leading estate developers in China. Being the only
overseas-listed flagship of the Poly Group with real estate
as its core business, the Group is confident on its business
prospects and believes that it will continue to receive
continuous attention and full support from its mother
company. Accelerating destocking, strengthening risk
management, optimising business structure, increasing
operational capacity as well as pursuing innovation and
reform will be the focus of the Group in 2016. Leverage
on these strategies, the Group will further enhance
its competitiveness to achieve sustainable and healthy
development in the long run.

Under the operation environment with intensifying
segregation in the real estate market, the Group will
persist with its proactive, flexible and innovative sales
strategies to properly arrange property development and
launching pace, and ensure sufficient provision of saleable
inventory in order to capture the market opportunities. At
the same time, the Group will adopt “Internet Thinking”
and innovative marketing campaigns to widen sales
channels and customer bases. These strategies will help
the Group grasp opportunities arising from the supply-
side reform and favourable policies so as to boost sales
and increase sell-through rate.

Speeding up cash collection, improving cash flow and
enhancing risk resistance capability will be another
major target of the Group. Following the prudent and
reasonable investment principle and base on the financial
position, the Group will maintain a balanced control on
investment scale and development pace. In addition, the
Group will continue to optimise its financing structure
and channels. Through actively exploring various financing
channels, the Group aims to capture the favourable
timing for financing activities and improve debt structure.
In respect of the land acquisition strategy, the Group
will adhere to the core principle by controlling the total
acquisition amount and focusing on first-tier and certain
second-tier cities which have good market prospects and
replenish resources for quality projects in a reasonable
manner.

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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Strengthening risk management will be the main
focus of internal control. Financially, the Group will
improve budget management and emphasise on
balancing investment, financing and sales. In respect of
organisational structure, the Group will emphasise the
supervising role of the headquarter, enhance regional
management so as to increase operational efficiency
through synergy. In terms of project management, the
Group will strive to enhance the standardised system
by controlling the key aspects of each project and
strengthening cost control during the whole development
process. By improving the cost management of the
whole process, the Group can enhance the centralised
procurement system and reduce development and
construction cost.

In response to the changes in the market and industry,
the Group will drive development through innovation.
Researches on new business models, new technologies
and actively exploring opportunities from urban renewal,
cultural real estate, educational real estate and industrial
real estate are the areas the Group will be targeting on.
Through the proactive attempt and the implementation of
asset-light operational models such as investing in projects
with minority interests and outsourcing construction, the
Group will further optimise its asset allocation. Besides,
the Group will continue to enhance product design and
construction technology, and further expand other value-
added services. With “Internet+marketing” as a new
marketing strategy, the Group will constantly stimulate
potentials for its business development.

The Group will firmly take an active role in business
operation and development, with a persistent drive for
innovation and organic growth, increase in quality and
efficiency, as well as ongoing enhancement of its core
strengths. With such strategy, the Group will be able to
maintain a long-term and stable development and achieve
greater returns for shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBNWEDTN

OVERALL OPERATING CONDITIONS BREER

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 (“the year”), %Zifg—ﬂi‘f—:ﬂ =t+—HBLEE2FAF
the Group recorded a turnover of HK$24,933,367,000 ]) » AN [E K& ¥ %8 524,933,367,000/8 7T
(2014: HK$28,508,737,000), representing a decrease (—Z—PO4F : 28,508,737,000/8T) » WE4F
of 12.5% as compared to last year. Loss attributable to ~ TB§12.5% - f% 5B fE(LETIE 52,817,149,000%
shareholders amounted to HK$2,817,149,000 (profit JE(=ZF—VPOFERRER %A © 929,448,000/
attributable to shareholders in 2014: HK$929,448,000). JT) - &lREAEIE76.94811( =T —NFEI
Basic loss per share was HK76.94 cents (basic earnings  EARZF| : 2549781l - S #E%E1E76.94
per share in 2014: HK25.49 cents), while diluted loss BI(ZZ—MEESRESEEF : 254275
per share was HK76.94 cents (diluted earnings per share ) - AEE SEGEHTRE RIS o

in 2014: HK25.42 cents). The Board of Directors of the

Group did not recommend a final dividend for the year.

As at 31st December, 2015, total equity attributable A&EBER-_Z—HAF+_-_A=+—HZRHEE
to shareholders of the Group amounted to 2 #2%8/425,560,015,000/8 T( - —ME+—
HK$25,560,015,000 (as at 31st December, 2014: HB=+—H :29,762,327,000/67T) - SREME
HK$29,762,327,000) and net asset value per share was BEZFEA698ETL(—E—NFE+-_F=+—
HK$6.98 (31st December, 2014: HK$8.14). H:8.14%7T) °
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT Pt 2 B 3%

During the year, the gross floor area of the newly FRAZBEEE(AEEEREGECERBEA
commenced construction projects completed by Poly &) SR HTH TEEmMELI2608F K AK
Property Group (the Group together with its joint $5&EMEMEL2568F 5K - HiFEHEEE 51
ventures and associated companies) was approximately  {& - B XFHBREESHE : B TEEMBEL2558
2,600,000 square metres. The contracted area sold FHK -BE-FT—RAF+-_A=+—H 8%
was approximately 2,560,000 square metres. Of these SEELEIEAENTRKEMNEE @ LEET
projects, 51 were continual launches and 5 were debut &5 &%93,6808 F /5K -

launches. The gross floor area of construction completed

was approximately 2,550,000 square metres. As at 31st

December, 2015, Poly Property Group had 69 projects

which were at different stages. These projects covered a

total gross floor area of approximately 36,800,000 square

metres.

[

1
1
1

—m

)
(I
11|



22
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PROPERTY SALES

In 2015, in face of the high inventory problem, “Encourage
sales, reduce inventory” remains the underlying tone of the
national policy for the property market. During the year,
property market received its growth momentum from the
implementation of various policies that stimulated home
purchases such as decrease in down payment of first and
second homes, reduction in taxation on second-hand
house transactions and nationwide relaxation of measures
that restrain overseas purchases. In addition, People’s
Bank of China decreasing the interest rate and deposit
reserve ratio five times in the year injected liquidity in the
property market and encouraged commercial banks to
make mortgage loans more accessible. With a number
of favourable policies and relaxed requirements for loan
applications, property sales throughout the year reached
another new height, with the total transaction volume of
commodity properties recorded a year-on-year increase of
25%, surpassing the peak of 13% in 2013.

The thriving property market and the slowdown of
investment in property development gave rise to the
improvement in the overall inventory situation of China
in 2015. According to the National Bureau of Statistics,
at the end of 2015, the completed areas of commodity
housing for sale was 718 million square metres. It was
an obvious slowdown of the incrementing pace despite
it increased by 94.84 million square metres as compared
with 622 million square metres of the end of 2014.

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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During the year under review, the property market was
polarized where first-tier cities and certain second-tier
cities continued to recover, evidenced by the increase in
both the price and volume sold as well as the substantial
decrease in inventory. Certain third-tier and fourth-tier
cities, on the other hand, lagged behind in sales growth
and were still under high inventory pressure. Given the
differentiation of the market, real estate enterprises were
proactive in transforming themselves. On the one hand,
they focused on selling properties in first-tier and second-
tier cities. On the other, they expanded their business
coverage to the whole value chain including property
management, community services and real estate financial
services. They also offer additional supporting services in
the areas of culture, education, health, logistics and so
forth to improve its competitiveness and diversify sources
of income.

In 2015, the Group adopted an active approach in
responding to the fluctuation in property market.
Oriented by the strategy of “Decrease inventory, control
investment, reduce cost, increase efficiency and focus
on innovation and development” the Group closely
monitored policy and market changes to increase sales
in the favourable markets such as first-tier cities and
second-tier provincial capitals. Led by the branding
theme of “Sharing with You"”, the Group closely adhered
to its “brand-oriented and quality-focused” business
philosophy. Such brand philosophy allowed the Group
to successfully positioned new projects, ensured sales
performance and provided category-specific guidance for
the upcoming projects to accomplish sales breakthrough.
During the year, Poly Property Group achieved contracted
sales of approximately RMB30 billion and contracted area
sold of approximately 2.56 million square metres.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B2 B &t imEd 2 47
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CONTRACTED SALES
IN 2015 BY REGION*
2015F HAHETHEBRE D fi*

(RMB million)
AREEBHET

Yangtze River
Delta Region

R=AtR

Other Regions
Hithi [z

Southwestern
Region
PR
Pearl River
Delta Region
K=AtE

* Note: Car park sales were not included

NEW LAND BANK

In 2015, the Group acquired 3 pieces of land in 3 cities,
namely Wuhan, Weihai and Hong Kong. The total area
of these plots amounted to approximately 112,000
square metres with a total planned gross floor area of
approximately 395,000 square metres.
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CONTRACTED AREA SOLD
IN 2015 BY REGION
2015 BNHEEBRI D

("000 square metres)
FEHK

Yangtze River

Other Regions Delta Region
HAtbihm R=Ai=

Southwestern
Region Pearl River
Cisleap:ed Delta Region
K=AE

* i AEEMHEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B2 g

Land Plots Acquired in 2015 2015F Hi% T b YIR
Interests
attributable
to the Group
Planned (as of 31st Current project
gross floor December, status (as of
Land plot/Project Usage Site area area 2015) 21st March, 2016)
BEEEER HAEE
(BZ20155 (BZ2016%F
iR,/ EA Rz HHER AREREER 12A318) 3A21R)
('000 square ('000 square
metres) metres)
(FFEAX) (FERK)
Wuhan Poly City, Phase Il Residential 59 243 68% Under planning
EUERFIIER F=E EE LY
Weihai Poly Maple Valley Residential 45 131 70% Under construction
FBRFLEAR F=E 2RI
Hong Kong Tuen Mun Project Residential 8 21 100% Under planning
BALPIER = £3%
Total 55T : 112 395

SUMMARY OF NEWLY ACQUIRED “E-hFHEAUERET

PROJECTS IN 2015

1. Wuhan Poly City, Phase Il 1.
The project is located between Youyi Avenue and
Qingsi Avenue (Tuanjie Avenue) in Wuhan, on a
block surrounded by 4 subway lines and sitting
adjacent to the inner ring route and the second ring s RERM - ROEAEL - TEA
route. Superior traffic convenience is afforded as BE @ toFEAM - BHEBGEE T
Wuhan Happy Valley, Wuhan Tiandi, Wuhan Train fE AR RESERHEMMER 8

EER T HR

RIABE AR A A B B 7 T 5 (B 45
E)zHE Mgt EGEnaERE - EA
BIS - TIREHHE 100 EEETERE

Station and Jiangtan Park are all accessible with
a 10-minute drive. The project integrates major
urban functions, such as residential living, work,
commerce and entertainment, and offers a wide
range of property types including, residence, SOHO,
commercial cluster, leisure shopping walk, innovative
hotel, office, community service and nursery. The
development of this project will provide Wuchang
and Xudong District with a dynamic “city” with a
strong cultural aura and excellent conditions for
residential living.

EREREET  SOHO ~ EFREE - (KEHE
¥E - AIERBE WA HERE - 4
SEES HEXHEEARS KRR
ER—EEAENUBEAXREMES
REM[I] -

—T-RAEH RAUBKEEARAT
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2. Weihai Poly Maple Valley

The project is located at the north of Xifang
Road and east to the Huanshan Road, in Huancui
District, Weihai, Shandong. Being surrounded by
mountains and facing the sea, the project is close
to the national 4A scenic zone with beautiful
natural environment. Besides, the project was in
close proximity to Qingdao Road and Tongyi Road
which are the main highways of the city. There are
comprehensive ancillary facilities for commercial,
educational and medical purposes, along with
cultural and sports facilities in the neighbourhood,
such as Poly Cultural Center, Tao Jia Kuang Cultural
Center and Tao Jia Kuang Community Fitness Plaza.
The Group intends to develop this project into
a community with cultural harmony that mainly
consists of high-rise residential buildings.

3. Hong Kong Tuen Mun Project

The project is located next to the Cafeteria New
Beach, Hong Kong, reaching Castle Peak Road in the
northeast and Cafeteria Beach in the southwest. It
is a convenient spot that one can reach the urban
area of Hong Kong in its south (through West Rail or
Route 3 and etc.), and Qianhai in its north in about
20 minutes (through Hong Kong-Shenzhen Western
Corridor). In proximity to Gold Coast, a tourist spot
in Hong Kong, the project is surrounded by different
kinds of comprehensive ancillary facilities in the
neighbourhood, including Harrow International
School Hong Kong, Tuen Mun Hospital and Tuen
Mun Public Riding School. The project is proposed
to be a low-density sea view residences and
apartments.

PROJECTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION AND
PROJECTS UNDER PLANNING

As at 31st December, 2015, the Group had a total of
69 commodity properties and integrated real estate
development projects in 22 cities. The properties and
projects located in Yangtze River Delta and Pearl River
Delta regions constituted approximately 31% of the
total gross floor area; those located in the cities in the
southwestern region and other regions constituted
approximately 47% and 22% respectively. Among them,
40 projects are under construction with a total gross
floor area of approximately 8,250,000 square metres
(attributable area approximately amounted to 6,040,000
square metres), and the total gross floor area of those
projects under planning is approximately 12,810,000
square metres (attributable area approximately amounted
to 7,860,000 square metres).

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED Annual Report 2015

2. BBRFALER
IR IIRERETIRR @A EAL - T

FRIRILES - =WERIL - —EEE - AR

FAARR=EBR  BARLEE - BB
BB mIBE-—FERMR K X
L@ﬂ - HEREEE  HELEREE

= BAERIRAeH D~ R XL
EP/D CBRETITHRE S ESE L RER

SEEITERR Z%D/{mJEE%Z%IE’J
AXHFEER -

3. BBEMER
{iﬁ/\?}%%%ﬂuﬁ}é;ﬂ@?&% RIEES
Eﬁ{ ﬁﬁ@ﬁnn%uuﬂg/%ﬂx% ° Iﬁi\ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Ao AE(EEEEI = RHEE)ER
B rﬁJIHZ(Z(«/%/KEABLL):I:H'J/51§
FH2006E - HE AESELETS - Bt

MEBIRESHESER  URRERE
BRER - W8k - ARB/MERSE -

HE R AR EREE -

EXEYSEETE NS

HE-_Z—A4+-_A=+—8 EBEX4£EH%
ummmAﬁﬁwMﬁmE%&% A BEMER

BIEE - HRomaER=ANA=AEEHNIER
HEEHMEGBRLERFTNR3%  HHE

TR @R T R A T A I8 B R mAE (R e
LhE DRI ABAT% N 22% » B A40{EEEE
B EERAELEEELN25E T K (EIhREZRE
HEXE0ABFHK) FENBIEEEELD
12818 F K (EIEERAEEL 7868 F H5K)



List of Projects under Construction and under
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BE-_Z-AFt+-A=+T—HZHEER

Planning as at 31st December, 2015 RiFZEB 5
Gross floor  Gross floor Interest
area under areaunder attributable
Project construction planning to the Group
HEEE $ER SERELR
HE BEEEE LREER B
('000 square  ('000 square
metres) metres)
(FFAK)  (FFAK)
Yangtze River Delta Region R-ANE
1. Shanghai Poly Deluxe Mansion 1 LERFIXEFE 184 - 100%
2. Shanghai Poly Star Island 2 HERFIEES 237 - 100%
3. Shanghai Poly Phili Mansion 3. HERNEBZL 272 - 25%
4. Shanghai Poly Phili House 4, FERMEBLE 249 - 50%
5. Shanghai Shan Jin Poly Plaza 5 FELSRANES 121 - 50%
6. Shanghai Poly Phili Regency 6 HERFIEBTE 124 - 50%
7. Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa 7 FNENBERR 265 28 100%
8. Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion 8 BN RAE B 280 337 100%
9, Ningbo Poly City 9 ERRFIA 88 299 100%
10. Ningbo Poly Wonderland 10 ERRFIENTIE 262 63 100%
11. Ningbo Poly Jordan International 1 BRRHBERGTE 11 283 100%
12, Deging Poly Origin 12 B RN R 181 68 100%
Sub Total @ E 2,274 1,078
Pearl River Delta Region G-ABE
13. Guangzhou Poly Gratified West Bay ~ 13. BMGRF AL E 73 491 55%
14. Guangzhou Poly Up House 14. BMERFIEE 155 - 100%
15. Guangzhou Nansha Poly City 15. B m D R 428 392 49%
16. Guangzhou Poly Fei Cui Shan 16. BMRFIER L 93 - 100%
17. Foshan Poly Central Park 17. BILRFIRRDE 448 213 100%
18.  Shenzhen Poly Joy-Zone 18, RIGFHEIER 138 = 70%
19.  Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur 19 FMRFLKS 98 = 80%
20. Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town 20. BRI 206 497 70%
Sub Total Nt 1,639 1,593

—T-RAEH RAUBKEEARAT
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Gross floor  Gross floor Interest
areaunder areaunder attributable
Project construction planning to the Group
HRER #EER KEERS
A HEEEE AEEEE B
('000 square  ('000 square
metres) metres)

(F¥mK)  (FFHK)

Southwestern Region BEEtE

21. Guiyang Poly Spring Street 21. EBRFNEANE 42 180 66.5%
22. Guiyang Poly Park 2010 22. EBRFAE2010 255 1,049 100%
23. Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake 23. EBRFEM 408 164 50%
24.  Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay 24, EGRFIEE 307 1,041 51%
25. Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future 25. E%ﬁﬂiﬁﬂi&m 226 3,345 35%
26. Nanning Poly Crescendo 26. MERAILEHS 128 243 100%
27. Nanning Poly Dream River 27. EERNENE 210 - 30%
28. Nanning Poly Hearty 28. EERFILE 113 - 100%
29. Nanning Poly Town 29. AERFEEIN 390 1,214 41.5%
30. Liuzhou Poly Merization World 30. WNRFI AT ED 424 - 100%
31. Guilin Poly Culture and Arts Center  31. FEMRF UL BT L - 88 50%
Sub Total &/ et 2,503 7,324

Other Regions HitsBEm

32, Wuhan Poly City 2. RERFE 500 762 68%
33. Wuhan Yangyuan Project 33. REGEEE - 127 51%
34, Wuhan Poly Park 34, RERFIZER - 110 55%
35.  Wuhan Poly Up Town 35, BRERFLH 289 504 50%
36. Harbin Poly The Water's Fragrant Dike  36. BRBERFIKBRE - 250 58%
37. Harbin Poly Up Town 37. IBEERF B 27 - 100%
38 Harbin Poly City 38 REERFE 115 426 100%
39.  Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion 39 BERTIGEDE 133 - 100%
40. Jinan Poly Center 40. ERRAAB L 210 153 85%
41. Jinan Poly Elegant Garden 41, R R FERE 262 40 80%
42. Yantai Poly Blossom Garden 42. B A RFILHED 142 5 55%
43. Weihai Poly Maple Valley 43. BERFAEA 89 42 70%
44, Hainan Poly Peninsula No. 1 44, BRRFERHR - 374 100%
45, Hong Kong Kai Tak Project 45, BEMEER 70 - 100%
46. Hong Kong Tuen Mun Project 46. HEHER - 21 100%
Sub Total tfE /et 1,837 2,814

Grand Total At 8,253 12,809

28 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED Annual Report 2015



COMPLETED PROJECTS

In 2015, the Group achieved completed projects with a
total gross floor area of approximately 2,550,000 square

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B2 B &t imEd 2 47

RIIEE

metres. Of those projects, 8 achieved overall completion.

ZE—RF - BESBERIHEBEL258FH
Koo BEBRTIER S1E -

List of Completed Gross Floor Area in 2015 015 TEEmBEYE
Accumulated
completed
Completed gross floor
gross floor area by the
Project area in 2015 end of 2015
BHEREZE
2015 20155 EE%
15H BRTEFER ITEEER
('000 ('000
square metres)  square metres)
(FFHK) (FFHK)
Yangtze River Delta Region REZAME
Shanghai Poly Star Island EBRF| 2GR 75 242
Shanghai Poly Felicity EBRFIE R 55 99
Shanghai Poly Phili Mansion J:iﬁ%‘ﬁn%é*fﬁﬁ 57 57
Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa ERINRFIIE 44 90
Ningbo Poly City h??)i‘i%*‘ﬁ)ﬁ% 208 588
Pearl River Delta Region K=AthE
Guangzhou Poly Golf Shire BMNRF =R 39 407
Guangzhou Poly Zephyr City B MR FITESL 92 480
Foshan Poly Prestige City FRILARF) 35k 66 435
Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur HMERF L KL 98 395
Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town BINRFURS e 105 105
Southwestern Region FEE
Guiyang Poly Hot Spring Newisland E 5 RFDR R 10 1,051
Guiyang Poly Park 2010 BESRFAE2010 122 686
Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake BISRFZH A2 28
Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay ERERAEEE 214 219
Nanning Poly Crescendo MEERFILEE 32 288
Nanning Poly Aegean Sea BEERMNEES 187 384
Liuzhou Poly Merization World HIMARFI AT ER 106 465
Chongging Poly Spring Villa BERMNRAIE 8 54
Other Regions Hithih &=
Wuhan Poly City R R TSk 475 475
Harbin Poly Up Town A FE R £ 162 162
Jinan Poly Elegant Garden R (R EE R 117 117
Yantai Poly Champs Elysees Mansion EARTIEG BN 146 288
Weihai Poly Triumph Mansion B R A IE A EE 84 218
Hainan Poly Peninsula No. 1 BRARFFES 158 2 119
Grand Total: 4% 2,546 7,723

—T-RAEH RAUBKEEARAT
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RECOGNISED PROPERTY SALES

A total of 58 projects had recognised sales in 2015
with total sales value amounted to RMB20.2 billion
and total gross floor area amounted to 2,310,000
square metres. The recognised average selling price was
approximately RMB8,758 per square metre. Among the
sales recognised, ordinary residential housing accounted
for 84%, villas accounted for 8%, retail shops accounted
for 4%, offices accounted for 1% and car parking spaces
accounted for 3%. Regionally, Yangtze River Delta and
Pearl River Delta accounted for approximately 44% of the
sales recognised, while southwestern and other regions
accounted for approximately 28% and 28%, respectively.
Average selling price and profit declined accordingly due
to the decrease of recognised sales accrued from Yangtze
River Delta and Pearl River Delta Regions.

List of Major Projects with Sales Recognised in
2015

II\HEIE E
T-hF - HAESSEEEERHEERE &
Eﬁ%ﬁéAEMZOZﬁ_ HEEEE2318TYH

K- EHBEEBEHFTEHF KO B ARKES, 758
TL o REE ST - TBETEN84% - RIEA
8% * HHE4A%  BFIEM1% + BEAI153% °
EEoMmLE K K=ZAAFELLA44% 7
[ 8 2 H At [2 159 Bl F 16 428% R
K-BEESENLBRAF TR  EREESE
T - BFIETEE o

2015 FEBEEIFH IR

Sales recognised

Project in 2015
1BH 20155 £ EEHE
(RMB million)
(AREBET)

Yangtze River Delta Region R=ZAME
1. Shanghai Poly Royal Garden 1 Liﬁﬂﬁﬂ%?a 765
2. Shanghai Poly Town 2 FIBRFIR 1
3. Shanghai Poly Lakeside Garden 3. J:iﬁﬂ/ﬂﬂ#ﬁﬁi‘ﬁﬁ 18
4. Shanghai Poly Star Island 4. FERN2E8ES 1,257
5. Shanghai Poly Elegant Mansion 5 EBRFIRIE 317
6. Shanghai Poly Villa Garden 6 RN R E 1
7. Shanghai Poly Felicity 7 B RFI 40
8. Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa 8. #INRFEE TR 577
9. Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion 9. AR R T E 5 B BR 1,082
10.  Ningbo Poly City 10, BEERRFIR 1,097
11.  Ningbo Poly Jordan International 1. ERENSEERE 182
12.  Deging Poly Origin 12, EERFRL 138
Sub Total b [&/NET 5,485

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED Annual Report 2015



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B2 g5 mEd 2 47

Sales recognised

Project in 2015
BH 20155 £AEEH
(RMB million)
(ARBEET)
Pearl River Delta Region K=AitE
13.  Guangzhou Poly City 13, BEINRFIH 17
14.  Guangzhou Poly Golf Shire 14,  BEINRFIEBRED 401
15.  Guangzhou Poly Zephyr City 15, BEMRFI Ei& 1,059
16.  Foshan Poly Cullinan Garden 16.  fBRILRFIRE 257
17.  Foshan Poly Prestige City 17. ﬁm%ﬂtf}ﬁ 277
18.  Shenzhen Poly Up Town 18.  RIMRF EWIEE 612
19.  Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town 19, BEINRFIES H bk 378
20.  Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur 20, FEMERFL K 345
Sub Total HolE/NET 3,346
Southwestern Region ARt E
21.  Nanning Poly Sincere Garden 21, MERIELEK )
22.  Nanning Poly City 22, BEERF 173
23.  Nanning Poly Aegean Sea 23, HMERIEE i 1,570
24.  Nanning Poly Phoenixia Garden 24, ﬁ@%ﬂﬂ? 0.7
25.  Nanning Poly Century 25,  BEERMN21HE 9
26.  Nanning Poly Landscape 26, EEERFILK \“t’i@ 1
27.  Nanning Poly Upper House 27. FEERFEELE )
28.  Nanning Poly Crescendo 28, EERFILES 304
29.  Liuzhou Poly Merization World 29, HDMERFIAIIER 960
30.  Guiyang Poly Spring Street 30. EBRMERKE 50
31.  Guiyang Poly Clouds Hill International 31, EBERNELER (1)
32.  Guiyang Poly Hot Spring Newisland 32. EBRFERIW 106
33.  Guiyang Poly International Center 33.  EBRAVERES (8)
34.  Guiyang Poly Park 2010 34.  EBRFIAE2010 767
35.  Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay 35.  EBERRFEREZ 644
36.  Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake 36. EBRRFEMR (3)
37.  Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future 37. BEREFRFET 764
38.  Kunming Poly Lakeside Mansion 38. EHRRNEMHZIR 53
39.  Kunming Sunny Lake & Splendid Life 39. ERHRMERER 13
40.  Kunming Poly Sky and Earth 40.  ERBERFIE R 288
Sub Total Hb /N T 5,687
“T-hFFR RIBXEEERARF
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Sales recognised

Project in 2015
1EHE 20155 £ EEHE
(RMB million)
(AREBET)

Other Regions HipihE
41.  Wuhan Poly Royal Palace 41, ERRFIZER 4
42.  Wuhan Poly Blue Ocean District 42, RIERF|EGE 62
43.  Wuhan Poly City 43, RIRRFI 2,210
44.  Poly Harbin Contemporary No. 9 Park Life 44,  WEZEERNABENE 27
45.  Harbin The Tsinghua Summer Palace of Poly 45,  PAFEEFRMNEEER 55
46.  Harbin Poly Yi He Homeland 46.  WRBERFBENXRE 0.3
47.  Harbin Poly The Water's Fragrant Dike 47. WBEBERMKERE 179
48.  Harbin Poly Up Town 48. WRERERF L 327
49.  Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion 49. EmENEEALE 256
50.  Jinan Poly Garden 50. BERFEE 0.5
51.  Jinan Poly Lotus 51,  BERRFIER 0.3
52.  Jinan Poly Center 52.  EERFIAFD 31
53.  Jinan Poly Daming Lake 53. EFERFIKREMN 8
54.  Jinan Poly Elegant Garden 54. ERRFIERE 970
55.  Weihai Poly Triumph Mansion 55. BUBRFISEEALE 235
56.  Yantai Poly Champs Elysees Mansion 56. EERMNEGHEALHE 560
57.  Yantai Poly Blossom Garden 57. EARFIEEE 642
58.  Hainan Poly Peninsula No. 1 58.  JBERFIFES1E 108
Sub Total &/ NE 5,675
Grand Total: = 20,193

32 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED Annual Report 2015



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B2 g

Recognised Sales in 2015 by Property Type 2015 ABYIERA K
Sales
recognised
Property type L/ E i in 2015 Percentage
0155 £ABEHE Bok
(RMB million)
(AREB&ET)
Apartment NE 16,953 84%
Villa hllk=d 1,535 8%
Commercial [EES 794 4%
Office 27E 241 1%
Car parking space B 670 3%
Total &5t 20,193 100%
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REYE

Poly Property Group has various investment properties and
hotels located in first-tier cities and second-tier provincial
capitals with a total gross floor area of approximately
570,000 square metres, of which approximately 500,000
square metres are attributable to the Group. In 2015,
the occupancy rates of the office buildings and shopping
malls remained stable, with higher occupancy rates and
rents as compared with the corresponding period of
last year. As for hotel operations, the occupancy rates
of Beijing Poly Plaza, Hubei Poly Hotel and Regal Poly
Guiyang Hotel also remained satisfactory.

EXEERBZALR —GET R _REEW
MREMEREE - BREEEENSTETY S
K AEBEIEREMENSO0OBEF K - —F
—hF  BREEETREFEEESHERRE
T HAXRESKFREFERYE TR
Tt BEEETE - AERERFAE - HILERFA
BIEREBRNEZRRAEAEETRETR
b

—T-RAEH RAUBKEEARAT
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List of Major Properties and Hotels as at 31st

BE-ZE-—IHEF+=-A=+—-—BHXEMWX

December, 2015 FOBIE &
Average Average Interests
GFA occupancy occupancy  attributable
Region Project held rate of 2015 rate of 2014 to the Group  Property type
20155 20145
e BHH RFEEEAR TR FHmER SEER  NxRER
('000 square
metres)
(FEHK)
Beijing Beijing Poly Plaza 94.64 100% (Office 100% 75%  Office building,
R ERRFMAE building) hotel and theatre
(Hag) e BERER
69% (Hotel) 69%
(BE)
Beijing Beijing Legend Garden 304 98% 97% 100%  Apartment, villa
SiA Villas (partial) and commercial
StREREENE(ER) center, etc.
DB BIEREET
/D%
Shanghai Shanghai Stock 48.1 99% 98% 100%  Office building
i Exchange Building (partial) g
FEEFRE(HH)
Shanghai Shanghai Poly Plaza (partial) 60.91 99% 99% 90%  Office building and
LI EERAES(H5) commercial
BREREE
Shenzhen Shenzhen Poly Cultural Plaza 132.87 100% 100% 100%  Shopping mall,
] (partial) cinema and
RIRFIL B% (F1) theatre, etc.
A% I RERE
Wuhan Poly Hotel 34.08 67% 66% 100%  Hotel
HE RAAERE BE
Wuhan Wuhan Poly Plaza (partial) 126.77 75% 48% 100%  Office building and
HE RERTIES (H6) commercial
BREREE
Guiyang Regal Poly Guiyang Hotel 39.13 55% 52% 66.5%  Hotel
& EBRNESARERE BE
Total 43t : 566.9
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PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

The Group’s property management companies engage
in hotel and property management. Over the years,
they received a number of accolades and awards for the
quality, services and credibility.

In 2015, the Group’s property management services
realized an income of RMB444,066,000 from 131
properties with a total gross floor area of about
26,230,000 square metres, representing an increase of 18
properties as compared with 2014. The managed areas,
which includes office buildings, hotels, shopping centers,
villas and residential buildings, grew by 27% year-on-
year.

2016 OUTLOOK

Looking ahead into 2016, destocking remains the top
priority of the structural reform of the property market.
Monitoring data from E-house China R&D Institute
revealed that, as of the end of December 2015, the
inventory-to-sale ratio of new commodity properties in
35 monitored cities was 11.8, which was still considered
to be relatively high notwithstanding it was the lowest in
the recent 28 months. In accordance with this situation,
it is expected that supporting polices such as deduction
of loan interests from income tax and further reduction
in down payment ratio will be put into effect successively
in 2016. Besides, the speeding up of urbanization and
encouraging migrant workers to purchase home, the
demand for home purchases is expected to remain
stable. Since destocking will remain the top priority for
the real estate sector in 2016, the possibility of strong
rebound of market indicators is remote. Sales is expected
to stay at high level, while scale of investment, newly
commenced construction projects and land acquisition
will decrease gradually or stay at a relatively low level.
After the structural adjustment and sales stagnation in
the past a few years, the real estate industry will continue
to consolidate. Riding on the international platform of
the listing status in Hong Kong, wide coverage of projects
and extensive resources, the Group will be benefiting
from this wave of market consolidation.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B2 g

MIREE
EXEE I NEERARREBERNEEE -
SEABEMT SELBAE - QEER - R’

s ao

B OB05 TR 80 B S AR B TSR

ZE—RF O PERLAABHERAARE
444,066,0007T * BEIEWEEE131E - ZE®
TEHI2623BF A K - MEEER_-_ZT—WF
#hn18fE - BEEREBERLL EFA27% - HRFED
1B A5 IEREESZEAES -

—E-RFRE

RE-F—AF  (CBEFSEERSELED
SEBENENEEER 2 — - REZEFME
MERENBERT BE-_FT—AFT_-A
B PE=TREEARTmHEEREEFHEL
RN BEECKEM28MEARMFE
BENERERKT « $TEE—BR - SRFIEBE
WEFRFSEMPEHR - E—FREENILHF
TSR T RFEELA o I LA E
BMRIEBERTIEFSBRNES  BES
KIS ERIRE - AR EBFHREER REI
ETEE—Z—AFNHEETE  TESERR
ERERREMETA - BHIHESRESA - B
B A TIARTEE WA A T8k
REMNEER - KBEERFNERBHEMFER
£ EHETENERERSE—TEK - KT
FELTHERTE  EZRNRBREAREE
MWER  AEEBEENRTERADRE -

—T-RAEH RAUBKEEARAT
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EXEERBEERFURRERRBR  MRE
fEBEFNAE  RIEEHIRE  TRRAF R
MES E-T-REFERNUTIELERR

Poly Property Group is committed to pursue healthy
and sustainable development, seeking to expedite the
clearance of inventories, exercise prudent control over
investment and explore innovative development models.  FF TELEMAELIZ008F XK FLHE@MA
In 2016, the Group will strive to achieve the following #9256 B F H K M EAHE S FEL280BTAR
key operating targets: commencing construction of a ¥ o

gross floor area of approximately 3 million square metres;

contracted sales of approximately 2.56 million square

metres and approximately RMB28 billion in sales amount.

SUMMARY OF MAJOR REAL ESTATE TEEMEMRBEBEBBEBGN

PROJECTS
1. Yangtze River Delta Region 1. R=AE
As at 31st December, 2015, the 16 projects of BE-_ZT—AF+TZA=1—0H B%X&

Poly Property Group in the Yangtze River Delta ERR=AREE161EE HERZEIE

Region amounted to an aggregated gross floor B EREBEMEN27EFK - F&
area of approximately 3,350,000 square metres, MEEMBELI108EF K - A5FH£AI335

BEFR  HEEXESERBRETERGE
LUEEEIEN16% - ER4EBEERT -
121E18 B R A HE LPEER ©

representing approximately 16% of the Group’s
land bank portfolio. Of which, approximately
2,270,000 square metres are under construction

while 1,080,000 square meters are under planning.
4 projects were completed and 12 were currently

under construction.

Region City/District | Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
Ef W/ e ER WEHE TEER RN
Poly Deluxe Mansion Located in the prime area of | Residential, commercial For sale
RUXEFS Jiading Xincheng of Jiading and office buildings; EE
‘ District, close to the Metro a\theatre §nd 2 }jotel For sale (partially
Poly Elegant Mansion Line 11 AN el
5 A o S g o elivered)
RAXIERL RETRETHELE b~ B & HE(SLRH)
ik P
Poly Star Island d(;\ri\j:r;g;)ama Y
|25l
Yangtze A2 BIEE B (A%
River Shangha Located in Nanxiang, Jiading | Social housing Delivered with
DeEa g Poly Grace Garden iz @I RERE sales of remaining
k= REFAMIER apartments
T BREE
Located in Baoshan District, Featured European style Residential units sold
Songnan area, with mid-rise apartments out; commercial units
Poly Felicity community facilities and BNEREER for sale
RAH convenient transportation FTER BERE
IR EIE - RERE BE
B2 EEER
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Region City/District Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
Ef W/ HE L] HEME IZER RERR
Located in the prime area Apartments and villas For sale (partially
in Tangzhen of Pudong NI delivered)
New District, the project is EEHIRH)

Poly Royal Garden
A

surrounded by a full range of
commercial and community
amenities
RBRIREERLE -
BE% HERERETE

Poly Phili Mansion
RAEBEH

Located at Dalian Road,
Yangpu District, CBD of
Binjiang Inner Loop, Golden
Triangle of Lujiazui

IR GBRKER - BRRE
TCBDIRYE EXREE=A
1

Residential, office and
commercial buildings

% 578 B%

For sale (partially
delivered)

EE@BIRM)

Poly Phili House
RHNBBLE

Located in Sijing, Songjiang,
near Sijing Station of

Metro Line 9 with access to
convenient transportation
and full-fledged ancillary
facilities

AIRINTIS - B hE9%
T3 REEH BETE

Residential and
commercial buildings

% B%

For sale

kE

Shan Jin Poly Plaza
WERHES

Located within the inner

ring along Bin Jiang at the
Eastern Bund, in proximity to
Yangshupu Road Station of
Metro Line 4

ATRARAR - RONEETH,
GRS BN T

Commercials

Bx

Under construction
and prepared for sale

RAE

Poly Phili Regency
RNBETFE

Located within the Eastern
Bund in Yangpu District

TR RSN R 5

High-rise apartments

RELE

For sale

#E

—E-REFE RNUBXREEERAT
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HRERRBHS  EENB
H5PERE - BUEK AE
HEERER

Region City/District Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
B W/ e ER WENE TEER RRAR
Located in the economic Residential buildings For sale (partially
development zone of and villas delivered)
Poly West Bank Vil Wuzhong Distrigt, the project | A% 5l EEFHRH)
P — stands on a peninsula of
Dushu Lake
fIRRPEERER - KRR
Suzhou ERiH
i
o Located in the economic Residential buildings and | For sale (partially
development zone of retail shops delivered)
Poly Lake Mansion Wuzhong District and the Fz A% EE@IRH)
RAE AR northern tip of Yinshan Lake
IR RPEERER - FIWH
pidd]
Located in the east of Residential, hotel, and For sale (partially
Deging County, the project commercial buildings delivered)
is a 5-minute drive fromthe | (5% JEJE - %% EE@ARN)
Deging Poly Origin Hangzhou-Nanjing Passenger
EE RARE Railway with superior scenery
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Region

City/District
W/ HE

Project
e

Geographical Location
WENE

Major Products
IRER

Current Status

Ningho

R

Poly City
RAA

Located in the prime location
of Zhenhai Xincheng, facing
the new administrative and
cultural center of Zhenhai
AREBTARLE - Bl
TR

Residential and
commercial buildings
i H%

For sale (partially
delivered)

EE(AH

Poly Jordan
International
RAIBEERTER

Located in the South of
Tanjialing Dong Road,

and east of Chengdong
Road, Chengdong, Yuyao,
the project is close to the
Hangzhou-Ningbo Canal

and the Hangzhou-Ningbo
Expressway with the
provincial highway Yongliang
Line crossing from east to
west, and the Chengdong
Road linking the crossing
bridge of Hangzhou Bay;
making it convenient to travel
by water and land

IR RATHRERERE
B RENR - ZBNAE
MBRELE BERZ
BEERE  BRBEENM
BEGAR  KERBER

Residential and
commercial buildings

% B%

For sale (partially
delivered)
EE@ARM)

Poly Wonderland
RFENIA

Located at Shuixiang Lane,
Dongshang New Town,
Ningbo

AR ER R AR

Residential and
commercial buildings

% B%

For sale
&

—E-REFE RNUBXREEERAT
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K=AtE
BHE-_Z-—RAF+-_A=+—H BZ&
ERK=-AmERFE13EEERZIE
B TREEEEEN6AET K FiE
BERETREL1598 F 5K - A #9323
BEFR HEEXESERBRETENG
BREEMEEMN15% « ERSEEEE®T -
8{EITE B B e TREER ©

2. Pearl River Delta Region 2.
As at 31st December, 2015, Poly Property Group
had 13 projects in the Pearl River Delta Region with
a total gross floor area of approximately 3,230,000
square metres, accounting for approximately 15%
of the total gross floor area held by the Group.
Among which, approximately 1,640,000 square
metres was under construction and approximately

40

1,590,000 square metres was under planning. 5 of
these projects were completed, and 8 were under
construction.

Region City/District Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
B W/ e ER WEME TEER BERR
Located in Huadu District;
adjacent to the Asian Games
New Stadium at Fengshen o ,
Poly Golf Shire Avenue and the Metro Line 9 Regdent@ I,‘V|||as, and For'sale (partially
- ) office buildings delivered)
RSB that is currently underway e e .
e h st SR s € 5% B¥E EEFHPRM)
fIREHRE - ZHEBRED
EERBRRRERMENG
&
Located in Xinhua Town of
Poly Zephyr City Hlua(liu District, east to the H|gh-r|se apartments and For.sale (partially
BRI district government retail shops delivered)
fiREHEHEERL 8 | REXRE B8 EEFHARH)
ERARE
‘ Located in Huadu District
Pearl River Guangzhou at the junction of Wuhan-
Delt EM Guangzhou High-speed Rail,
%K=A ) Guangzhou-Qingyuan Light | Residential, featuring
Poly Up House Rail and Airport North Station mamly basic and compact For sale
LRI APM, next to Metro Lines 3 unit types e
and 9 2 UBE ZERER |
MREHE  BirnE3s 9 | A
SE BERE NRRER
# - BREE RSP
RER
Located in the South of
Liwan District; adjacent to
Poly Gratfed West Bay the Guangzhou Metro Line Residential, apartmlen.ts Under construction
AP, T with commercial and and commercial buildings | and prepared for sale
= educational facilities (G RNCAF4 TREE
frnzEeEme - BEEM
IR % YEREER
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Region City/District Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
Ef W/ HE 1 HENE IZER BRHR
Located within the Toyota
Auto City in Huangge Town,
. Nansha with access to a Residential and
Nansha Poly City . . o For sale
e comprehensive transportation c\ommerqal buildings e
network e B%
RN S bk
LR TR
Locted at the junction of -\ o Goe vl buidings, ‘
. North Jianshe Road and ‘ Under construction
Poly Fei Cui Shan ‘ apartments and retail
RHER| Sjr\]dﬁng A\itennue in I-Ejadu | shops and E)iriared for sale
%ﬁwﬁﬁﬁiaﬂt%éﬁi:ﬁk}é N fERRE
25
Located in the centre
of Chancheng District
neighbouring the Asia T .
Poly Cullinan Garden Arts Park in the west and Essrl](rjs:rtclill Ezfilli;nagnsd ZZTijZLE(E?amaHy
RURELER equpeq with @ full range of R (55 5H)
community facilities
fIABHESRL - AHEER
EREERER TS
Located in Longjiang Town
of Shunde District with
o the benefit of an extensive Residential and For sale (partially
Poly Prestige City . o .
R trahgportatlon ne?work.alnld c\or\nmerc‘lal buildings dellveied)*
Fochan tfmvmg commercial activities | % H% EEFAIRA)
- fiRIEERETE  ARRE
MENE - BERASEE
Located in the north of
Shunde New City, the
project stands in the heart
of Pearl River Delta and at Mid-rise apartments,
the junction of Daliang and a commercial center,
Poly Central Park Lunjiao, neighbours Panyu, a five-star hotel, and a For sale
REFRAE Guangzhou, and enjoys supermarket ke

convenient transportation
AT B AL 3 - k=
BN RAR - RBRSA
HEMNEE-REK AR
BE  RER

AR BETL RERE
5

—T-NFEFHR RIABXREEARIAE 41




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B g

Region
Ef

City/District
Wi/ HE

Project
1B

Geographical Location
WENE

Major Products
IRER

Current Status

REHRR

Shenzhen
I

Poly Up Town
®E AR

Located in the prime
commercial location of
Longgang District, the
project is easily accessible

by the Metro Line 3 and is
also complemented with
educational and living
ancillary facilities
frREREERZ LR i
H3ngnE  RAEN #
B AERERE

Residential buildings and
retail shops

% A3

For sale (partially
delivered)

EEE@IRN)

Poly Joy-Zone
RAG LR

Located in Longhua, Bao'an
District, Shenzhen; close to
the transportation terminal
and the metro station,

with sound business and
community facilities
RFIEREES  28%
EREN MEY BEE
o RERE

Residential and
commercial buildings

[ERES

For sale

#E

Huizhou
BN

Poly Sunshine Town

TRAMES A

Located next to the
Shenzhen-Shantou
Expressway and Palm Island
Golf Course, the project
enjoys an environment of
natural scenery

IR FNSRARE - Bl
BEREANS  BRABRE
%

Residential buildings
%

For sale

RE

Poly Deutch Kultur
FRA A

Located in the prime area of
Huibo and the northern bank
of East River, the project is
only a 10-minute drive from
downtown Huizhou
fREEZS  RIkE B
Bl LEEEI09EER

Residential buildings, villas
and retail shops
- 512 B8

For sale (partially
delivered)

EE@IRN)
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Southwestern Region
As at 31st December, 2015, Poly Property Group
held 19 projects in the Southwestern Region with
a total gross floor area of approximately 9,830,000
square metres (comprising a gross floor area under
construction of approximately 2,500,000 square
metres and gross floor area to be developed of
approximately 7,330,000 square metres), accounting
for approximately 47% of the total gross floor area
under construction and to be developed held by the
Group. Among them, 8 projects were completed

while 10 were under construction.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B2 g

ARt E

HE-_Z-AF+-_A=1+—H8 B%%
ERTEEETEHE19EEER A
B EEROEEABL2508F 5K #F2
BEAEMIELT73I3EF 5K - AT 4983
BEFK OEEXSERBTEERSG

IEATETENAT% - ER8EBEEERT -

10188 B R M TREER

Region City/District Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
Ef W/ HE ER WENE TEER BRRR
. Loclated |n'Wudang D|str|§ : A comprehensive Delivered with
Poly Hot Spring amidst a picturesque setting o ‘ .
, residential establishment | sales of remaining
Newisland at the center of lake areas With hot spring facities apartments
‘QEN e L‘\\W%nﬂn s E@:ﬁ ,}giﬁ i ’ 2 o .
AR ap e ERRARR | pwsaviweRr | 4t Ruge
Located in the heart of
Nanming District and
. standing on the bank of - . Delivered with
Poly International B Residential, commercial .
Nanming River with a o sales of remaining
Center shoreline of approximately and offce buidings apartments
15 ﬁia Yoo 5% N :—\:—u—‘ N
RAERES 300 metres % #% BYE H - RRBE
fiRmEHEERERR
.  ATI00K T
Southwestern | Guiyang B RBI00KAER
i £l Located in Yunyan District,
the project is an important
spot linking Jinyang District
to the city's downtown
area by leveraging a full
Poly Clouds Hill tran;portatpn network; Residential and DEIVBIE] Wlt.h .
: 5-minute drive from the o sales of remaining
International downtown of the city. it commercial buildings apartments
RHZWER ; t EE ’

is convenient and easily
accessible

finEER  EEHRL £
BRNERES HERBR
BrERE  EnRLSHER
B EEAfE i

Rff - BREE

—E-REFE RNUBXREEERAT
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Zunyi
frtEEma - ZBRITE
HEREEZHRNBER

Region City/District Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
Ef W/ e ER WENE TEER BB
Located in the south of
Wudang District, the project | Residential buildings, ,
. o . . For sale (partially
Poly Spring Street is 1 kilometre away from the | villas, and commercial delivered)
RAERAE centre of the district buildings EE(BH%R)
HREEERY BSEET | HE HE . HE e
H—RERRE
Standing against the
backdrop of Huaxi National
Wetland Park, the projects | . el buidings, |
Poly The Place of A situated in the prime location | . . For sale (partially
) : villas, and commercial )
Lake in the scenic eco-tour zone of buidings delivered)
RFZH Huaxi District b EE(HAIZH)
IR R R RSB -
DS ERTERETKER
i/
Located in Wudang District
and in close proximity to the
district administration center,
the project incorporates
an 1&-hole interationd| Residential buildings For sale (partially
Poly Park 2010 standard golf course . S .
EHAE10 and enjoys established v!llis, andvreta|| shops dehvezedl
o fx FIE - A EEBHRA)
community facilities in the
neighbourhood
IR EERTHPLE - BE
TNREREERBALXNS
BERERETE
Located in Nanming District;
built on the old site of the
former Guiyang Power Plant
(EBER), the project is Residential, office Forsle partally
Poly Phoenix Bay situated in the traffic hub buildings and commercial .
. o o delivered)
RHEEE linking the downtown of buildings HE(E55H)
Guiyang and Huaxi District fx 278 B% e
fIRERE  EREGER
Bl REEERMRLAR
RHRE
Located in the south of
Zunyi; the project is close to
. Poly Metropolis of the center of transportation Residential, commercial, For sale (partially
Zunyi created by the government BN . .
- Future B and links o the old town of 0\ff|<€ bU{Idlngs,‘and villas de\!vezed);
AR fz #% BYE FIE | ZE(FHIRM)
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Region City/District Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
Ef i/ HE ! WENE IZER BERR

Aresidential community

Located in the north of L
of low-density residential

Nanning, the project is

Poly Crescendo approximately 20 minutes bU|l|d|ngls, h|gh-nse Forl sale (partlly
e . residential units and delivered)
RANWES away from the ity center , o
s N serviced apartments EE(HHRN)
frMEEmRILE - EhE EmE e A
0ssEE NEEEETAT BEE
ERABRBNATLE
Residing at the emerging
new community in Jiangnan
' District, t.he project is only High-ie resdentia Delivered wﬁh '
Poly City 10-15 minutes away from the . . sales of remaining
. 4 buildings and retail shops
A city center apartments

BN TREFERGEERE | PRLC A

BEES EHETHLE
10-157 2

Located in Xiuxiang main road

Rft - REHE

and neighbouring the Lion
il Par.k, the project enjoys Residential buildings and | For sale (partially
Nannin Poly Aegean Sea convenient transportation . .
? REEES and community facilities retal shops delvred)
e L ! [ i EE(HHRR)

IR EETARAE - 0
WARR - EER - BBEE
RERES

Located in the heart of the
Liusha Peninsula, the project
neighbours the Party School
of CPC, the state guesthouse
Liyuan Resort and Qing Xiu
Mountain Golf Course in the
east, Liusha Eco Park in the 14 single buildings in neo-

, . . . Under construction
Poly Dream River west with a planned gross classical architectural style and orepared for sale
Bt floor area of over a thousand | 14RE®E - MERTER Eg?iﬁp
Ni=]

acres, as well as a spectacular | S/
view of river in the south
AL SR - RER
BZRER BEEARLE
EALBRARNG AR
THONDPELLE  BEYL
BIs  HEVEES

—T-NEFH RABXKEEERDIFA 45
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Region
Ef

City/District
Wi/ HE

Project
1B

Geographical Location
WENE

Major Products
IRER

Current Status

REHRR

Poly Nanning Town

RAEFERI

Located at the junction of
Qinghuan Road and Fengling
South Road in Qingxiu
District, the premium property
development at the heart of
Nanning is in proximity to
the 3 CBDs of Dongmeng,
Longgang and Wuxiang,
facing Qingxiushan Park in
the west and overlooking
Yong River in the south and
connected to Dongmeng to
the north

IR EAE RN AR BHE
RER REEH LR
ZRCBDH L BHEALA
CEERET LHER B

Residential, commercial
buildings, office and
apartments

Iz #% B7E A%

For sale

&

Poly Hearty
PR

Located at Mingxiu Road near
the former site of Chongzuo
CPC Academy, the project

is a premium residential
development in Beihu Sub-
district

IRBAERREL EREL
W =IHRBREEARR
#

Residential, office and
commercial buildings
fx 278 B%

For sale

#E
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Region

City/District
i/ HE

Project
e

Geographical Location
WENE

Major Products
IRER

Current Status

Liuzhou

I

Poly Merization World
RAATE

Neighbouring the old town
of Liubei on the west and the
business district on the south,
the project enjoys established
facilities and amenities of
hoth the old town and the
new business area. Standing
on the Liu River bank with a
shoreline of more than 200
metres, the project boasts a
prime location and natural
scenery

BEMLESE - BN
CERERRATERAORE
ERiE - BIAREBRR00
RBENEEY REEE

Residential and
commercial buildings

% B%

For sale (partially
delivered)
EE@ARN)

Guilin

)

Poly Culture and Arts
Center
FRA ST E AT L

Located in the core area

of Lingui New District,

the project is adjacent to

the new Guilin Municipal
Administrative Center

which is under construction,
Guilin Grand Theatre, Guilin
Museum and Guilin Library. It
enjoys full scale of municipal
ancillary facilities and a
superior natural scenery

f e AT R A AT R A 3
B BERKEATHTRT
b BERAER - HEAEY
B ENEERES ERA
BMBEERETE - BAR
BEY

Featured clusters of mini-
theatres, complemented
with commercials,
residential buildings and
hot spring resort

e BREE  RERE

ERERERE

Land bank
TitfE
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spring

TR BB TR EE R4
wz-MEEARARE - E
LENERER

RRERRIEHR

Region City/District Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
Ef W/ e ER WENE TEER BB
Located in Ninghu Xincheng
of Datun District in Anning
City, the project shares the
same neighbourhood of Service apartments, office For sale (partaly
Poly Lakeside Mansion | “Kunming Sunny Lake & buildings and commercial .
. A o delivered)
RAZHRES Splendid Life"” which is one buildings EE(EAEH)
block away BERAE-BYE-mE |
IR ZE AT HRERI
EREHAE-%R - AR
RRNERESE R
Situated in the prime area
Kunming of Renmin Road in the
EH downtown area, the project
is next to the City Stadium
Station serviced by the Metro | Residential buildings,
Line 3, which is currently service apartments, office | For sale (partially
Poly Sky and Earth under construction. The buildings and commercial | delivered)
REARS neighbouring area offers buildings EE(HHIRM)
comprehensive ancillary fx - BERALAE BF
facilities =
iR BATEHRAREZD
wE - BERARE - BEE
EHMEIRETRARY B
BERRERE-EES
Residing in the scenic zone
of Southern Hot Spring Park,
which is highly regarded as
‘ o one of C.hongqmg s top-. A igh-end spring vl Delivered wnh .
Chongging Poly Spring Villa ten scenic spots, the project . sales of remaining
Ed] RANERIE boasts its own onsite hot communtty apartments

Rff - REHE
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Other Regions

As at 31st December, 2015, Poly Property Group
has a total of 21 projects in other regions, namely
Wuhan, Harbin, Jinan, Hainan and Hong Kong.
The land bank amounted to a gross floor area
of approximately 4,650,000 square metres that
contributed to roughly 22% of the Group’s
property development portfolio. Projects under
development accounted for a total gross floor area
of approximately 1,840,000 square metres and an
approximate gross floor area of 2,810,000 square
metres was reserved for future development. 7 of
the projects were completed, 12 were currently
under construction and 2 had yet to commence
construction.
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Hithith &

HE-_Z-AF+-A=1+—H8 B%%
BERZ BRE - EE - BERkESSE
WMEFF2NEEE  CTEEFZEEBELY
184BF 7K FFEREEMEL2818F
K AT HASEF K HhEESE
EEETERFERAREREN2% K
F7EEBEBECE T - 121@E B R TR

B 2{ETE B WARRT

Region

City/District
Wi/ HE

Project
BH

Geographical Location
WENE

Major Products
IEEm

Current Status

Others
it

Wuhan
iz

Poly Plaza
RHES

Located in Wuchang, the
administrative and cultural
center of Wuhan, Hubei
Province, the project is a
comprehensive commercial
plaza integrating commerce,
fashion and culture
AL E TR L - B
EREE  AEHE K-
Yea—ERsatExES

High-end office buildings,
and commercial buildings

For lease and for sale
(delivered)
fHEE BRA

Poly Blue Ocean District
RAE R

Located at the prime area

of Wuchang District, the
project boasts unparalleled
panoramic lakeside views.
Close to the Wuhan Metro
Line 2, the project enjoys

an excellent transportation
network
URRETREPOE - &
B AR EME A - i
B EEY

Residential buildings and
retail shops
% HH

Delivered with
sales of remaining
apartments

AT BEEE

Yangyuan Project
HEER

Located in Wuchang, the
main area of the Central
District of Wuhan City and
near to the Yangtze River
URREMERREAS - i
&L

Residential and
commercial buildings
% A%

Land bank
TG

—T-RAEH RAUBKEEARAT
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Region
Ef

City/District
Wi/ HE

Project
1B

Geographical Location
WENE

Major Products
IRER

Current Status

REHRR

Poly Park
RANAER

Located at Hongtu Avenue

in Dongxihu District, Wuhan,
which stands close to the
Metro Line 2, the project is
surrounded by numerous
ancillary facilities
fREETRAMNEREA
& WEIRRLE  AERE

=l
&

Residential buildings and

retail shops

% A3

Delivered with
sales of remaining
apartments

QT BREE

Poly City
RA

The project is located in
Hongshan District, Wuhan,
and is complemented by a
full range of educational and
community facilities
fIREET LR BEE
& HERERHA

Residential buildings,
office buildings and

commercial buildings

e B¥E - BE

For sale

#E

Poly Up Town
RA L

Located in the newly
emerging Baishazhou area

of Wuhan, the project is
adjacent to the old town

of Wuchang and the new
town of Nanhu. Two
crossing channels, namely
Yingwuzhou Yangtze River
Bridge (35 - RITAR)
and Yangsigang Yangtze
River Bridge (5M/& KT
K1B) will be built in the
neighbourhood in the future.
Located within the Second
Ring, the project neighbours
the planned Metro Line 5

f R B E A AT A A DM
FE ZEREEAE 84
BRERIAE  AREER
MERTRE-BEMRIA
BABMERIAR Rz
BA - ZRAAESRE

Residential, commercial

and office buildings

e B% BTES

Under construction
and prepared for sale

ERRAE
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Region City/District Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
Ef W/ HE 1 HENE IZER BRHR
Located in Songbei District,
the project is close to the
Wanda life circle currently
under construction and is
Poly Harhin equipped with high-end Residential and Delivered W|th .
Contemporary No. 9 hotels, a conference center, a o sales of remaining
, | commercial buildings
Park Life theme park and a commercial - apartments
RALENR center : At - ERHE
fIRRE - ZRERNEE
LEE RERWBEE €
FRL - TBLE BERDL
SEERER
Located in Songbei District,
the project neighbours major
provincial government offices | A large-scale, low density
Harbin Poly The Water's in Harbin and is only 500 and high-end residential For sale (partially
BRE Fragrant Dike metres away from Songbei community delivered)
RAKERE Avenue MRIZREMAERRER | ZE(FHIRM)

RRLE BBARET
BRHAE B REE
5005k

FEEHE

The Tsinghua Summer
Palace of Poly
RAEEER

Situated in the Nangang
District, the central district

of Harbin, which is the
cultural and education base
for higher education, the
project enjoys benefits from
well-established community
amenities

fikBAET L EEHE
E-REENEE £ERE

inE

Residential buildings and
retail shops

% %%

Delivered with
sales of remaining
apartments

Rff - BBEE

—E-REFE RNUBXREEERAT
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transportation
fRETE - FTLERE -
imELE

[ERES

Region City/District Project Geographical Location Major Products Current Status
B W/ e ER R E TEEM RRAR
New residential community
located alongside Songhua
River in Harbin West,
Poly Up Town devgloped gs a key Readent@l anq . For.sale (partially
BFLHH project designated by the commercial buildings delivered)
government fie m% EE#ARN)
fir 0 & & R S A i T
—% BRONERTENR
{ail
Located at the junction
of Qunli No. 2 Avenue,
Poly City Langjiang Road and Residential buildings For sale
REISA Yangmingtan Avenue TE e
AT E A% Z REBEBAITHE -
BREAERER
Located in the Honglou
business area of the Licheng
. District, a commercial center | Residential and For sale (partially
Poly Hyde Mansion S o .
RHEELE of the new district in the east | commercial buildings delivered)
of Jinan frz #% EE@AIRN)
IRERE  BEERDHNE
BEPL  HEREE
Situated at the west of the .
. o An integrated
southern City, the project is s
‘ ‘ development comprising
adjacent to the Jinan West T .
. . of residential buildings, For sale (partially
Jinan Poly Center Market that is renowned as a . .
e B hundred-year-old commerci apartments, offices and delivered)
a commercial buildings HE(HARM)
et %% 0% 578
e L EETE: T ;“
REREAMETRE | men-mosaumen
ik
Neighbouring the Honglou
business area, the project
e | Dl | o
RAEE Y| as
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Region

City/District
i/ HE

Project
e

Geographical Location
WENE

Major Products
IRER

Current Status

Yantai

74

Poly Champs Elysees
Mansion
U EYN

Located next to the
Fenghuang Mountain
Reservoir in Yantai, Shandong
Province, the project enjoys

a convenient transportation
network

finiReEam - ZRKER
HIKEE - SRER]

Residential and
commercial buildings

% B%

Delivered with
sales of remaining
apartments

T BEEE

Poly Blossom Garden
(R R FE

Located in the geographical
center of Yantai, the core
area of the Southern New
City, the project is about
500 metres away from
Guanzhuang Station
(BZE35) in the Yantai section
of the planned Qingrong
Intercity Railway (& 5355
#1%), creating a circle of
which Qingdao, Yantai and
Weihai can all be reached
within one hour

AR EBER O — EHER
BOE - BERRERARE
BESREHEN500K - &
B Eh BERER-NE
iEE

Mid-rise apartments,
equipped with a primary
school and commercial
buildings

5 BE BRI

A%

For sale

"E

—E-REFE RNUBXREEERAT
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Region
Ef

City/District
Wi/ HE

Project
1B

Geographical Location
WENE

Major Products
IRER

Current Status

REHRR

Weihai
B

Poly Triumph Mansion
RAEE D6

Situated in the Huancui
District of Weihai, Shandong
Province, the project is close
to the Xianguding Scenic
Spot and is east to the ocean
offering unparalleled sea
views

AR ERETRER - B
BURERS25E - RAk
B ERRGES

Residential buildings,
villas, and retail shops
=z 5IZ- &%

Delivered with
sales of remaining
apartments

QT BREE

Poly Maple Valley
RAALEA

Located in the heart of
Huancui District, Weihai,
the project is surrounded
by hills in three directions.
In proximity to Darunfa
business circle and Green
Zone planning area, the
site is easily accessible
with comprehensive
ancillary facilities in the
neighbourhood.
fIREETERE AR -
ZHERL - 2BABEHE
FHREE - RER
BEREREAS -

Residential buildings
=z

Under construction
and prepared for sale
EREE

Hainan
55

Poly Peninsula No. 1

RAHE15

Located in the resort district
of Shenzhou Peninsula

in Wanning City, Hainan
Province, the project enjoys
beautiful coastal resources
i GEE BTN ¥ Bk
EERE  ZHBHSEED

BRER

Alarge-scale mixed-

use premium residential
project featuring high-
rise apartments and villas,
an international yachting
community and a resort-
style marina club
NEEEERINARES
BRER  9ERELER
PIE - EIRERLE B
ABREEHDE

For sale

kE
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Region

City/District
i/ HE

Project
e

Geographical Location
WENE

Major Products
IRER

Current Status

Hong Kong

Kai Tak Project
L

Located in the Kai Tak
Development Area of
Kowloon East, the project
will be developed as a part
of the core husiness district
of Kowloon East. It is near
the Kai Tak Station along the
Shatin-Central MTR line and
will take only 10 minutes by
MTR to reach the core areas
of Hong Kong Island in the
future
IREENERBENERE
M EEERNERRUES
B -3 - AR E
DRGREL  RR10HEE
BUEBETLE

Residential buildings
=z

Under construction
and prepared for sale
ERAE

Tuen Mun Project

Located in the Castle Peak
Beach section of Castle Peak
Road, Tuen Mun, the project
is a low-density beachside
residential project encircled
by ancillary facilities such as
Harrow International School
Hong Kong, Gold Coast and
Tuen Mun Hospital in the
neighbourhood
fREBEMREILARS L
28 A-REVEERREE
TER - RERRELE E
28F  HFERSLERE

Villas and low-rise
residential buildings
RIZREEEE

Land bank
TitfE

—E-REFE RNUBXREEERAT
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Capital Structure

As at 31st December, 2015, total equity attributable
to shareholders of the Company amounted to
HK$25,560,015,000 (2014: HK$29,762,327,000),
while the net asset value per share was HK$6.98 (2014:
HK$8.14). As at 31st December, 2015, the Group's
gearing ratio (on the basis of the amount of total liabilities
divided by the amount of total assets) was 77.3% (2014:
73.6%).

As at 31st December, 2015, the Group had an
outstanding bank and other borrowings (including
the notes payable) of HK$53,243,832,000. In
terms of maturity, the outstanding bank and other
borrowings (including notes payable) can be divided
into HK$17,805,446,000 (33%) to be repaid within
one year, HK$21,629,607,000 (41%) to be repaid after
one year but within two years, HK$13,329,613,000
(25%) to be repaid after two years but within five years,
HK$479,166,000 (1%) to be repaid after five years. In
terms of currency denomination, the outstanding bank
and other borrowings (including the notes payable) can
be divided into HK$43,130,410,000 (81%) in Renminbi,
HK$7,015,652,000 (13%) in United State dollars, and
HK$3,097,770,000 (6%) in Hong Kong dollars.

47.9% of the bank and other borrowings (including
the notes payable) of the Group are subject to fixed
interest rates and the remaining 52.1% are subject to
floating interest rates. Therefore, under circumstances of
interest rates uncertainty or fluctuations or otherwise as
appropriate, the Group will consider the use of hedging
instruments (including interest rates swaps) in order to
manage interest rate risks.

As at 31st December, 2015, the Group had a net current
assets of HK$49,369,077,000 and total bank balances
of HK$18,348,554,000 (2014: HK$53,876,791,000 and
HK$17,756,204,000 respectively). With the available
banking facilities and cash revenue from business
operations, it is believed that the Group has sufficient
resources to meet the foreseeable working capital
demands and capital expenditure.
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The monetary assets and liabilities and business
transactions of the Group are mainly carried and
conducted in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
States dollars. The Group maintains a prudent strategy
in its foreign exchange risk management, where foreign
exchange risks are minimised via balancing the monetary
assets versus monetary liabilities, and foreign exchange
revenue versus foreign exchange expenditures. The
management believes that the foreign exchange rate
between Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars is
relatively stable. Due to recent devaluation of Renminbi
exchange rate against Hong Kong dollars, the Group
closely monitors the fluctuation and adopts policy to
minimise exchange rate risks, if necessary.

Pledge of Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of
the Group's assets which were pledged to secure credit
facilities granted to the Group are as follows:
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AEBENEELRRBREBRRZTRENA
T ARBRETREMIIERET - REBE
SNERBER ST EARERZ T BBTEE
BEERGEABULINERASEINEF » 1
HNERBIRERIE - BIREMEE BTHETZ
EXEHERE - ARKIOARE L BTTE R
B AEETESFKD - WAL 2R REUEE
TR EE & [

BEEEA
RBEHR - FEBCEMMER T EEERN(E
ERENERNEEREEDNT :

The Group
rEH

2015 2014
—EB-AfF —E-mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FHTT
Investment properties BEYE 4,532,142 3,949,832
Hotel properties NV ES 503,929 702,911
Buildings EF 104,254 113,432
Prepaid lease payments AR ERIE 191,321 284,095
Properties under development BERPYE 17,782,220 24,036,940
Properties held for sale BIEHEYE 1,319,957 2,195,906
Bank deposits IRITIER 440,437 1,519,231
24,874,260 32,802,347

—T-RAEH RAUBKEEARAT
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In addition to above pledge of assets, at 31st December,
2015 and 2014, the Group’s interests in certain
subsidiaries was pledged to secure credit facilities granted
to the Group. The details of net asset value of subsidiaries
are as follows:

B D EEERIN R_E-HFER T -NEF
TZA=1+—8  AEERETHE QA ER
MEERERAEEERNEERENER - It
BRRBEEFENFBNT

2015 2014

—E-fHE —E A

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FET

Total assets BEHEE 12,498,665 6,802,099
Total liabilities BB (11,466,405) (5,966,803)
Balance at end of the year FRER 1,032,260 835,296

Contingent Liabilities

The Group arranged mortgage loan facilities with certain
banks for purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to banks to secure obligations of such
purchasers of repayment. The maximum guarantees
given to banks amounted to HK$22,704,939,000 as at
31st December, 2015 (2014: HK$19,283,061,000). Such
guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i) issue of the
real estate ownership certificate; and (ii) the satisfaction
of the mortgage loans by the buyers of the properties.
The Group has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of these guarantees as its fair value is considered
to be minimal by the Directors. The Directors also consider
that the fair value of the underlying properties is able to
cover the outstanding mortgage loans generated by the
Group in the event the purchasers default payments to
the banks.
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At 31st December, 2015, the Group had given
guarantees to certain banks in respect of credit facilities
granted to certain associates and joint ventures
of the Group amounting to HK$1,827,619,000
(2014: HK$1,177,215,000) and HK$952,381,000
(2014: HK$2,849,342,000) respectively, of which
HK$1,827,619,000 (2014: HK$1,177,215,000) and
HK$952,381,000 (2014: HK$2,849,342,000) had been
utilised by the associates and joint ventures respectively.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December, 2015, the Group employed 12,078
employees with remuneration for the year amounted to
HK$1,057,810,000. The Group provides its employee
with various benefits including year-ended double-pay,
contributory provident fund and medical insurance. In
addition, share options and discretionary bonuses are
also granted based on the Group’s and individual’s
performance. Employee training is also provided as and
when required.
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“E-HFERUEEREAERE

Poly Property Group Co., Limited (“Poly Property”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) aspires
to be a leading property developer in China with an
illustrious brand name enriched by intrinsic cultural
qualities. Blessed with a distinguished corporate culture
that calls for dedication and integrity, the Group adopts
a development strategy that emphasises professionalism,
culture, marketisation and internationalisation, seeking to
build a pleasant living environment for homebuyers and
deliver sound returns to its shareholders by enhancing the
architectural quality and commercial value of its property
projects, while also fulfilling its social responsibilities
to add value for the community and build a positive
corporate image.

COMMUNITY WELFARE

Our enterprise spirit is to construct for the Chinese
people, to insist our company culture and to build up a
beautiful home. Poly Property Group has been thinking
much of social responsibilities, so as to make our
company culture warm people's life.

The Group has a longstanding tradition of engagement
in community welfare, striving to light up lives with
compassion and unite positive forces in the society with
action in fulfilment of its corporate social responsibility.
With the establishment of Poly Property Blue Charity,
philanthropic events in various local regions are centrally
organised through Poly Property Blue Charity, forming
a series of large-scale cultural and charitable campaigns
under the Poly Property brand, raising public awareness
for social and environmental problems and uniting efforts
to seek improvements.

Poly Property has established its foothold in more than
20 Chinese cities and built Blue Charity bases across the
nation. Through cooperation among different cities, such
as Beijing, Hong Kong, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen,
Chonggqing, Jinan, Wuhan, Harbin, Nanning, Guiyang,
Kunming, Suzhou, Ningbo, Yantai, Weihai, Huizhou,
Foshan and Zunyi, the philosophy of Poly Property Blue
Charity has been propagated throughout the country.
Through six Blue Charity operations, efforts are being
made towards children’s programme, environmental
protection, elderly care, aid for underprivileged groups
and disaster relief to pass on positive social forces.
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Poly Property Blue Charity is dedicated to the development
of six charity operations, namely, Future Project, Earth
Project, Ribbon Project, Exceed Project, Care Project and
Tent Project. The Blue Charity operations of Poly Property
constitute a platform on which the subsidiaries and
employees of Poly Property, owners and club members
of Poly Property developments as well as members of the
public engage themselves in various community welfare
initiatives to show charity in action and form a united
force with many humble deeds of kindness so that more
people will experience care and our battered Earth will
once again be brightened up.

FUTURE PROJECT: CARE FOR CHILDREN

Our children are the ones upon which the futures of our
families, our nation and our race depend. With an active
concern for the growth of youngsters, Poly Property
is committed to the provision of a healthier and more
comfortable growth environment for youngsters across
the country and the enhancement of their artistic and
cultural education.

In 2015, Poly Property hosted hundreds of “Poly Artists”
events in Shanghai, Suzhou, Ningbo, Guangzhou, Foshan,
Shenzhen, Nanning, Kunming, Wuhan, Jinan to provide
the artistic youth nationwide with a stage for exhibition,
competition and learning. In May, Shandong Weihai Poly
Property organised a series of activities, namely the "A
Hundred-meter Scroll” series, all donations were entirely
donated to Jue County Primary School in the Liangshan Yi
autonomous prefecture of Sichuan Province. On 8th June,
Zhejiang Poly reached out its hand to En Mei Children’s
Welfare Home with care and compassion. From June to
October, Suzhou Poly Property joined hands with the
local volunteers’ associations and hosted the “One book,
One Hope” event to procure funds by organising events,
including the one-dollar cigarette charity sales and book
donation, to construct a library for the rural children
in mountain area in Shanxi. During summer vacation,
a summer camp under a donation scheme was held by
Shandong Poly. With the presence of the primary school
students and the owners of Poly’s property, Shandong
Poly donated books to Shi Wu Primary School in Jinan.
In July, Shanghai Poly and postgraduates from Fudan
University worked hand in hand to help children from
the rural area in Xiji Country of South Ningxia to travel
to Shanghai, where they visited the Shanghai Poly Grand
Theatre, enjoyed brilliant performances and donated
learning accessories to them, compassionately embracing
them with the culture in good faith. In September,
Guangdong Poly organized several charity auctions to
raise funds for the children from mountain area.
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EARTH PROJECT: ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

Environmental protection has long been a priority on
the agenda of social issues, as the rapid development
of the human society has taken its toll with aggravating
conditions in problems such as the discharge of polluted
air, waste water and solid waste, white pollution,
deforestation and water pollution. In proactive fulfilment
of its duty as a central state-owned enterprise, Poly
Property has readily taken on the mission of promoting
environmental protection campaigns in the community.
Earth Project advocates environmental protection and
organises related activities in various local regions
through more than 20 subsidiaries of Poly Property
operating across the nation, doing anything in its power
to contribute to the betterment of Mother Earth.

In the spring of 2015, Poly Hotel Wuhan, the Shanghai
subsidiary and the Heilongjiang subsidiary organised a
tree-planting event for their employees and owners of
their property to illuminate the spring greenery, showing
their commitment to environmental protection. With an
aim to raise environmental awareness of the public, Poly
Heilongjiang hosted a walk event in the city center of
Harbin in October.

RIBBON PROJECT: CARE FOR THE
ELDERLY

Honouring the aged is a traditional virtue of the Chinese
people that underlines the fundamental spirit of Ribbon
Project. Through Ribbon Project, Poly Property is actively
engaged in charitable campaigns for the elderly, calling
for all parties in the society to put their charity in practice
by showing respect for its senior members and rallying for
elderly services.

On 9th February 2015, Zhejiang Poly Property team made
a visit to the Ningbo Guangan Elderly Home with children
from the Poly Artists Group for the third consecutive year
and delivered bedding sets and fresh fruits into the hands
of the elderly, bringing laughter into the elderly home
with their performance. On the eve of the Spring Festival
in 2015, Poly Yantai in Shandong Province initiated the
“New year with the Elderly” event. On 20th May, Poly
Guizhou and General Hospital of Chinese People’s Armed
Police Force worked hand in hand to provide free medical
consultation services in the Poly Yunshan Community. On
9 June, the Taichi Association in Zunyi City organised a
thrilling academic exchange session in Poly Metropolis of
Future.

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED Annual Report 2015

EMIR1TE | RIBRE

BEEABEENRRER BN 585
2 BRMEUR - AOTRERE RBERE - RER
ECRAZFNLGRREE - RIEXEBE
BRABE - AERESFHIRFRIBOED
EMRTHUARNBEEXEZBE —_+2XEERR
B MBMERRAE T EERENE  BE
RIRTTE - HE—UIAENNE - RURERE
R —# AR IR o

—2-REET  RERFABE - HERATL
RBETATSAKET - EXBITHBER
E8 - BETAEREME  SBRRONER
WAL T8 - BESTRFZRBAE TR
ERBRE AT - EH S HRRBERIRNA
o

BT BIEERE

EZHERTERKEREE HEEFAZE
HEBTTBI LB » (RAE XEATITENEK
HREFARDAY  BE2HEEEWE - &
BEMEATE  BHEEZHARSEZEENK
fhe

“ZE-RAF-ANB WIRMEZERET R
MEME N AR EE=FRINERELER
Br > BRm=1FE - MEKREWEXZZATF
o PR MRBR RN EZAMKETE - —
T-REFRHMHA Y - WREGRMERLIZEE
W-REREANBF RS - AA-1TH &M
RIBEFRELRBEERNEULRBRED
IRIGEE) - NANE - EEMEKEEEHAE
W& AR NE IR T — 5 hIF L E
ABEXALEM TG °



EXCEED PROJECT: ENHANCING
PATRIOTISM

The Exceed Project utilised rich resources available from
China Poly Group Corporation (“China Poly”) to organise
activities in national education for the enhancement of
national pride and patriotism.

In 2015, the “Poly Exhibition of Weapons in National
Defence” toured through Jinan, Guiyang, Zunyi,
Guangzhou, Foshan, Nanning, together with the National
Treasure exhibition which was held in Yunnan and
Shanghai, had attracted hundred thousands of local
citizens to visit, showcasing the fruitful achievements of
national defence construction and promoting patriotism
and people’s responsibility towards the nation. “Poly
Scout” summer camp was organised for the children in
Guangzhou, Foshan, Nanning, Liuzhou, Jinan, Yantai,
Weihai to promote military spirit and preserve the potent
spirit of defending our nation and people. On 18th June,
Poly Property Hubei paid a visit and showed care to five
war veteran who recounted their wartime stories with
passionate patriotism in Wuhan.

On the Army Day, Shenzhen Poly Cultural Plaza and the
organizers from the Nanshan District co-organised the
national calligraphy exhibition, exhibiting hundreds of
generals’ works of calligraphy and painting. Poly Property
Suzhou and the Yunnan subsidiary delivered gifts and
offered their best wishes to the local police and officials.

CARE PROJECT: AID FOR THE
IMPOVERISHED

With its active engagement in relief for backward regions
and aid for the impoverished, Care Project lets in a ray
of hope to impoverished regions and eases the worries
of the underprivileged, enabling more people to live in
warmth and security.

In 2015, Poly Guizhou echoed with the provincial
commissions and government in Guizhou to call for
poverty alleviation work in Ceheng County, included
donating ten computers, training funds for young talents
and sending professionals of the Company to engage in
the city planning and development work. Poly Property
Yunnan took the initiative to reach the impoverished
families. On the eve of Mid-Autumn Festival, commodities
such as rice, edible oil and mooncakes were delivered
into the hands of four elderly people living in poverty.
Furthermore, Poly Property Yunnan set up a platform,
including a donation box and used-clothes recycling spot
at the customer service front desk for the owners of Poly
Property, to accept donations, which were to be delivered
to the poor families.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT 2015 =&

—HELEHERERE

TE)  BEABEERE

B HNET

FHRETRREEDBERFEE QB (R ERF
MDBANERESENOZREY - BOE
REREBEMZ  RARKEBSZBEETERE

—T—hF - Em - BB 8E - BN L
AESHAESER TR BERMNE T LRE]
BREZEAR DERPTEREIENER 2
FEPERGERR  ABEEREIREEER
ﬂ&%lT%H’“”‘iﬁzﬁi%ﬁfEﬁEE M~ L
M - N BB ER - BUBRE AT
E‘E#J#H%?T'JE%EJEA** ShE RV B IR ER AR -
BARBENMEBE - XA TA\R - HILRFEE
FEh TREMAMREE L - (AEBREB SR
MR  BREFNINERFE  LAERTHH
BEIGHIE o

N—ZEBZE - FIMRAN L ES SR E WL

BHARSEMRRES TEZ | 5EEEEERE

) RAMEBEFHMNARANEE AR AERE
FOXEH BRI mMBeE o

BEEATTH  KEER

MEEX T THRBEGRERILE - HHR

MAR  RERMERS —EEX  RERAR
BEUFRE  REZWAREBRERENE
& e

“Z-hF BMRIEREREMNEE AR
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?&l{’ﬁ%ﬁﬁ EREBMT % ME
BREKTE  SFEASTERLE  IHRHA
ﬁﬁij\z“’}éﬁiﬂﬁ+ﬁm%ﬁﬂ BRI - RA
EXVEEFERRIHREERNSHERK

B - FREREE) - HIRERTS - m%Kﬂ— R
FM -~ RIKASIERER MR BRRENRELUE

REBENFERAMFEA ° 1ol - (RAIEEY)
ERFR/RANEZARAFERE VERTYE
EERAGEFIREZLEEME  KYEWRE
WS G — GHX B R R R KT -

—T-RAEH RAUBKEEARAT

63



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT 2015 —Z— A F ¥ 2FFRE

TENT PROJECT: DISASTER RELIEF

Tent Project serves as an active driving force behind
the participation of local Poly Property companies in
disaster relief campaigns, ensuring that relief supply kits
was delivered to the wanting victims in a more efficient
and timely manner. Poly Property was devoted to the
relief work in the massive earthquakes such as Ninglang
earthquake (2012), Ya'an earthquake (2013) and the
fierce Typhoon Fitow and donated supplies to the victims.

The Group believes that it is imperative to maintain sound
information exchange with employees. Interaction with
staff, as well as dissemination of the Company’s latest
news to staff and the public, are facilitated through a
variety of means, such as WeChat and Weibo, with a
view to facilitating the communication of key business
information, brand development and staff affairs on
a consolidated platform and maintaining close liaison
between colleagues in the Mainland and those in
Hong Kong via online social media. In order to provide
convenience for employees and enhance work efficiency,
the Company is vigorously developing an online office
with comprehensive functions to enable staffs to check
information of the Company and handle relevant business
whether they are at the office, on business trips or
working at home.

The Group provides its employees with a platform for
ongoing development and helps them to realise their
maximum potential to build a successful career. Since
2013, Poly Property has been organising week-long
leadership officer training and young backup officer
training sessions on an annual basis to continue to
enhance the Group’s competitiveness and productivity on
an ongoing basis. Moreover, the Group has started the
recruitment of management trainees since 2013 to bring
in fresh manpower with good potential. These trainees
are given systematic trainings and assigned to different
departments, so that more high-calibre employees will be
groomed.

To cement solidarity and enhance communication and
harmonious relations among employees, the Group
organized a wide rage of events, such as sporting
tournaments, dinner parties and Christmas gatherings.
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HUMAN RESOURCES ADER
Overview of the Group’s Employees AEEEITHR
Staff headcount
BT/ (B A)
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Analysed by gender BRIBELZET A
Male
E
Female
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Analysed by age and location RERNBES D
Location Age Male Female
E Fie ] z
Hong Kong >50 7 3
BB 41-50 6 11
31-40 5 8
<31 4 4
Shanghai >50 73 31
indis] 41-50 136 80
31-40 189 198
<31 235 270
Other locations >50 344 198
H b= 41-50 1,134 955
31-40 1,647 1,273
<31 2,786 2,481
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SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Group believes that it is extremely important to
maintain sound communication and close liaison with
shareholders and investors as a means to enhance
transparency in corporate governance.

Currently, the Company conducts roadshows in Hong
Kong, Singapore and Europe from time to time so that
more investors can gain insight into the Company’s
business, while our board of directors can also understand
more effectively investors’ views and suggestions in
respect of the Group’s development strategies. The
Company often organises investors to visit our project
sites to gain a more in-depth understanding of the actual
progress of the Group’s business development.

Moreover, the Group also ensure that shareholders can
engage in direct dialogues with the management of the
Company through every annual general meeting. The
Group hold press conferences and analysts’ meetings are
held following the biannual announcements of business
results and the press conferences would be subsequently
broadcast online at the Company’s website for public
viewing.

SUPPLIER MANAGEMENT

To strengthen tender management, regulate tender
operations and enhance the effect of cost management
at Poly Property, the Group has formulated the Tender
Management Measures, while the regional companies
have drawn up detailed procedures each according to
its specific conditions and established transparent tender
systems to ensure that tender operations are conducted
in a fair, open and impartial manner.
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The Group has formulated the Administrative Measures
for the Assessment of Partners to regulate the
management of its partners, strengthen comprehensive
management and assessment through the process, drive
their continuous improvement, enhance their overall
ability in contract performance, lower related control
risks and improve product quality. Partners are assessed
and graded on the basis of assessment scores. Rewards
or penalties are given and areas for improvements are
noted on the basis of grading results and terms stipulated
in contracts. Partners who have failed in the assessment
are prohibited from participation in new tenders, while
research and exchange with partners with outstanding
assessment results are enhanced in accordance with the
mechanism for visits.

In selecting suppliers with outstanding quality who can
meet the requirements of our project development,
the Group considers whether suppliers demonstrate
strengths and growth potentials that are consistent with
the development strategies of Poly Property; whether
the business philosophy of suppliers is in line with Poly
Property’s distinctive brand name and product quality;
whether products manufactured by the suppliers are
in compliance with national regulations and corporate
standards and in line with the specific requirements for
green building projects; and whether the general tender
requirements are met at reasonable pricing.

While emphasising the improvement of our corporate
brand and product quality, the Group also experiments
the application of new materials, technologies and
processes on a regular basis and implements green
property development in the course of project
development. We are very careful with the selection
of eco-friendly building materials as well as equipment
manufacturers.
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SAFETY PRODUCTION MANAGEMENT

In 2015, Poly Property Group implemented the national
safety production guide in accordance with the
requirements set out in {Measures for the supervision
and administration of production safety in China Poly
Group Corporation) and the relevant laws, regulations
and standards, refined the structure of safety production
management, worked out the responsibility main body for
safety production, organized and carried out inspection of
safety production inspection and supervision at all levels
and further strengthened evaluation process on persons
in-charge of the entity with regard to their performance
on safety production duties in order to ensure stable and
safe production throughout the year.

In respect of safety production, Poly Property established
an independent supervisory management department —
Safety Supervision Department. The Safety Supervision
Department is responsible for executing work initiatives
set out by the safety management committee, establishing
a comprehensive safety production management system,
arranging supervisory management and assessments on
safety production and handling the communications,
promotions and trainings with respect to various
types of workplace safety laws and regulations. In the
meantime, being an integrated management division in
relation to the safety production of properties, the Safety
Supervision Department carried out coordination work
and supervisory work on safety production management
among other functional departments so as to further
improve the safety management system with full coverage
on the Company in all aspects and processes.

From 5th April to 23rd April, Poly Property conducted
an annual inspection on the safety production of
its construction in progress. The Company carried
out random inspections on several projects under
construction, with a total construction area of 1.5 million
sq.m. In the inspection, safety threats or deficiencies
in relation to safety management, scaffold, formwork
support, electricity usage for construction, construction
equipment and work-at-height operations were found
and rectified and improved on site in a timely manner,
which can effectively prevent the occurrence of significant
accidents and has elevated Poly Property’s overall level of
safety management in construction projects.
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From July to December, the Group’s property companies
arranged a full-scale safety production check on
residential projects, inspecting the residential projects and
projects of the sales office in 16 regions throughout the
country. The primarily focus of the inspection is on the
day-to-day operation and maintenance with regard to the
fire service installations and equipment, safety equipment,
special equipment, gymnasium facilities and recreational
facilities for children and a respective inspection report
was prepared for each item. Rectifications on each project
were performed in a timely manner, and different types of
threats were all stamped out with measures on schedule
by the responsible party, ensuring that the production as
a whole was in control.

In August, Poly Property arranged the internal and
external specialists to conduct spot checks on the
operating properties of Poly Property and to perform
inspection on safety production. The specialists proposed
several measures for focused improvement according
to actual situations on site, and achieved satisfactory
outcome.

From June to November, each operating property
altogether carried out eighteen fire drills. The
constructions under progress altogether conducted
sixty-five emergency drills for various scenarios, included
scaffold collapse, formwork collapse, fire and electrical
shock. The monthly safety event elevated the level of
coordination among the emergency services and equipped
them with a hands-on experience to tackle emergencies
in a timely, systematic and effective way. It also laid a
solid foundation for their timely and organised emergency
services in various accidents.

CUSTOMER SERVICE

The Group has always aimed to ensure customer
satisfaction by achieving excellence in management.
Poly Property is determined to become an unrelenting
forerunner in China’s property industry and an
outstanding green enterprise by consistently delivering
high-quality residential property products and advocating
the development and application of eco-friendly
technologies.
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Poly Joyful Club is a non-profit-making membership
organisation established by the Group for the purpose
of enhancing its service quality, providing customers
with access to a broader range of professional property
purchase and daily services and maximising mutual
benefits. Poly Joyful Club is an important platform for the
communication, understanding and exchange between
Poly Property and customers which offers additional
personalised services to members through a diverse range
of exciting activities for members, all-rounded property
purchase services, the Club Newsletter that provides
timely information updates and other thoughtful,
interactive events. It seeks to reward all owners who
have bought their homes from Poly Property with better
services and foster long-term relationships with them, and
it also seeks to offer more new experiences to customers
by broadening its information sharing platform.

In 2015, Poly Joyful Club organised hundreds of activities
framed with the brand theme of “Share with You”
for its members in the city where it operates. Culture
exchange, field trips for cultural art appreciation,
exhibition of historical relics, children’s musical, visits
to Poly Community University were organised for the
members and property owners to immerse themselves in
the fascinating cultural heritage. Members were involved
in various activities including banquets, group birthday
parties, family-photo taking activities and the Suburb
Excursion to share the heart-warming moments with the
members. To share its gains and joyful moments with its
members, Poly Joyful Club always organises consumer
rewards activities, including dinner parties and banquets.
For members to share their mutual interests and
aspirations, gatherings in connection to car racing, golf,
MBA association and tea ceremony are held. Meanwhile,
since Poly Property emphasizes on the constitution and
health development of its members and clients, running
event, cycling competition and sports day for property
owners are organised to share the joy of sports.
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In order to ensure that customers are able to acquire
relevant information and furnish their feedback in a timely
manner, the Company communicates with customers
through online media such as its official website
(http://www.polyhongkong.com/index.html), the website
of Poly Joyful Club (http://club.polyhongkong.com/about/
index.html), official Weibo account, WeChat accounts
of Poly Property (WeChat account ID: polyhk) and Poly
Joyful Club (WeChat account ID: polyhkclub). In 2015, in
response to the development of the Internet, Poly Joyful
Club developed a customised member system on WeChat
with the ID ‘Poly Joyful Club ({RF|{&1% &), and organised
Tao “Po” Double 11 ("{&"#11) and Poly year-end
award to reinforce the online to offline interaction with
its member by various means, which has further improved
the member services system on mobile and enhanced
the communication among the members and property
owners.

Moreover, the Group communicates key business
information, brand development updates and news of
members’ activities to the staffs of poly property, property
owners, Joyful Club members and partners through POLY
PROPERTY (& F| 4& 1% »). The Group publishes POLY
PROPERTY in both electronic and printed versions to cater
to people with different reading habits.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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This corporate governance report (“CG Report”) presents
the corporate governance matters of Poly Property Group
Co., Limited (the “Company”, and together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) during the period covering the
financial period ended 31st December, 2015 and up to
the date of this CG Report (“CG Period”). The Company
devotes to the best practice on corporate governance,
and to comply to the extent practicable, with the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) .

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the CG Period, the Company has complied
with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code, other
than code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4, A.5.6 and E.1.2. The
reasons for deviations are explained below:

Code Provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the CG Code
— Nomination Committee

Under code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the CG
Code, listed issuers should, among others, establish
a nomination committee with specific written terms
of reference. The Company has considered the merits
of establishing a nomination committee but is of the
view that it is in the best interests of the Company that
the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
collectively reviews, deliberates on and approves the
structure, size and composition of the Board and the
appointment of any new director. The Board is tasked
with ensuring that it has a balanced composition of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
businesses of the Group and that appropriate individuals
with the relevant expertise and leadership qualities are
appointed to the Board to complement the capabilities of
the existing directors.

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED Annual Report 2015

AEEARE([AEEARRS ) 2IRFNER
SEBERQB([ARE ] EZREMBARER
[(REEDBEE—T-—AF+-A=+—HILH
BHEAREEACEE AR E 2 A BHRE (1
XEABEHME D 2EXEREE - ARARHD
ETRELRERFR  LEDEATERTE
TEEMARZMBERAAES WA LT
HA DM+ mmEneRE aTRI([EXER
STRIDZHE ©

4}

BTIEER

Al

AARREEERREHEAN—EETLEER
SPRIFTELSFAINE S - R EE TR Z SFAIEX
BEAS51EAS54 - AS6REI2ERIN  REER
EHAMT :

EERTA ZF AR EASA1ZEALAE
— REZEE
BECEERTAUNZTAUKEXEASIZEASS
& EWBITARERRE) KN IREEES
EMARTAEBEHE - AAREEEKIIR
HEEENEE  WRARARAESE([ES
e | )ARERN BRI EESESHERE - B
NARARZEHEEHFEARRNRERNZ ©
EEC R AR EHABHAAERELIE
AREEEE 2 AT4EAK c R BT EFHRERE
HMHEBRELENEE AR INAZESE » Bk
MBESENSREEAERE °



Code Provisions A.5.6 of the CG Code

— Board Diversity Policy

Under code provision A.5.6 of the CG code, the
nomination committee (or the board) of a listed issuer
should have a policy concerning the diversity of board
members, and should disclose the policy or a summary of
the policy in the corporate governance report. In March
2015, the Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) with an aim to promote broad
experience and diversity on the Board and has made it
available on the Company’s website.

The objectives of the Board Diversity Policy include:

(i) selection of candidates for directorship will be
based on a broad range of perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and other factors
that the Board may consider relevant and
applicable from time to time. The ultimate decision
is based on merit and contribution that the
selected Board members could bring to the Board;

(ii) the Board should possess a balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirement of the
business of the Company. The Directors should
have a mix of finance, legal and management
qualifications with considerable experience in
diversified business; and

(iii) the Board has, from time to time, reviewed and
monitored the implementation of the policy to
ensure its effectiveness. It will at appropriate time
set measurable objectives for achieving diversity
on the Board.

Appointments to the Board should be made in the context
of complementing and expanding the skills, knowledge
and experience of the Board as a whole and candidates
will be considered against measureable objectives, taking
into account the Company’s business and needs.
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Code Provisions E.1.2 of the CG Code

— Attendance of Chairman of the Board at the
AGM

The chairman of the board (the “Chairman”) should
attend annual general meetings. Due to important
engagement at the relevant time, Mr. Xue Ming, the
Chairman, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM") held on 27th May,
2015.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in
the CG Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
SET OUT IN APPENDIX 10 TO THE
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“"Model Code"”). Having made specific enquiry of all the
directors of the Company (“Directors”), all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
and the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions adopted by the Company throughout the CG
Period.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board comprises four executive directors (“ED"), one
non-executive director (“NED"”) and three independent
non-executive directors (“INED"). The three INEDs,
representing more than one-third of the Board, have
constituted a proper balance of power maintaining
full and effective control of both the Group and its
management. The Company has received from each of
the INEDs a written confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules and has
considered that all INEDs are independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules. Biographical particulars of the Directors are set out
on pages 90 to 94.
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Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board collectively takes responsibility for all major
matters of the Company, including the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies,
internal control and risk management systems, financial
information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. The day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Managing Director and
the management. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transaction entered into by
the officers.

Chairman and Chief Executive

In order to reinforce their respective independence,
accountability and responsibility, the role of the
Chairman is separated from that of the managing
director of the Company (the “Managing Director”).
The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in accordance
with good corporate governance practice and ensuring
the effectiveness of the Board. With the support of
the management, the Chairman is also responsible for
ensuring that the Directors receive adequate, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Managing Director focuses on managing the
Company and its subsidiaries, developing and
implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board. In addition, the
Managing Director is in charge of the Group’s day-to-
day management and operations and is also responsible
for developing strategic plans and formulating the
organisational structure, control systems and internal
procedures and processes for the Board's approval.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The appointment of the directorship is subject to, as to
EDs, retirement, rotation and re-election at least once
every three financial years and, as to NED and INEDs, their
specific term of office or their retirement by rotation at
AGM, at which they being eligible can offer themselves for
re-election.

Separate resolutions are proposed for the election of
each director. One-third of the Directors, or if the number
is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
one-third, must retire from office at each AGM and their
re-election is subject to a vote of the shareholders. Any
Director appointed during the year to fill a casual vacancy
is subject to re-election at the next AGM.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Xue Ming, Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert
and Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia shall retire by rotation
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and
operating performance of the Group and to discuss
future strategy. Four regular Board meetings were held
in 2015. At the Board meetings, the Board reviewed
significant matters including the Group’s annual and
interim financial statements, proposals for final and
interim dividends, annual report and interim report and
the establishment of risk management committee of the
Company. At least 14 days’ notice is given to all Directors
for all regular Board meetings and all Directors are given
the opportunity to include matters for discussion in the
agenda. The agenda and Board papers for each meeting
are sent to all Directors at least three days in advance of
every regular Board meeting. All minutes of the Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary of the
Company (the "Company Secretary”) and are available
to all Directors for inspection. In addition, the chairman
of the Board had an annual interchange with all the
non-executive Directors (including the independent ones)
of the Company without the other executive Directors
present.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board
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meetings and AGM in 2015 is set out below: RIBFRGHHE R
Name of Directors Board capacity Attendance AGM
EEpA RESEZ254% HE=E RRBFARE
Xue Ming ED, Chairman 4/4 -
B WITES  £/F
Han Qingtao ED, Managing Director 4/4 v
G = BITES  SFMELKRE
Wang Xu ED 4/4 -
T8 WMITES
Ye Li Wen ED 4/4 v
TR HITES
lp Chun Chung, Robert NED 4/4 v
EiRE FMITES
Choy Shu Kwan INED 4/4 v
29k B IENITES
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia INED 4/4 v
RHEL B IFITES
Wong Ka Lun INED 4/4 v
e B IENITES
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Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development

All Directors, including INEDs, should have good
understanding as to their collective responsibilities
as directors and the businesses and activities of the
Group. Each newly appointed Director would receive an
induction package covering the Group’s businesses and
the statutory and regulatory obligations of a director
of a listed company. The Group also provides briefings
and other training to develop and refresh the Directors’
knowledge and skills, and updates all Directors on the
latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and to enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices. During the CG Period,
all existing Directors have received relevant trainings on
topics relating to corporate governance and regulations
and have provided their training records. The Company
is of the view that all Directors have complied with code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code based on the above.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liabilities insurance in respect of legal action
arising from the business of the Group against the
Directors and officers.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The role and function of Remuneration Committee of the
Company include:

o formulating remuneration policy;

. recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
policy for the Directors;

o review of, approval of and recommendation
for (if any) the remuneration package of each
Director including benefits in kind, pension right,
performance bonus payment and compensation
payable;

o review and approval of the compensation
payment to any Director upon his/her cessation of
directorship in or employment with the Company;
and

o engagement of external professional advisers to

assist and/or advise Remuneration Committee on
its duties when necessary.
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The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee had
been compiled since the establishment of Remuneration
Committee and were revised in December 2015 and were
endorsed and adopted by the Board. It is available on the
Company’s website.
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During the CG Period, Remuneration Committee held one  HAEEAREHHER - HFIEZES8RT T —X
committee meeting. The composition of Remuneration ZE&&: o @H%E\@Ziﬂﬁﬁiu)}ii,\aié\
Committee and the respective attendance of the %EZ&J*?%?#ZZDTZ
committee members are presented as follows:

Name of Members Board capacity Attendance

ZEMA RESEZ54% HER

Wong Ka Lun (Chairman)  INED 171

=X Mm(EE) W IEITES

Choy Shu Kwan INED Il

589 B IENITES

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia INED 171

REL B IENITES

Xue Ming' ED, Chairman N/A

B WITES 7 A

Wang Xu' ED N/A

FhE WITE=S N iE A

Han Qingtao? ED, Managing Director 1/1

5= PITES  SFHLT
The summary of the work performed by Remuneration  ¥FiZ 8 €7 2B B B RS BB 17 2 TYERE i an
Committee for the financial period under review is as T :

follows:

o endorsement to the remuneration policy for the
Directors; and

. assessment of the performance of EDs, review and
approval of the remuneration package of each
Director including benefits in kind, pension right,
bonus payment and compensation payable.

1 Resigned as a member of Remuneration Committee on 18th
December, 2015.

2 Appointed as a member of Remuneration Committee on 18th
December, 2015.
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DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the
Directors for the financial period under review is set out
in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

Nomination of Directors

The Board shall be composed of members with mixed
skills and experience with appropriate weights necessary
to accomplish the Group’s business development,
strategies, operation, challenges and opportunities. Each
member of the Board shall possess, be recognised for and
be able to exhibit high and professional standard of a set
of core criteria of competence.

The Company had adopted a nomination policy for
the criteria, procedures, and process regarding the
appointment and removal of Directors.

Under the nomination policy, the board of EDs has
been delegated the full power to the administration of
the nomination policy and the appointment and the
termination of directors, where the full Board remains
to have the full and overriding power and absolute right
thereover.

During the CG Period, the EDs held two meetings for
the appointment and resignation of directors of the
Company.

On 10th March, 2015, the Board adopted the board
membership diversity policy for maintaining the
appropriate skills and experience required by the
Company’s business and a diversity of perspectives on the
Board. In considering the new appointment of Directors,
the Board will consider a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge,
and industry and regional experience.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Throughout the CG Period, the Company had maintained
an Audit Committee. The major role and function of the
Audit Committee include:

o monitoring the integrity of the financial statements
of the Group;

o providing independent review and supervision
of the effectiveness of the internal control of the
Group;

o review on the adequacy of the external audits;

o review on the compliance issues with the Listing

Rules and other compliance requirements;

o providing independent views on connected
transactions and transactions involving materially
conflicted interests; and

° considering and reviewing the appointment of the
auditor and the audit fee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee had been
compiled since the establishment of the Audit Committee
and revised by the Board on 21st January, 2009 and
18th December, 2015 respectively. It is available on the
Company’s website.

During the CG Period, the Audit Committee had held
three physical meetings for discussing and/or approving
the final/ interim results of the Group and for discussing
the internal control of the Group.
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The composition of the Audit Committee and the BERZEGZHEKUNZESZESHZHER
respective attendance of the committee members are  #F~ :
presented as follows:

Name of Members Board capacity Attendance

ZEHA REEZESZ254% HFE=

Leung Sau Fun, Sylvia (Chairlady) INED 3/3

REZ(EE) BUIITES

lp Chun Chung, Robert NED 3/3

RS EHMITEF

Choy Shu Kwan INED 3/3

£ B IEMITES

Wong Ka Lun INED 3/3

BERM BWUIFHITES
The report of the work performed by the Audit BZZE@REIEMBEIBMET 2 TIEZHR
Committee for the financial period under review is set out & @ R ABEE eREGIEZZTEERE ] —
in the section headed “Audit Committee Report” of this & e

CG Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established in
December 2015 and currently consists of two EDs being
Mr. Han Qingtao and Mr. Ye Li Wen, one NED being
Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert and three INEDs being Mr.
Choy Shu Kwan (Chairman), Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia
and Mr. Wong Ka Lun.

The major role rule and function of the Risk Management
Committee include:

(@) monitor and review the process of the risk
management and advise to the Board about the
effectiveness of and improvements to be made to
the existing risk management system;

(b) provide guidelines to the management on risk
management and set up procedures to unveil,
assess and manage material risk factors; and
ensure management discharges its responsibility to
implement an effective risk management system;
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review the internal control policies in respect of
the control procedures of risks, including the
risk management and the communication and
co-operation with operating units;

analyse the result of the material investigations on
the risks identified and management’s feedback on
the investigation; and report to the Board with the
findings of deficiencies of the existing risk controls
and make recommendations on improvements;

ensure the risk management is embedded in the
structure and culture of the management team
within the Group;

review and report to the Board the effectiveness
of the risk management system;

review with the Group’s management, external
auditor and internal auditor, the adequacy of the
Group's policies and procedures regarding internal
controls (including financial, operational and
compliance controls), risk management system and
any statement by the directors to be included in
the annual accounts prior to endorsement by the
Board;

review and monitor the scope, effectiveness
and results of internal audit function, ensure
co-ordination between the internal and external
auditor and ensure that the internal audit function
is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group; and

discuss with management the scope and quality of
the risk management and internal control systems
and ensure that management has discharges
its duty to have effective systems including
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes
and budget.

The terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee
has been compiled since the establishment of Risk
Management Committee and has been set out on the
Company’s website.
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Acknowledgement of Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group. In
preparing the accounts for the financial period under
review, the Directors have:

o based on a going concern basis;

o selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently; and

o made judgments and estimates that were prudent,
fair and reasonable.

Review of Internal Control

During the financial period under review, the Directors
had arranged to conduct a review over the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the Group including
functions of financial, operation, compliance and risk
management. The review had been reported to the Audit
Committee. The Directors had also, where necessary,
initiated necessary improvement and reinforcement to the
internal control system.

External Auditor and Their Remuneration

The external audit provides an objective assessment of
the financial information presented by the management.
Shu Lun Pan Union (HK) CPA Limited was engaged as
the Company’s external auditor of the Company. Their
independence and audit process are reviewed and
monitored by the Audit Committee which considered the
scope of the audit work, audit fees, non-audit services as
well as their appointment and retention.

For the year ended 31st December 2015, the fees paid
or payable by the Group to the auditor in respect of their
audit services amounted to approximately HK$7,400,000.
In addition, the Group has also paid HK$3,141,000 to
its network firm in respect of other services provided
to certain subsidiaries in the PRC. Other services
mainly consist of taxation services, advisory and other
professional services.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping
detailed minutes of each meeting of the Board and the
committees including any dissenting views expressed by
the Directors, which should be available to all Directors
for inspection. She is also responsible for ensuring that
the Board procedures comply with all applicable laws,
rules and regulations and advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. All agenda, relevant materials and
documents are required to be sent out at least three days
prior to the intended dates of the Board meetings or
meetings of the Board committees. It is the responsibility
of the Company Secretary to send the draft minutes of
the meetings of the Board or the Board committees to all
Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the
aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings
of the Board and the committees are also required to be
sent to all Directors for record. All Directors have access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
to ensure that the Board procedures and all applicable
laws are followed. Moreover, the Company Secretary
is responsible for keeping all Directors updated on the
Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as well as internal
codes of conduct of the Company.

During the CG Period, the Company Secretary had
confirmed that she had taken no less than fifteen hours
of relevant professional training in accordance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
shareholders of the Company.

Procedures for Convening a General Meeting
Shareholder(s) holding not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders have a right to vote
at general meetings can submit a written requisition to
convene a general meeting in accordance with Section
566 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).
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The written requisition must:

(i) state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the meeting;

(i) contain the signatures of all the requisitionists
(which may be contained in one document or in
several documents in like form); and

(i)  be deposited at the Company’s registered
office (Room 2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower 1,
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong) for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

If Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
general meeting for a day not more than 28 days after the
date on which the notice convening the general meeting
is given, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a general meeting, but
any general meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of 3 months from the said date.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary
through the following methods:

(i) in writing to the Company’s registered office
at Room 2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower I, 18

Harcourt Road, Hong Kong; or

(i) fill in the enquiry form set out in the “Contact Us”
section of the Company’s website.
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Proposing Directors for Election at General
Meetings

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company are laid down in
Article 120 of the Company's Articles of Association:

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for
election as a Director at any general meeting, unless there
shall have been lodged at the registered office of the
Company a notice signed by a member (other than the
person to be proposed) entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected. The period for lodgement of such notices shall
commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and no later than seven days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

Accordingly, if a shareholder wishes to nominate a person
to stand for election as a director of the Company at the
general meeting, the following documents must be validly
served on the Company Secretary at the registered office
of the Company:

(i) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution
at the general meeting; and

(ii) a notice executed by the nominated candidate
of the candidate’s willingness to be appointed
together with:

(a) that candidate’s information as required
to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules and such other information;
and

(b) the candidate’s written consent to the
publication of his/her personal data.

Shareholders” Communication Policy and other Corporate
Governance Principles of the Company could be reviewed
at Company’s website.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on
19th March, 1999. Its composition shall be a minimum of
three members of NEDs with a majority being INEDs. For
the financial period under review, the Audit Committee
comprised all the NED and INEDs of the Company at all
times.

For the financial period under review, the Audit
Committee had performed the following duties:

o reviewed and commented on the audited full year
financial statements and the unaudited interim
financial results of the Group of the financial
period under review before submission to the
Board for adoption and publication;

o endorsed the policy on the engagement of
external auditor for non-audit services;

o met with the auditor to discuss the financial
matters of the Group that arose during the course
of the audit process, and reviewed the findings,
recommendations and representations of the
auditor;

o reviewed and approved the remuneration and the
terms of engagement of the auditor for both audit
services and non-audit services for the financial
period under review; and

o reviewed the internal audit reports and the
Company’s statement on internal control.

After due and careful consideration of the reports from
the management of the Group and the auditor, the
Audit Committee was of the view that no suspected
irregularities, internal control deficiencies, or breach of
regulations had been found. The Company has taken
necessary measures to strengthen its system of internal
control so as to ensure that it is adequate and effective.
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Based on the reviews and discussions performed by the RIEBZZESET 2B Ml BZREE
Audit Committee, the Audit Committee had: g

. recommended to the Board for the approval of the o RAMGEEELER > WEFSERIMED
audited financial statements of the financial period B BEARE 2 S EZM I RE REWN 2B
under review together with the Independent SRERVRE R
Auditor’s Report attached thereto, before the

announcement of the annual results; and

. recommended to the Board for the approval of o RAMHHHIELER @ HESSEHHHED
the unaudited financial statements of the financial FEARBUAM 2 RSB Bk -
period under review before the announcement of

the interim results.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEAEEHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

XUE Ming, aged 54, holds a master’s degree in
Economics from Renmin University of China, a doctorate
degree in Economics and Management from Beijing
Forestry University and is a senior economist with over
35 years' experience in management. Mr. Xue has been
appointed as an executive director of the Company since
April 2006, was the Managing Director of the Company
during the period from July 2009 to October 2014, and
has been the Chairman of the Board of the Company
since April 2010. As the Chairman of the Board, Mr.
Xue is primarily responsible for the overall management,
major decision-making, strategic planning and business
development of the Group. Mr. Xue is also a Deputy
General Manager of China Poly Group Corporation
(“China Poly”) and a director and the General Manager
of Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited (“Poly Holdings").

HAN Qingtao, aged 55, holds an Executive Master
Degree of Business Administration from Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law and has over 20 years’
experience in finance and management. Mr. Han was the
Managing Director of Poly Southern Group Limited (“Poly
Southern”) during the period from December 2005 to
September 2007, an executive director of the Company
during the period from October 2007 to August 2011,
and a senior officer of the Real Estate Department of
China Poly during the period from August 2011 to
October 2014. He has been appointed as the Managing
Director of the Company since October 2014 and is
primarily responsible for the operation and management
of the Group. He is also a director of Poly Holdings.

WANG Xu, aged 56, has been an executive director of
the Company since October 2007. Mr. Wang had been
the Chairman of Poly Southern during the period from
March 2003 to September 2007, the Managing Director
of the Company during the period from October 2007 to
July 2009 and is also a Deputy General Manager of China
Poly and the Chairman of Poly Holdings. Mr. Wang has
over 23 years of extensive experience in investment and
management.
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YE Li Wen, aged 45, holds a bachelor degree from
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics and a
master degree in Business Administration from Beijing
University. Mr. Ye was a senior officer with China
Poly for the period from 1994 to 2001 and has joined
the Company since 2001 as Manager of Investments
Department. He has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company since November 2006 and is
also a Deputy General Manager of the Company with an
experience in management for over 20 years.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

IP Chun Chung, Robert, aged 59, joined the Company
in January 2001 as an independent non-executive
director and a member of Audit Committee and has
redesignated to non-executive director of the Company
since July 2004. He has been appointed as a member
of Risk Management Committee since December 2015.
Mr. Ip has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong since
1985 and is the proprietor of Messrs. Robert C.C. Ip &
Co. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Changhong Jiahua Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8016)
and Value Convergence Holdings Limited (Stock code:
821). Mr. Ip has over 30 years of experience in legal aspects
and more than 15 years of experience in listing related
and corporate takeover, mergers and acquisition areas.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

CHOY Shu Kwan, aged 61, holds a master degree
in Business Administration and has over 35 years’
extensive experience in financial business and investment
management. Mr. Choy worked for the CITIC Group for
20 years in Hong Kong. Before his resignation in 2007,
he was the managing director of CITIC Capital Markets
Limited. Mr. Choy has joined the Company since July
2004 as an independent non-executive director and
members of both Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He has been appointed as the Chairman of
Risk Management Committee since December 2015. Mr.
Choy is also an independent non-executive director of
Skyfame Realty (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 59).
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LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia, aged 52, holds a bachelor
degree in Accountancy from City University of Hong
Kong and a Bachelor of Laws degree from University
of London. She is a chartered secretary and has over
20 years of experience in dealing with listing related
and corporate finance areas. Miss Leung has joined the
Company since August 2010 as an independent non-
executive director and members of both Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee, has been the Chairlady
of Audit Committee since May 2013. She has been
appointed as a member of Risk Management Committee
since December 2015. Miss Leung is also an independent
non-executive director of China Aerospace International
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 31).

WONG Ka Lun, aged 66, holds a bachelor degree
in Social Sciences from The University of Hong Kong
majoring in Economics and Psychology. Mr. Wong had
held various executive and management positions with
Cathy Pacific Airways, John Swire & Sons (China) Limited
and Swire Travel Limited and is currently an Executive
Board Member of Hong Kong Air Cadet Corps and a
Director of the Board of The Hong Kong International
Film Festival Society Limited. He has joined the Company
since November 2012 as an independent non-executive
director and members of both Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee, has been the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee since May 2013. He has been
appointed as a member of Risk Management Committee
since December 2015.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ZHU Weirong, aged 53, holds a master’'s degree
in International Studies from the Department of
International Politics at Peking University. Mr. Zhu joined
the Group in June 2001 and currently acts as a Deputy
General Manager of the Group. He is in charge of Human
Resources Department and Administration Department in
Hong Kong, Executive Directors’ Office, Hubei Investments
Co., Hubei Properties, Hubei Poly Hotel, Beijing Poly Plaza,
Beijing Legend Garden Villas and leasing properties.
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ZHAO Shenhai, aged 58, holds an EMBA from Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law. Mr. Zhao joined the
Group in September 2007 and currently acts as a Deputy
General Manager of the Group. He is in charge of
Human Resources Department in Mainland China, Brand
Marketing Department, Suzhou subsidiaries and property
management services.

WU Guangming, aged 54, holds a PhD in Business
Administration from China Academic Affairs Division
of Liberty University, U.S.A. Dr. Wu joined the Group in
September 2007 and currently acts as a Deputy General
Manager of the Group. He is in charge of Safety Control
and Supervision Department and regional companies in
the southwestern areas such as Guangxi, Guizhou and
Yunnan.

CHAN Hiu Lai, aged 53, holds a bachelor degree in
Economics Management from Navy Engineering College.
Ms. Chan joined the Group in November 2012 and
currently acts as a Deputy General Manager of the
Group. She is in charge of Administration Department in
Mainland China, union work and business management
services.

HAN Ming, aged 53, is a postgraduate of Corporate
Management in Capital University of Economics and
Business. Mr. Han joined the Group in June 2011 and
currently acts as the Chief Accountant of Poly Property
(Shanghai). He is in charge of Financial Management
Department in Mainland China.

ZHAO Guoang, aged 46, holds an EMBA from Tongji
University and is a qualified property valuer. Mr. Zhao
joined the Group in January 2006 and currently acts as
the Chief Economist of the Group. He is in charge of Cost
Contract Department, Shanghai and Zhejiang subsidiaries.
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CHOI Wai Sang, Kenny, aged 44, holds a bachelor
degree in Computer Science from the University of Hong
Kong. He is a Chartered Financial Analyst. Mr. Choi
joined the Group in August 2001 and currently acts as
an Assistant to the General Manager of the Group, a
Managing Director of Poly Property (Hong Kong) Co.,
Limited, and the General Manager of Shanghai Puli Real
Estate Development Company Limited.

PUN Chi Ping, aged 49, holds a master’s degree in
finance management from the City University of Hong
Kong. He is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Pun joined the Group in April
2000 and currently acts as an Assistant to the General
Manager, the Financial Controller and the Compliance
Officer of the Group. He is in charge of the Financial
Management Department in Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY AND
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

POON Man Man, aged 46, holds a Bachelor degree in
Business Administration from Simon Fraser University
in Canada. She is a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, and a member
of the Hong Kong Investor Relations Association. Miss
Poon joined the Group in March 2013 and currently acts
as the company secretary, authorized representative and is
the head of Executive Directors’ Office of the Group.
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The board of Directors present its annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of Poly Property
Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries

(collectively referred to as the
ended 31st December, 2015.

“Group”) for the year

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
51 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended
31st December, 2015 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 111 of this annual
report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2014:
Nil). The Directors do not recommend payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
HK$0.076).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share
capital of the Company are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 31st December, 2015, the investment properties of
the Group were revalued by an independent firm of
professional surveyor and property valuer on an open
market value basis at HK$11,095,284,000.

Details of these and other movements during the year
in the investment properties of the Group are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 18
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserve available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31st December, 2015 represented
the accumulated profits of HK$2,864,398,000 (2014:
HK$915,693,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the
Group for the preceding five financial years is set out on
page 290.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Xue Ming (Chairman)

Han Qingtao (Managing Director)
Wang Xu

Ye Li Wen

Non-executive Director:
Ip Chun Chung, Robert

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Choy Shu Kwan

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia

Wong Ka Lun
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In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Xue Ming, Mr. Ip Chun Chung,
Robert, and Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia will retire and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert, the
non-executive director, and Mr. Choy Shu Kwan, the
independent non-executive directors, is three years from
6th October, 2014, subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company’s Articles of Association.

The term of office of Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia, the
independent non-executive director, is three years from
11th August, 2013, subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company's Articles of Association.

The term of office of Mr. Wong Ka Lun, the independent
non-executive director, is three years from 23rd November
2015, subject to retirement by rotation as required by the
Company's Articles of Association.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive directors
concerning their independence and considered that the
independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31st December, 2015, the interests and short positions
of the directors and their associates in the shares of the
Company and its associated corporations, as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
were as follows:

Long position

Ordinary shares of the Company

Mr. Xue Ming is holding 1,020,000 shares (0.03%) of the
Company.

Mr. Choy Shu Kwan is holding 300,000 shares (0%) of
the Company.

Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia is holding 33,000 shares (0%)
of the Company.

Mr. Wong Ka Lun is deemed to be interested in 80,000
shares (0%) of the Company, being the interests held by
his spouse.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as at 31st December,
2015.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set
out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings set out in note 40, at
no time during the year was the Company or any of its
holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December, 2015, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than the
Interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors,
the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests in the issued shares of the Company:
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Notes:

1. Source Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be interested in
328,485,560 shares of the Company as a result of its direct holding
of 228,398,760 shares and indirect holding of 100,086,800 shares
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Musical Insight Holdings
Limited and Wincall Holding Limited of 44,658,800 shares and
55,428,000 shares, respectively.

2. Ting Shing Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be interested
in 1,366,460,640 shares of the Company as a result of its
indirect holding of 1,366,460,640 shares through its subsidiaries,
Source Holdings Limited and Congratulations Company Ltd. of
328,485,560 shares and 1,037,975,080 shares, respectively.

3. Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be
interested in 1,478,871,116 shares of the Company as a result of
its direct holding of 112,410,476 shares and indirect holding of
1,366,460,640 shares through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Ting
Shing Holdings Limited.

4. China Poly Group Corporation owns 100% of Poly (Hong
Kong) Holdings Limited and Poly Southern Group Limited and
is accordingly deemed by the SFO to be interested in the shares
directly and indirectly owned by Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited
and Poly Southern Group Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions
in the issued shares or underlying shares of the Company
as at 31st December, 2015.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

We set out below the connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions of the Group during
the year pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”):—

(1) The Construction Agreement

The Company entered into a renewal of the
construction agreement with Poly Southern Group
Limited (“Poly Southern”) on 12th November, 2014
(the "Construction Agreement”) for provision of
construction work service and other services ancillary
to the provision of construction work service by
Poly Southern and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to
the renewal of the Construction Agreement, both
parties agreed to renew the Construction Agreement
for a period of three years from 1st January, 2015 to
31st December, 2017. The proposed annual cap for
the construction fee payable under the Construction
Agreement for each of the three years of 2015,
2016 and 2017 is RMB2,100 million, respectively.

The pricing policy of the construction service fee is
determined at the state-prescribed prices or where
there is no state-prescribed prices, on prices no less
favourable than those offered by Poly Southern to
independent third parties or those charged by other
independent third parties to the Group.

Poly Southern is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Poly Group Corporation (“China Poly”), a controlling
shareholder of the Company, and accordingly Poly
Southern is a connected person of the Company. As
such, the renewal of the Construction Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder
therefore constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Rule 14A.31 of
the Listing Rules.
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(2)

The renewal of the Construction Agreement and
the proposed annual caps for each of the three
years ending 31st December, 2017 were approved
by independent shareholders of the Company on
18th December, 2014.

During the year under review, the total construction
service fees paid or payable to Poly Southern under
the Construction Agreement are RMB962,954,000
(approximately HK$1,174,334,000) which did not
exceed the cap of RMB2,100 million.

Financial Framework Agreement

On 31st December, 2013, the Company and
Poly Finance Company Limited (”Poly Finance”)
entered into a financial framework agreement of
a term of three years from 1st January, 2014 to
31st December, 2016 (the “Financial Framework
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Financial Framework
Agreement, the Group will utilise financial services
including deposit services offered by Poly Finance.

Under the terms and conditions of the Financial
Framework Agreement, the Group will from time
to time place deposits with Poly Finance at interest
rates which are more favorable to the Group than
the rates available from an independent third party
for similar services in the PRC. The Group and Poly
Finance will monitor the amount of funds deposited
by the members of the Group from time to time.

The annual caps (being the maximum daily deposit
balance) for the deposit services under the Financial
Framework Agreement for each of the three years
ending 31st December, 2016 is RMB550 million,
respectively.

Poly Finance is owned as to 76% by China Poly,
a controlling shareholder of the Company, and
its associates, and accordingly Poly Finance is a
connected person of the Company. As such, the
Financial Framework Agreement and the deposits
services contemplated thereunder therefore
constitute a continuing connected transaction of the
Company under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules.
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(3)

As all the applicable percentage ratios of the annual
cap for the deposit services under the Financial
Framework Agreement are less than 5%, the
Financial Framework Agreement and the deposit
services contemplated thereunder are subject to
reporting and announcement requirements but
are exempted from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Rule 14A.76(2) of the
Listing Rules.

During the year under review, deposits placed with
Poly Finance did not exceed the maximum daily
balance of RMB550 million. As at 31st December,
2015, deposits of RMB539,681,000 (approximately
HK$642,477,000) were placed with Poly Finance.

Provision of Corporate Guarantee

On 14th August, 2015, each of Guangdong Poly
Property Company Limited (“Guangdong Poly"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
its wholly-owned subsidiary Guangzhou Bao Ying
Property Company Limited (“Guangzhou Bao Ying”)
entered into a corporate guarantee in favour of a
bank as a security for the provision of the loan of
RMB235 million by the bank to Guangzhou Dong
Hao Real Estate Development Company Limited
("Guangzhou Dong Hao"). Guangzhou Dong Hao is
owned by Guangdong Poly, Poly Financial Holding
(Shanghai) Enterprise Development Company
Limited (”Poly Financial Holding Company”) and an
independent third party joint venture partner (“JV
Partner”) as to 55%, 20% and 25%, respectively.
At the same time, each of Poly Financial Holding
Company and the JV Partner has provided a counter
guarantee and indemnity to Guangdong Poly
in respect of 20% and 25% of the guaranteed
obligations of Guangdong Poly and Guangzhou Bao
Ying under the corporate guarantee in proportion to
their respective equity interests in Guangzhou Dong
Hao, such that the effective guaranteed obligations
of Guangdong Poly, Poly Financial Holding Company
and the JV Partner in relation to the loan are in the
respective proportions of 55%, 20% and 25%.
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(4)

Poly Financial Holding Company is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Poly, a controlling shareholder
of the Company and a connected person at the level
of the Company. Therefore, Guangzhou Dong Hao
is a connected subsidiary of the Company and the
provision of the corporate guarantee constitutes
a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As all the applicable percentage ratios exceed 0.1%
but are less than 5%, the provision of the corporate
guarantee is subject to reporting and announcement
requirements and is exempted from the circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

Capital Increase Agreement

On 17th September, 2015, the Company entered
into a capital increase agreement with China
Poly, Poly Technologies Inc., Poly Southern, Poly
(Hong Kong) Holdings Limited, Poly Real Estate
Group Co., Ltd., Credit Suisse AG, Poly Energies
Holdings Co., Ltd., Poly Culture Group Corporation
Limited and Poly Finance (the "Capital Increase
Agreement”), pursuant to which the parties agreed
to increase the registered capital of Poly Finance
from RMB700,000,000 to RMB2,000,000,000.
Upon completion of the capital increase of
RMB1,300,000,000 in the registered capital of Poly
Finance as contemplated under the Capital Increase
Agreement, the proportion of shareholding held by
the Company would increase from 9% to 11.35%
of the enlarged registered capital of Poly Finance.

Poly Finance is owned as to 76% by China Poly,
a controlling shareholder of the Company, and
its associates, and accordingly Poly Finance is a
connected person of the Company. As such, the
transactions contemplated under the Capital Increase
Agreement constitute a connected transaction of the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

104 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED Annual Report 2015

(4)

RAUSELSTERMOZ2EMBE AT @ F
BERANSAATDZEERREARRER
MBEALT - BHith - RIFETHRAIZE14A
B EMNRBESEARB HENBAR
RUABERBRAAR —HBERS -

P T 25 PR 7 5 A9 B3B0.1 B 14
5% « IR A RBRARTRRE DM
TE o MEREER R ST K B T AR R B E Y
B -

BEWZ

RZZE—RAFNLA++HH  AAREFPEH
RA - RAEBHERAR - RFEAS R
AEB)EBRBERAT - RAEME (&
B) D B AR - Credit Suisse AG * {#
FEERIZEBR AR AR ~ RAEEE RS
BRA B RRF IS IEE ek ([1EE
e l) s BBz - ST FREBRF
81 %% 2 st & AN i A R % 700,000,000 7T
#ANE A K #2,000,000,0007C ° Ri#EE
MRS RRFI B E A E AR
1,300,000,0007C5EA% 18 * 72 Blh R FI BF
TEEE R 1B i & AN 2 AR L B #8 9 % 1%
Z11.35% °

R T B 75 ER 7R 2 B 42 AR PR 2R A B4R ) B B
BAERT6% - FULRA P ST AR R E)—
FEBAL - Rt - RIBETRA - EE
B R EPTS R PEBRA R R —RBEER
5 o



As one or more applicable percentage ratios for the
capital increase by the Company under the Capital
Increase Agreement are more than 0.1% but all are
less than 5%, the Capital Increase Agreement and
transactions contemplated thereunder are subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements
but are exempted from the circular (including
independent financial advice) and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Under the terms and conditions of Capital Increase
Agreement, the total contribution to be made by
the Company is approximately RMB175,652,000,
of which RMB46,452,000 is by capitalisation
of capital reserve and retained earnings of Poly
Finance into registered capital of Poly Finance and
RMB129,200,000 (equivalent to HK$154,787,000)
to be settled by cash. As at 31st December, 2015,
the Group has not yet made the cash contribution
which has been recorded as capital commitments in
note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Annual review and confirmation regarding
continuing connected transactions in pursuance
of Rule 14A.55 and 14A.56 of the Listing Rules
The independent non-executive directors of the Company
had reviewed the continuing connected transactions (the
“Transactions”) set out above and confirmed:

1. the Transactions were entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group;

2. the Transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms or better; and

3. the Transactions were entered into in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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The auditor of the Company had reviewed the
Transactions and provided an unqualified letter to the
Board in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules
and confirmed, inter alia, that the Transactions have been
entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the Transactions and the Transactions have not
exceeded their respective annual caps as disclosed in the
relevant announcements and circulars.

Others

A summary of significant related party transactions during
the year are disclosed in note 49 to the consolidated
financial statements. Transactions as disclosed in note
49(a) “Transactions and balances with China Poly Group”
to the consolidated financial statements also constitute
connected/continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules (where applicable) with respect to the
connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No director nor any entity connected with a director is
or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly,
in any transaction, arrangement or contract, which is
of significance to the business of the Group and to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its parent
company and the subsidiaries of its parent company was
a party, subsisting at any time during, or at the end of,
the year ended 31 December 2015.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, both the aggregate sales attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers and the aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
were less than 30% of the Group's sales and purchases,
respectively.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
set up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company
are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as
an incentive to directors and eligible employees, details
of the scheme is set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31st December, 2015.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31st December, 2015 have been audited
by Shu Lun Pan Union (HK) CPA Limited (“Shu Lun Pan
HK"). The term of office of Shu Lun Pan HK will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Shu Lun
Pan HK as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

XUE Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd March, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

|IBDOZ%

T 5%: +852 2218 3812
55 +852 2815 1403

TO THE MEMBERS OF POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO.,
LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Poly Property Group Co., Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereafter referred to as “the Group”) set out
on pages 111 to 289, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st December,
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Tel: +8522218 3812
Fax: +852 2815 1403

18 3 % B R

Room 1609, 16" Floor,
Wing On Centre,
111 Connaught Road Central,

Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT & M # Sl R &5

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group as at 31st December, 2015 and of its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been property prepaid in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Shu Lun Pan Union (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Amy Yau Shuk Yuen

Practising Certificate No. P6095

Hong Kong,
22nd March, 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
meEmR

For the year ended 31st December, 2015

BE—T—AF+_A=1—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-IF —ZE—mE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B e FET FHT
Revenue WA 8 24,933,367 28,508,737
Cost of sales SHER A (22,064,695) (22,862,062)
Gross profit EF 2,868,672 5,646,675
Increase in fair value of B 7 AN EEM
investment properties 17 654,745 968,623
Other gains, net H b W) F 88 9 57,481 446,035
Selling expenses SHERY (845,236) (847,846)
Administrative expenses THRX (1,579,121) (1,483,334)
Decrease in fair value of FIEEEREZ
held-for-trading investments ANEER D - (105)
Gain on disposal of interests in HERBARER
subsidiaries g - 20,668
Impairment loss on properties ERPRBIEHEDEZ
under development and AEEE
held for sale (1,321,390) (458,705)
Finance costs B & A AS 10 (1,091,723) (893,070)
Share of results of associates PaN el /N (12,835) (12,078)
Share of results of joint ventures  D{EEEMEES 33,565 (76,127)
(Loss) profit before taxation MR Fi AT (B8 ) F 13 (1,235,842) 3,310,736
Income tax expense PS8 5 < 14 (1,536,449) (2,027,129)
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE) RN (2,772,291) 1,283,607
Attributable to: TS :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIE ZS DN (2,817,149) 929,448
Holders of perpetual KABRTERAA
capital instruments 131,812 -
Non-controlling interests RIS 2 (86,954) 354,159
(2,772,291) 1,283,607
(Loss) earnings per share Bk (E1E) &R
(expressed in HK cents) (CABILFI) ) 16
— Basic —®K (76.94) 25.49
— Diluted —#E (76.94) 25.42

—T-REFHR RIEXKEERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEWE R

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
BE—F—HFEf+-HA=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT AT
(Loss) profit for the year FER(EE) =T (2,772,291) 1,283,607
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 HE K
Items that may be reclassified EIZr[GeEFT HFE
subsequently to profit or loss: BamhyEE -
Exchange differences arising on TBHNETS 2 B TRk
translation of financial statements of BEEEZ
foreign operations PE 3 == (1,553,039) =
Change in fair value of available-for-sale  AJEHEIRE 2
investments AFEEEE (20,282) (19,015)
(1,573,321) (19,015)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit & &% 745 %
or loss: B EA -
Surplus arising on revaluation of MEEL R
properties 54,785 59,392
Other comprehensive income before BB 2R 2
tax effect Hih 2 EK (1,518,536) 40,377
Deferred tax liability arising on MESHEEZ
revaluation of properties FEFIEAE (13,696) (14,848)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMZ2 U
net of tax HRHIE (1,532,232) 25,529
Total comprehensive income for the year F R EWS1EZE (4,304,523) 1,309,136
Attributable to: T RELS
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZ 2= DN (3,931,470) 944,593
Holders of perpetual capital instruments kK ABEARTEREIEF A 71,464 —
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR (444,517) 364,543
(4,304,523) 1,309,136
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B R AR R

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
BE—FT—AF+—A=1—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-IF —ZE—mE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B e FHET FHT
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment properties LB 17 11,095,284 10,053,392
Property, plant and equipment M= - WE KEE 18 2,118,470 2,049,764
Prepaid lease payments TR ERIE
— non-current portion —IERFHER D 19 346,172 379,757
Goodwill (RS 20 281,331 307,612
Interests in associates i N W - 21 277,064 307,923
Interests in joint ventures REEEZ#ER 22 1,369,744 533,765
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 29 116,331 136,688
Deposits paid for acquisition of Uit B + b {5 PR 4
land use rights BffEE 23 960,518 143,037
Deposits paid for acquisition of WEEKTB AR EfiEe
subsidiaries 24 238,095 253,165
Deferred tax assets EERIBE EE 43 404,150 349,309
Total non-current assets JEMENE EE AR R 17,207,159 14,514,412
Current assets RENEE
Properties under development EEAYE 25 60,504,098 57,432,956
Properties held for sale HIELEYE 25 23,753,872 27,247,573
Other inventories HibFE 26 146,835 154,565
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 R EHMERTR 27 3,843,983 4,074,785
Prepaid lease payments TESHEERKIA
— current portion —mENE s 19 10,927 11,523
Short-term loan receivables R HIE R 28 - -
Held-for-trading investments HIEBEBEIRE 30 - 867
Amounts due from associates JE UGBS & N T 3008 21 329,625 400,897
Amounts due from joint ventures — JEUA &3 F1E 22 3,148,682 5,697,412
Amounts due from non- U BB A 7
controlling shareholders of FE15E AR AR BR SR IE
subsidiaries 34 780,518 1,135,801
Taxation recoverable A Y B 75 18 1,504,280 975,890
Pledged bank deposits B HIRIRI TR 35 440,437 1,519,231
Bank balances, RITEETT
deposits and cash FRMRE 35 17,908,117 16,236,973
Total current assets BN E AR 112,371,374 114,888,473
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION £ & Bt % AR S 3

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
BE—F—AF+ A=+ —HIFE

2015 2014
“E-HF —Z—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B =E FET FA&T
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade and other payables FEfTE 5 R E AR BR X 36 13,594,948 14,670,333
Pre-sale deposits EEERE 24,423,105 19,082,666
Property rental deposits MERSZ S 118,266 116,054
Amounts due to joint ventures EE &S ERIE 22 12,450 10,391
Amount due to the ultimate FER B ASIERR A RIFIR
holding company 31 22,488 58,299
Amount due to an intermediate FEf—RE
holding company PR A B3R IE 32 26,859 975,259
Amounts due to fellow FEfH R R T /B
subsidiaries UNCIEQEE] 33 2,468,125 2,410,404
Amounts due to non-controlling  FETRTE A F13E1ERR
shareholders of subsidiaries & E/eE] 34 2,903,925 1,674,920
Taxation payable FESFIIA 1,626,685 1,762,830
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMES
— due within one year — —FE N FIH 37 17,805,446 20,250,526
Total current liabilities MEN BB 63,002,297 61,011,682
Net current assets REEEZEE 49,369,077 53,876,791
Total assets less current BEERREEE
liabilities 66,576,236 68,391,203
Capital and reserves EXRH#E
Share capital R& X 39 17,685,677 17,677,143
Reserves & 7,874,338 12,085,184
Equity attributable to owners XA FEF A
of the Company FEAR R #E 25,560,015 29,762,327
Perpetual capital instruments KAEBEARTE 41 1,227,472 998,696
Non-controlling interests FERER 2,638,461 3,338,192
Total equity REEERE 29,425,948 34,099,215
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #R& BA #& AR i &

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE—FT—AF+—A=1—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-—FEF —E
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FHIT
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER
— due after one year — —F1£ 55 37 31,538,386 28,433,069
Notes payable RS 38 3,900,000 3,900,000
Loan from a fellow subsidiary —HRRBARER 42 214,286 227,848
Amount due to the ultimate FE AT S 42 4%
holding company UNGIE6:] 31 - 379,747
Deferred tax liabilities ELFHIBRE 43 1,497,616 1,351,324
Total non-current liabilities ERBAEERE 37,150,288 34,291,988
66,576,236 68,391,203

Approved and authorised for iss
Directors on 22nd March, 2016.

HAN QINGTAO
BiER
Managing Director
EELE

ue by the Board of

YE LI WEN
REH

Director

EZ

RZE-—RF=ZA-T-_HEBHEZSHERR
RETIE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #R& B 8xk

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
BE—F—AF+ A=+ —HIFE

Notes: P%E

(i) Included in other capital reserve at 31st December, 2015 is (i) R-_ZE—RAE+-_A=+—80  HtELRELERE
deemed capital contribution arising on acquisition of subsidiaries IR BB A RIFTEA & 2244,221,0008 (=T —H
of HK$244,221,000 (2014: HK$244,221,000) and deemed capital £ 1 244,221,0007 7 ) K — R R @A AR HEAR 1E
contribution arising from interest-free loans provided by a fellow Tt BERES 2 T E 262,678,000/ (=F—M
subsidiary of HK$62,678,000 (2014: HK$62,678,000). #F 1 62,678,00087T) ©

(i) The People’s Republic of China, other than Hong Kong, (the “PRC”) (i) FEARLME([HE ] FREES)EERHEER
statutory reserves are reserves required by the relevant PRC laws NGB 2 A KT A ) 2 A BE R BUEBIFTARE 2 f# ©
applicable to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries.

(iiiy  Other reserve represents the difference between the fair value of (i) HibEEREFANENREMERFEREDKEZ

consideration paid and payable and the carrying amount of net assets WEZIE N TR R = BB A Bk H B 2 B R m A 1
attributable to the changes in ownership in the subsidiaries being BEREFEEREEMNE ZHNZERE -

acquired or disposed from non-controlling interests without change
of control during the year.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AEETREBR

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
BE—FT—AF+—A=1—HIFE

2015 2014
—EB-HF —ZE-mEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B e FExT FAET
Cash flows from operating RELEEHNESRE
activities
(Loss) profit before taxation bR A AT (B8 ) F (1,235,842) 3,310,736
Adjustments for: A TIEB (ELFHE -
Bank interest income SRITH BUA 9 (143,623) (128,185)
Interest income from loans to ERTEERETRZ
joint ventures FEWA 9 (245,346) (200,675)
Interest income from loan to BERT A E Q6T
an associate B2 FBHA 9 (1,084) (382)
Dividend income from BHLERSIMA
investments in securities 9 (2,732) (4,983)
Decrease in fair value of held- HIEEEIREZ
for-trading investments RNEERD - 105
Gain on disposal of held-for- HERIEER
trading investments BE 2 Wk (309) -
Amortisation of prepaid lease BN ERE
payments 11,156 11,856
Depreciation of property, plant M - BEREETE
and equipment 18 139,779 142,385
Finance costs REE AN 10 1,091,723 893,070
Impairment loss on goodwiill EE 2 REBE 20 26,281 176,592
Impairment loss on other FEU E At BR 5K 2 B &
receivables b 20,807 -
Impairment loss on properties BEPRBEHEDE
under development and held ZBEEE
for sale 25 1,321,390 458,705
Impairment loss on property, L N el
plant and equipment EE1E 18 2,452 3,911
Increase in fair value of B 2 N TEE N
investment properties 17 (654,745) (968,623)
Loss on disposal of investment HEREYEZEE
properties 8,822 11,828
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE - BE REE
plant and equipment Z 1B 57,403 964
Gain on disposal of interests in ST B A iR 2 U
subsidiaries F - (20,668)
Gain on dissolution of A =N el
subsidiaries - (586)
Gain on re-measurement of PEBRKERENE
joint ventures to acquisition SEPEZWHE B
date fair value in step ZAFEZWE
acquisition 54 (32,086) -

—T-REFHR RIEXKEERAF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ZRE R &RE T

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE—ZT—paFEf+-HA=+—HIFFE

2015 2014
—E-EF —E—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B =E THET T
Reversal of impairment loss (0138 15 5t e Uk L A B
previously recognised in OB REER
respect of other receivables 9 (3,216) (3,218)
Reversal of impairment loss B EE A EWE 5
previously recognised in o0 Ry REEE
respect of trade receivables 9 (12,133) (551)
Reversal of impairment loss OB AERERE
previously recognised in KB HER 2 B EEE
respect of short-term loan
receivables 9 (1,019) (400)
Share of results of associates DAEEE R R EE 12,835 12,078
Share of results of joint ventures ~ D& & ELELE (33,565) 76,127
Operating profit before EEESBHAKE R
working capital changes 326,948 3,770,086
Decrease (increase) in properties R R ES
under development and =R A (38 N0)
held for sale 6,802,475 (5,581,736)
Increase in other inventories Hiniz s (1,456) (36,740)
Decrease (increase) in trade and FEWE S5 NEM
other receivables BRFOR A (38 00) 510,846 (188,907)
Decrease in short-term loan WG R E SR
receivables 1,019 400
(Decrease) increase in trade and FENE 5 N EH A
other payables AR OB A )& N (6,037,947) 2,637,379
Increase (decrease) in pre-sale FEERSENORL)
deposits 4,147,444 (162,742)
Increase in property rental deposits ¥ &1L &1L N 8,425 21,028
Cash generated from operations & i8R &R 5,757,754 458,768
PRC income taxes paid B BFEH (1,950,730) (1,989,599)
Interests paid A FE (4,116,315) (3,502,659)
Net cash used in operating RETFEEFTARS T
activities (309,291) (5,033,490)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS e R &R E &

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
BE—T—AF+_A=1+—HIFFE

2015 2014
—EB-HF —ZE-mEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B e FET FHT
Cash flows from investing REBREETHHRERSHK
activities
Purchase of property, plant and BEME BEEXE
equipment 18 (80,600) (134,383)
Purchase of investment BEREME
properties 17 (779) (11,613)
Investments in joint ventures AEBDEZRE (736,686) (117,220)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net WHEKT B A 7] - 0Bk
of cash acquired BER S 54 1,718,124 -
Net cash outflows arising on LERBARIMEEZ
disposal of subsidiaries B F R - (36,947)
Net cash outflows arising on A B AR PTEEZ
dissolution of subsidiaries HE R FaE (566) (12,575)
Decrease (increase) in pledged BEEIPRITIFR
bank deposits B (350) 1,078,794 (851,278)
Bank interest income received B WERIT R S IR 143,623 128,185
Interest income received from ERTEERETRZ
loans to joint ventures B USRS A 9 245,346 200,675
Interest income received from BERT —HEE AR
loan to an associate RE M ZFE LI&U\ 9 1,084 382
Dividend income received from BIEHIREREIA
investments in securities 2,732 4,983
Dividend received from a joint B —HEEERFERE
venture 341 341
Repayments from (advances to) EEPFEER(ER)
joint ventures 2,253,089 (3,709,752)
Repayments from (advances to) HE%Q} 3E$ &A% R
non-controlling shareholders BR(RF)
of subsidiaries 261,988 (734,810)
Repayments from associates B N BIE N 47,409 66,977
Proceeds from disposal of HEREYESIE
investment properties 118,005 139,227
Proceeds from disposal of club HES e REMSIE
membership - 1,257
Proceeds from disposal of held- HEREEEREA
for-trading investments PG HIR 1,176 -
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE - BE RE&E
property, plant and equipment FS5E - 4438
Net cash generated from RETEE
(used in) investing activities (FrR)BEEF5E 5,053,080 (5,066,103)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ZRE R &RE T

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE—ZT—paFEf+-HA=+—HIFFE

2015 2014
—E-HE —T—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FET AT
Cash flows from financing RERMEETHNWRERE
activities
Borrowings raised i E s 21,210,495 33,756,279
Repayments of borrowings BEEX (22,144,720) (23,183,754)
Issue of perpetual capital BITKAEARTA
instruments 41 251,226 998,696
Distribution to holders of DR TARAEZR
perpetual capital instruments TEHBA 41 (93,914) -
Capital contribution by non- REEPNGIEL2 293
controlling shareholders of IR &
subsidiaries 18,831 31,646
Advances from (repayments to) EES N EPNGIE=EN
fellow subsidiaries (BRTRRNEB
NGID) 53,893 (863)
Advances from (repayments to) Bt B8 A R SEFE AR AR R
non-controlling shareholders BROCER TS
of subsidiaries UNSIESE ) 143,538 (203,357)
(Repayment to) advance from an  GEF T — & E#2EA%
intermediate holding company A R))— B AR
NGIELE (890,349) 931,847
Repayments to the ultimate BT EREERAT
holding company (389,483) (6)
Advances from (repayments to) BEDERR
joint ventures (BRTRERE) 2,678 (20,690)
Dividends paid to non- EATHE A FIIEERR
controlling shareholders of &% B A% B
subsidiaries (594,048) (586)
Dividends paid BEAIARE 15 (278,277) (812,754)
Proceeds from exercise of share 1T B AR AE P15 518
options 7,435 14,027
Net cash (used in) generated BMEEE(FTA) B
from financing activities HEEE (2,702,695) 11,510,485
Net increase in cash and cash RERZERBEEMFRE
equivalents 2,041,094 1,410,892
Cash and cash equivalents at FUZzREeRERRE
beginning of the year 16,236,973 14,826,081
Effect of exchange rate changes EXEFHHEE R
on cash and cash equivalents ZERBEEZTE (369,950) =
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZESREZEFRE
end of the year 17,908,117 16,236,973
Represented by bank balances, BiR1THTF TR kE &
deposits and cash 17,908,117 16,236,973
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GENERAL

Poly Property Group Co., Limited (“the Company”) is
a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s
ultimate holding company is China Poly Group
Corporation (“China Poly”), a state-owned
enterprise established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"”). The Company’s parent is Poly
(Hong Kong) Holdings Limited (“Poly Holdings”), a
company incorporated in Hong Kong. China Poly
and its affiliated companies, other than members
of the Group, are hereinafter collectively referred to
as China Poly Group. The address of the registered
office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the section of “Corporate
Information” to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are engaged in property development,
property investment and management, hotel
operations and its related services, securities
investment and construction services.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the provisions
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which
concern the preparation of financial statements. In
addition, the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rule”).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

31st December, 2015
R-E—AF+-HA=1—H

— AR
FEMNEXEBERAR(ARRR D NER
BEMKZ ARBRAR - HBRHESR
BBMARSAERAR([BRAT]) L o

EZRE ARARZBEEERRAB RTE
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RRPEARKMBE([HEDKIZZESR
®¥ - KRB ZBRRRRN(FE)ZR
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AION - AR EAR A K ELE SR R B A T A AE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %= &

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1st January, 2015

HKFRSs Annual Improvements
(Amendments) 2010-2012 Cycle
HKFRSs Annual Improvements
(Amendments) 2011-2013 Cycle

Defined Benefits Plans:
Employee Contributions

Amendments to
HKAS 19 (2011)

The adoption of these amendments to HKFRSs
has no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements,
have been issued, but are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle!

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative!

HKAS 1

Amendments to Clarification of
HKAS 16 and Acceptable Methods
HKAS 38 of Depreciation and

Amortisation’
Accounting for

Acquisitions of Interests

in Joint Operations'
Financial Instruments?

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?
HKFRS 16 Leases3

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
R-F—HF+-A=1—H

MBHRRERELE(E)

(b) BHEMEERERNIET KB

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

AEBMBEREERN(E)

1 REE—RF-A—BREERRIFE

January, 2016 HAR A

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st 2 RZZ—N\F—A—BXEERBZFE
January, 2018 HAR A

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st 3 RZZ—NF—A—BXEERBZFE
January, 2019 HAR A

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a 4 MREER] B Bk K& Fta 2 B A

date to be determined

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Disclosure
Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage
entities to use judgement in the application
of HKAS 1 when considering the layout and
content of their financial statements.

An entity’s share of other comprehensive
income from equity accounted interests in
associates and joint ventures will be split
between those items that will and will not be
reclassified to profit or loss, and presented in
aggregate as a single line item within those two
groups.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
— Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

BREERNEIR BT - HER
&8

R ERE 1R 2B =S
RNEVESE B TSR R H 2 B A AR B
158 P 41l

AEEMEEAREMNRNDKEGER
AIRABRAMELS - AR AE
RO - BEHE TS RENFR
Rl ERLR  URHMAERE—
MITEREZH -

RS ERE16ERE RS ER
38 (EFTA) —ERITERBH 2

Depreciation and Amortisation A2 5
The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use BB ERF 165 BT ARIE
of a revenue-based depreciation method for ESE7E J*%&*“fﬁlgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁb{q&)\

items of property, plant and equipment. The
amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable
presumption that amortisation based on
revenue is not appropriate for intangible assets.
This presumption can be rebutted if either the
intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue or revenue and the consumption of the
economic benefits of the intangible asset are
highly correlated.

REEZIFETE - BR G ERE
385% Z & J$%I)\*IE—HBZTE§%Z
AR » BIAMCA A5 22 7 3 35 1 @
REREE - WELEETIARAG
B g ABETEE 2 KBENEH
REZYIIERE - RIX AR AT AR -

—HEFHR RAIBXEEERLA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt % 3R 3% i &%

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

PIBRRERELE(E)

(b) BREMER RERBIHET RIE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)
HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial
assets. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows (the business model test) and that have
contractual terms that give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test)
are generally measured at amortised cost.
Debt instruments that meet the contractual
cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") if the
objective of the entity’s business model is
both to hold and collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities
may make an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to measure equity instruments that
are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other
debt and equity instruments are measured at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss
impairment model for all financial assets not
measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred loss
model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to
better reflect their risk management activities in
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

MBHRRERELE(E)

(b) BHEMEERERNIET KB

issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except

AEBMBEREERN(E)

ERMBBEEENEIR(=F—H
F)-EMIA(E)

BEVBHRELENFEIRERE LS
FHEREIRERERBERR - 2
BRAEBZHRE  HERATFEFAR

for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, mZ e BARRI  BRIFSEHEE
where the amount of change in fair value SR ZAEZEERRKRE

attributable to change in credit risk of the
liability is recognised in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income unless that would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in
HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 -
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains
or losses to be recognised when an entity
sells or contributes assets to its associate or
joint venture. When the transaction involves
a business the gain or loss is recognised in
full, conversely when the transaction involves
assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint
venture or associate.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 — Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
The amendments require an entity to apply
all of the principles of HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations when it acquires an interest in
a joint operation that constitutes a business
as defined in that standard. The principles of
HKFRS 3 are also applied upon the formation
of a joint operation if an existing business as
defined in that standard is contributed by at
least one of the parties.

SIEZ A TFEEHESENGE ZHK
KRR © WO - BAMHERE LR
FORREREGHERIEI9RR L
EReHEERSRBEZRE

BRPBEREEANE10RREBST
FERFE28 2 EF] — REEHAHE
DEREEEEIHZEEHERE
A

ZEEEFERBAABENRINE
EEFRHESTIABRER © 1§ TR
ZWEREBREE - EXHFR—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt % 3R 3% i &%

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. BIHmREREEE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) BEMEMKREROHFT KL

issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle
of the framework is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance
obligations in the contract

e Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

e Step4: Allocate the transaction price to
each performance obligation

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is
satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on
particular revenue related topics that may
change the current approach taken under
HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances
the qualitative and quantitative disclosures
related to revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

MBHRRERELE(E)

(b) BHEMEERERNIET KB

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases, introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee
to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,
under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying leased asset and
a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of-
use asset and interest on the lease liability, and
also classifies cash repayments of the lease
liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of
cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the
lease liability are initially measured on a present
value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes
payments to be made in optional periods if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an
option to extend the lease, or not to exercise an
option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the
lessee accounting for leases that are classified
as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, HKAS 17

AEBMBEREERN(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt % 3R 3% i &%

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

(c)

issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS
16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its
leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for those two types of leases
differently.

The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of adopting the
above Standards and amendments to existing
Standards to the Group. The Group is not
yet in a position to state whether these new
pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
financial statements.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
provisions relating to the preparation
of financial statements

The provisions of the new Companies
Ordinance, Cap. 622, in relation to the
preparation of financial statements apply to the
Company in this financial year.

The directors consider that there is no
impact on the Group’s financial position or
performance, however the new Companies
Ordinance, Cap. 622, impacts on the
presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. For example, the
statement of financial position of the Company
is now presented in the notes to the financial
statements rather than as a primary statement
and related notes to the statement of financial
position of the Company are generally no
longer presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(9]

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except
for investment properties, hotel properties,
available-for-sale investments and held-for-
trading investments, which are measured
at their fair values or revalued amounts, as
explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31st December, 2015 comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the
Group”) and the Group's interests in associates
and joint ventures.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date that control commenced or up to the
date that control ceased. When the Group loses
control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at that date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of an investments in associates or joint ventures
or other investments.
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FE=:tHE(E)
(Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling (c) MBARIRIFERERE)

interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group'’s interest and
the non-controlling interest are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interest is
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with those used
by the Group.

Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
or deficiency in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed
any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9]

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented
as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations from 1st January,
2010

Business combinations are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. For each business
combination, the acquirer measures the non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition
costs are expensed as incurred.
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.
(Continued)
(d) Business combinations and goodwill

ERERBEGE)

(d) XBEHREE(E)

(Continued)

Business combinations from 1st January,
2010 (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it
assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual
terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives
in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the
acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at the acquisition-
date fair value. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration which is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or
loss or as a change to consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, it shall not
be remeasured until it is finally settled within
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(d) Business combinations and goodwill

4. FESHBEGE)

(d) XBEHREE(E)

(Continued)

Business combinations from 1st January,
2010 (Continued)

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being
the excess of (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and any fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interests in the acquiree over (i) the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date. When (ii) is greater than (i), then this
excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is stated
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31st
December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.
(Continued)
(d) Business combinations and goodwill

ERERBEGE)

(d) XBEHREE(E)

(Continued)

Business combinations from 1st January,
2010 (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash — generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) and part
of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured
based on the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Business combinations prior to 1st January,
2010 but after 1st January, 2005

In comparison to the above-mentioned
requirements which were applied on a
prospective basis, the following differences
applied to business combinations prior to 1st
January, 2010:—

Business combinations were accounted for using
the purchase method. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition formed part
of the acquisition costs. The non-controlling
interest was measured at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(d) Business combinations and goodwill

(e)

(Continued)

Business combinations prior to 1st January,
2010 but after 1st January, 2005 (Continued)
Business combinations achieved in stages were
accounted for as separate steps. Any additional
acquired share of interest did not affect
previously recognised goodwill.

When the Group acquired a business,
embedded derivatives separated from the host
contract by the acquiree were not reassessed
on acquisition unless the business combination
resulted in a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modified the cash flows that
otherwise would have been required under the
contract.

Contingent consideration was recognised if,
and only if, the Group had a present obligation,
the economic outflow was more likely than
not and a reliable estimate was determinable.
Subsequent adjustments to the contingent
consideration were recognised as part of
goodwill.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group and other parties contractually agree
to share control of the arrangement, and have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
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31st December, 2015
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.
(Continued)

ERERBEGE)

(e) Associates and joint ventures

(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless
it is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post-acquisition change in the Group's share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment. Any acquisition-
date fair value excess over cost, the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees and any impairment losses for
the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture,
the Group’'s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group's long-
term interests that in substance form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate or
the joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(e) Associates and joint ventures

(f)

(Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held
to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include properties that are
being constructed or developed for future use as
investment properties.
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Investment properties (Continued)

On initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values using the fair value model.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value of an investment property is recognised in
profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use or no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognised in profit or loss in the year in which
the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment including
buildings and leasehold land held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes, other than hotel
properties and construction in progress, are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.
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31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(g) Property, plant and equipment

4. FESHBEGE)

(9) #% - BERRE(GE)

(Continued)

Advantage has been taken of the transitional
relief provided by paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
“Property, Plant and Equipment” from the
requirement to make regular revaluations of
the Group’s buildings which had been carried
at revalued amounts prior to 30th September,
1995, and accordingly no further revaluation
of land and buildings is carried out. Prior to
30th September, 1995, the revaluation increase
arising on the revaluation of these assets was
credited to the revaluation reserve. Any future
decreases in value of these assets will be dealt
with as an expense to the extent that they
exceed the balance, if any, on the revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation
of the same asset. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the
corresponding revaluation surplus is transferred
to accumulated profits.

Hotel properties are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their
revalued amounts, being their fair value at the
date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of
these assets does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at
the end of the reporting period.
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.
(Continued)
(g) Property, plant and equipment

ERERBEGE)

(9) ¥% - BERRE(E)

(Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on the
revaluation of hotel properties is generally
dealt with in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and accumulated as a
separate component of equity (hotel properties
revaluation reserve), except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognised as an expense, in which
case the increase is credited to profit or loss to
the extent of the decrease previously charged.
A decrease in net carrying amount arising on
the revaluation of such buildings is dealt with
as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the
balance, if any, held on the hotel properties
revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation on revalued hotel properties is
charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued hotel property,
the attributable revaluation surplus remaining
in the hotel properties revaluation reserve is
transferred directly to accumulated profits.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of items of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
recognised in profit or loss in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

()

()]

(k)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to profit or loss using a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive
to enter into an operating lease are recognised
in profit or loss as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term using a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of
land and building are considered separately for
the purpose of lease classification, unless the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, in
which case, the entire lease is generally treated
as a finance lease and account for as property,
plant and equipment.

Properties under development
Properties under development developed for
future sale in the ordinary course of business
are included in current assets at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. It comprises the
consideration for development expenditure
(which includes cost of land use rights,
construction costs and capitalised interest)
directly contributable to the development of the
properties.

Properties held for sale
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

Other inventories

Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction
of an asset or a group of assets, where the
customer is able to specify the major structural
elements of the design. The accounting
policy for contract revenue is set out under
“Revenue Recognition”. Where the outcome
of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, contract costs are recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the end of the reporting
period, as measured by (a) the proportion that
contract costs incurred for work performed
to date to the estimated total contract
costs or (b) the amount of work certified by
independent engineer with reference to the
completion of physical proportion of contract
work. Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included to the extent
that they have been agreed with the customer.
When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
Where the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which
they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FE=:tHE(E)
(Continued)

(I) Construction contracts (Continued) () BEAKN(E)

Construction contracts in progress at the end
of the reporting period are recorded at the
net amount of costs incurred plus recognised
profit less recoginsed losses and progress
billings, and are presented in the statement
of financial position as the “Gross amount
due from customers for contract work”
(as an asset) or the “Gross amount due to
customers for contract work” (as a liability),
as applicable. Progress billings not yet paid by
the customer are included under “Trade and
other receivables”. Amounts received before
the related work is performed are presented as
“Advances received” under “Trade and other
payables”.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits held at
call with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidation statement of cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(n) Financial instruments

4. FESHBEGE)

(n) €T E

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the statement of financial
position when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified
into one of the three categories, including
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEHHE(E)
(Continued)
(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(n) EWMTAGHE)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL represents financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified as held for trading if:—

e it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future; or

e it is a part of an identified portfolio of
financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, financial assets at FVTPL
are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised directly in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
dividend earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, short-term loan receivables,
amounts due from subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries, joint ventures, non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.
(See accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

4. FESHBEGE)

(n) €RIE(E)

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are designated as available for
sale or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL
and loans and receivables.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value. Changes
in fair value are recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and
accumulated as a separate component of equity
(investment revaluation reserve), until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that
do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the
end of each reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

4. FESHBEGE)

(n) €RIE(E)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:—

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

e significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

For certain categories of financial assets,
such as trade receivables and short-term loan
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments of trade
receivables in the portfolio past the average
credit period of 30 to 90 days, observable
changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables and loan receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable or a loan receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in profit or
loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in
fair value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognised directly in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Impairment losses other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwiill
above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
In addition, intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised as income immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that standard.

4.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group’s financial liabilities are generally
classified as other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade
payables, property rental deposits, amounts due
to subsidiaries, the ultimate holding company,
intermediate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries, non-controlling shareholders of
the subsidiaries, joint ventures, bank and other
borrowings and loan from a fellow subsidiary
are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

4. FESHBEGE)

(n) €RIE(E)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue cost.

Perpetual capital instruments issued by the
Group, which includes no contractual obligation
for the Group to deliver cash or another
financial asset to the holders or to exchange
financial assets or financial liabilities with the
holders under conditions that are potentially
unfavourable to the Group, are classified as
equity instruments and are initially recorded at
the proceeds received. Discretionary distribution
declared by the Group to the holders of
perpetual capital instrument is treated as
dividend.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial assets. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt % 3R 3% i &%

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(o) Employee benefits

(@

(i)

Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Payments to Group’s defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
charged as expenses when employees
have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions. Payments made
to state-managed retirement benefits
schemes are dealt with as payments to
defined contribution schemes where the
Group’s obligations under the schemes
are equivalent to those arising in a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme.

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The fair value of services received
determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates during the vesting period, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option
reserve.

At the time when the share options
are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share capital. When
the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to accumulated profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(p) Income tax

4. FESHBEGE)

(p) FIEH

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities.

Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to
items recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arises from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

FRZAEH IS EBIR KR EH
HEENBEZEY -

BB A MEERBREERABEZE
PN BEDNER - RIEFHMER
RS 2HRE RN EREERE
RZBEEBR  RUBERBEREAS
AR E2HRERNEENEET
R -

BIEATR IR S TR A F A R R A
A2 BIE - THERANRER RS R
MR BEERM o HERAE  WHBE
FREEBNZBHIRELFE -

RIETIAE EM BB Bl 8 AT A5 A
ERTEREZRESL  -ERERERE
BEMAEEMBRE LOREES
BLEENABENRENER - RIT
T8 TR A B TR AT IA B R {2 R RO B 48 I R
BRATEERESL °

—T-REFHR RIEXKEERAF

157
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEHHE(E)
(Continued)
(p) Income tax (Continued)

(p) FAEH(E)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deducible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(p) Income tax (Continued)

4. FESHBEGE)

(p) FREHL(AE)

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries, and interests in associates and
joint ventures, to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reserve in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at
their fair value, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates
that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the reporting date
unless the property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale. In all other cases, the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt % 3R 3% i &%

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEHHE(E)
(Continued)
(p) Income tax (Continued)

(p) FAEH(E)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or
the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

e in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

e in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

° the same taxable entity; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(p) Income tax (Continued)

e different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities

0]

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument.

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

4. FESHBEGE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt % 3R 3% i &%

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(g) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities (Continued)

()

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)
Where the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
(being the transaction price, unless the fair
value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference
to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had
the guarantees not been available, where
reliable estimates of such information
can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group's
policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, except for the case of the
guarantee issued by the Company to its
subsidiary in which the fair value of such
guarantee is recognised as an additional
cost of investment in a subsidiary, an
immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities (Continued)

()

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)
The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that
claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in trade and
other payables in respect of that guarantee
i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities assumed in
business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination which are present
obligations at the date of acquisition are
initially recognised at fair value, provided
the fair value can be reliably measured.
After their initial recognition at fair value,
such contingent liabilities are recognised
at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that
would be determined in accordance with
(iii) below. Contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination that cannot be
reliably fair valued or were not present
obligations at the date of acquisition are
disclosed in accordance with (iii) below.

4.

TEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt % 3R 3% i &%

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FE=:tHE(E)
(Continued)

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions (q) ERHzUKER  BERIA
and contingent liabilities (Continued) aE(&E)
(iii) Other provisions and contingent (iii) HtBERIAREE

liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other
liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

164 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED Annual Report 2015

RSB AR R ARBEEN
EEARIEERET  METE
R E1RE Al e BB A &I
m o XAER A SEZ fhE - A
B ARRREEREERSEDT
EZBEMBEFIRER - HERK
RREEEEX - AREETER
IR RER TR -

M am oM R 2 AT REMETRK
HEEAEBEREL T E2MA
it BIZEERBEEAIAE
18 - MEASE M 2S5 2 A RETE
TRARRNBRID o AREE 2 AIBEE
EERFRFIASIREENHZ
BRERERERDFE T8
BRELSLREE - EHRQENZE
SN 2 AT BE AR AR RIBR AN o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(r) Revenue recognition (r)

4. FESHBEGE)

WA 2 TR

Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts received or receivable from
sales of properties and goods, hotel operations,
investments, services provided and subsidies
received or receivable, net of discounts and
sales related taxes. Provided it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:—

a) Revenue arising from the sale of properties
held for sale is recognised upon the
execution of a binding sale agreement,
the issue of an occupation permit and
a completion certificate by the relevant
government authorities and fulfilling the
terms of the binding sale agreements,
which is taken to be the point in time
when the risks and rewards of ownership
of the property have passed to the buyer.
Deposits and installments received on
properties sold prior to date of revenue
recognition are included in the statement
of financial position under pre-sale
deposits.

b) Revenue from sales of goods are
recognised when goods are delivered at
customers’ premises which is taken to
be the point in time when the customer
has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

¢) Building management service income is
recognised over the relevant period in
which the services are rendered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEBE(E)
(Continued)
(r) Revenue recognition (Continued) () WAZRER(E)
d) Revenue from hotel operations and related d BEZERE@ERS WAL
services is recognised when the relevant HE B RRFE R ERALR -
services are provided.

EREEZ N BWATIRE MR
EEASBLERERNE 1%
R M RFHERAR - T ER
MR T AEFT R AR 2 WA BB
T REER AR ITR
RZBEZREFEZAE

e) Interest income from a financial asset is e)

recognised as it accrues on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount.

BE 2B EMBATR A& B UEUR
B2 IR R iR AR o

f)  Dividend income from investments is f)
recognised when the Group’s rights to
receive payment is established.

g) Rental income receivable under operating g KEBYHZERKESKAREH
leases is recognised in profit or loss on HEMNEREEERER
a straight-line basis over the term of the R e

relevant lease.
When the outcome of a construction contract HEEH A ELETREA K 2 AR -
can be estimated reliably, construction FWARTIED L ZHE 2
revenue is recognised using the percentage of R:( EEBRDETZIRES

il =%

k|

completion method, measured by reference
to (a) the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date to
estimated total contract cost or (b) the amount
of work certified by independent engineer
with reference to the completion of physical
proportion of the contract work. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is
probable will be recoverable.
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31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(s) Translation of foreign currencies

4. FESHBEGE)

(s) HhEEmE

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the statement of financial position
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except
for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(s) Translation of foreign currencies

()

(Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group'’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and accumulated as a
separate component of equity (the translation
reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted
or completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match them with
the related costs. Grants related to depreciable
assets are presented as a deduction from the
carrying amount of the relevant asset and are
released to income over the useful lives of
the assets. Grants related to expense items
are recognised in the same period as those
expenses are charged in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and are reported
separately as other income.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the

Group'’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #gr

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(v) Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4z

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 4, the directors
of the Company are required to make estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated net realisable value of properties
under development and held for sale

Management reviews the net realisable value of
the Group's properties under development and
held for sale with reference to its estimated costs
to completion, intended use and current market
environment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets exceeds its net realisable value.
Appropriate write-off to estimated net realisable
value is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt % 3R 3% i &%

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated net realisable value of properties
under development and held for sale
(Continued)

In determining whether write-off properties under
development and held for sale is required, the
Group takes into consideration the intended use of
the properties, the estimated costs to completion,
the current market environment, the estimated
market value of the properties and/or the present
value of future cash flows expected to receive.
Write-off is recognised based on the higher of
estimated future cash flows and estimated market
value. If the market environment/circumstances or
estimated costs to completion changes significantly,
resulting in a decrease in the net realisable value of
these properties interest, additional write-off loss
may be required. As at 31st December, 2015, the
carrying amounts of properties under development
and held for sale are HK$84,257,970,000 (2014
HK$84,680,529,000) (net of accumulated
impairment loss of HK$1,491,650,000 (2014:
HK$535,066,000)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of short-term loan
receivables and other receivables

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration
the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31st December,
2015, the carrying amounts of short-term loan
receivables and other receivables are HK$Nil (2014:
HK$Nil) (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$25,121,000 (2014: HK$26,140,000)) and
HK$3,196,396,000 (2014: HK$2,835,684,000) (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$43,592,000
(2014: HK$27,647,000)), respectively. More details
are given in notes 27 and 28.

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

Investment properties were revalued as at 31st
December, 2015 based on the appraised market
value by independent professional valuer. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the estimate, the
Group considers information from current prices
in an active market for similar properties and uses
assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period.
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties (Continued)

The fair value measurement utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible.
Inputs used in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based on
how observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique utilised are (the ‘fair value hierarchy’):

5.

HT RO R R
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e Llevel 1: Quoted prices in active markets for o E: HRIEBEBEKRERBM SN ME
identical items (unadjusted); (RIEAE)

e Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs o B2 : HEHEUBRMNE AR
other than Level 1 inputs; (TBEERBFIESAZRE) ;

e level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived o [ER3: TRIBRMEAZE (AL I

from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has
a significant effect on the fair value measurement
of the item. Transfers of items between levels are
recognised in the period they occur.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s
estimation of the fair value include those related
to current market rents for similar properties in
the same location and condition, appropriate
discount rates, expected future market rents and
future maintenance costs. The carrying amount of
investment properties at 31st December, 2015 was
HK$11,095,284,000 (2014: HK$10,053,392,000).
More details are given in note 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of goodwiill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
unit and also to choose a suitable discounted rate
in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at
31st December, 2015 was HK$281,331,000 (2014:
HK$307,612,000). More details are given in note 20.

PRC enterprise income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Mainland
China. As a result of the fact that certain matters
relating to the income taxes have not been
confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimate
and judgment based on currently enacted tax laws,
regulations and other related policies are required
in determining the provision of income taxes to be
made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will have impact on the income tax and
tax provisions in the period in which the differences
realise.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to LAT in Mainland China. The
provision of LAT is based on management’s best
estimates according to the understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject
to the determination by the tax authorities upon the
completion of the property development projects.
The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and
payments with the tax authorities for its certain
property development projects. The final outcome
could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded.
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to owners of
the Company through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes
37 and 38, cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and accumulated
profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total bank and other
borrowings plus notes payable less bank balances,
deposits and cash. Total capital is calculated as
“equity”, as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position, plus net debt.

176 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED Annual Report 2015

= & Ve =

AEBEREARAZ BMERAEEAS
ERIUFEFALE  FAREBEE(LE
BEERERMZ T BARBER AER
=AOR  ANEBZEEXRKE E—FE
SR -

AEBEAREHRAE  BREME37R38
R BEZEE ReERFERRENARF
EAARGER(BREEBETRA - FHER
RKEta ) AT

ARREEBYFRIEARE-R - &
W2 BIET  BEFEEEREANA K HE
BRENEHZAR AEESREBEES
ZIEBER  ERIRNBE - BITHE
BOBORBETHEXELREAE  F
BERBEARE -

EENEMAR B AEEREEAR
HRERER - R R ELFHELR A
BERNEEE - BHFRNRITREME
BRBENENZRBRRTET  FRER
At E - BB EREEPEINRR
PR 2 [ AR I DB 55 88



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bf # R & M &F

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

The gearing ratios at 31st December, 2015 and 2014

31st December, 2015

R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

ERERERE(E)

R-ZZE—RAFR-_ZT—NF+_A=+—

were as follows:— AZEEBFERLERNOT « —
2015 2014
—E-8F —T—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHTT

Total bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEERE

(note 37) (Pf3%37) 49,343,832 48,683,595
Notes payable (note 38) FERT =R (F15E38) 3,900,000 3,900,000

Less: Bank balances, deposits and cash

B RITEE TRk

e (17,908,117) (16,236,973)
Net debt B FE 35,335,715 36,346,622
Total equity RAEMRE 29,425,948 34,099,215
Total capital BNERE 64,761,663 70,445,837
Gearing ratio BEAMELE 55% 52%
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. €®IA
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) eMIEDE
The following table shows the carrying amount TERRINEGHEERBENERE
of financial assets and liabilities:— B: —
2015 2014
ZE-AF —ZT—mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Financial assets ERMEE
Held-for-trading investments BIEBEEKRE - 867
Loans and receivables B R ERARFK
— Trade and other receivables —EE 5 R EHAD
BRI 3,471,755 3,742,605
— Amounts due from associates — FEUNES &N B FRIA 329,625 400,897
— Amounts due from joint ventures — — JEILA &S FIE 3,148,682 5,697,412
— Amounts due from non- — FEUH B A Al
controlling shareholders of FEFERR AR R FRIE
subsidiaries 780,518 1,135,801
— Pledged bank deposits — BEFRITER 440,437 1,519,231
— Bank balances, deposits and cash ~ —$R17451F - 7%
BHe 17,908,117 16,236,973
Available-for-sale equity investments 7] fft H SRR EIRE 116,331 136,688
Financial liabilities cHas
Amortised cost BHIERA
— Trade and other payables —ERE 5 REHAM
BRI 13,520,051 14,451,800
— Property rental deposits —ERSKS 118,266 116,054
— Amounts due to joint ventures —ENEETERE 12,450 10,391
— Amount due to the ultimate — R AR AR AR A 7]
holding company B 22,488 438,046
— Amount due to an intermediate — S —R T Rk
holding company NGIE@ 26,859 975,259
— Amounts due to fellow — BRI ZHNE AT
subsidiaries X1 2,468,125 2,410,404
— Amounts due to non-controlling NG
shareholders of subsidiaries FE1E I BR TR 2,903,925 1,674,920
— Bank and other borrowings —RITREMEE 49,343,832 48,683,595
— Notes payable — ENEE 3,900,000 3,900,000
— Loan from a fellow subsidiary — —ERZENEB AT
B 214,286 227,848
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies

The Group exposures to market risks (currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk arises in the normal
course of the Group's business. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign currency
rates, interest rates and equity security prices.
Market risk exposures are further measured
by sensitivity analysis. There has been no
significant change to the Group’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risk. Details of each type of
market risks are described as follows:—

(i) Currency risk

The Group's revenue are mostly
denominated in RMB, however, the Group
also undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, hence
exposures to currency risk. In addition, the
currency risk also arises from funding to
its subsidiaries in the PRC. These loans to
its subsidiaries are normally denominated
in RMB while the sources of funding are
usually denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and United States dollars (“US$").

Since Hong Kong dollars is being pegged
to US$, material fluctuations in exchange
rates of Hong Kong dollars against US$ are
remote.

7.
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. eRIAE)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BKEREEEERKE(E)
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) miZEK (&)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EBRREE)
The Group currently does not use any ANEE B R &S AERSTET
derivative contracts to hedge against BN EEYRR - BEE
its exposure to currency risk. The Thid5 B ) B ER MK TE = B A
management manages its currency risk by BERHINERR - WEREHRE
closely monitoring the movement of the KZREFEREBRERE

foreign currency rate and consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The following table details the Group’s TERFANREER_Z—HF
exposure as at 31st December, 2015 that TZA=+—HREUNEEELE
the currency risk arising from recognised ee B RETIAINZ BB TIE
assets or liabilities denominated in a ZEHREENABHEEZE
currency other than the functional currency HER -

and US$ of the entity to which they relate.

2015 2014
—E-EF —ZT 5
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETT

Bank balances, deposits and cash  #R7747F ~ FR R

B 50,421 175,911

Short-term loans to subsidiaries BT HBAR 2=
B 8,356,487 8,476,799

Gross exposure arising from EHRREEMEEZ
recognised assets [E\f 42 58 8,406,908 8,652,710
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31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. E®MIAE)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIEREEEERBEE)
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) s Rk ()
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EBEEREREGE)
The following table indicates the TR 25 B 5 RS B R TE
approximate change in the Group’s profit HEANRRAINEEXRNZ B T
after tax and accumulated profits that WK - REERBIEEN R
would arise if foreign exchange rates to 2R MO B E (RKRFME
which the Group has significant exposure H A\ b BB AR E) o BUK
at the end of the reporting period had E DT RFZRINE TE R & &) g A
changed at that date, assuming all other REMARNEERNRERRFE L
risk variables remained constant. The HEINERRONE/MTIEA - B35
sensitivity analysis assumes that the change AR5 B BB A B AT R IE R
in foreign exchange rates had been applied WHRIE - ZEREABEARER
to re-measure those financial instruments BIhRE R M SN BB S (E o
held by the Group which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk at the end of the
reporting period, including inter-company
payables and receivables within the Group
which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the
lender or the borrower.
2015 2014
“E-%% —E2mE
Increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease)
Appreciation in profits ~ Appreciation in profits
(depreciation) ~ aftertaxand  (depreciation) after tax and
in foreign  accumulated inforeign  accumulated
exchange rate profits  exchange rate profits
BB &ER Bt &R
HMEER REsH&RF HNMBRER RE:HaH]
FE(RE) Bmad) FE(EE) EMOF)
HK$'000 HK$'000
THAR TATL
Renminbi ARE 5% 500,411 5% 547,640
(5%) (500,411) (5%) (547,640)

—T-REFHR RIEXKEERAF
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. eRIAE)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BKEREEEERKE(E)
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) miZEK (&)
(ii) Interest rate risk (i) FEEbE
The Group is exposed to fair value AEBBEEIBRITER « BEE
interest rate risk in relation to pledged FIRBITREMBEE REMNERK
bank deposits, fixed-rate bank and other (FEZEEFR  BERERZ
borrowings and notes payable (see notes 15 - B2 M35 -~ 37%38)
35, 37 and 38 for details of these deposits, HERAFEMNZRR - A&BE
borrowings and notes). The Group aims TR LOZBFEEE - ANEE
at keeping borrowings at variable rates. BRI DR o AT - B
Currently, the Group does not have EBeERFXER  TeREH
hedging policy. However, the management B E REDRE AR E R ©

monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow 2N 55 [ T ) B R 2R R L (FEAF)
interest rate risk in relation to amounts BEATHIA - RITETFTRIZE
due from (to) related parties with variable FERBPITREMEE(EEZS
interest rates, bank balances and variable- ®F BITEEREEZHS
rate bank and other borrowings (see notes B20ME21 223132
21, 22, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35 and 37 for 3334 35K37)HEBRRELRE
details of these balances, bank balances FIRE g o REEZBERE T4
and borrowings). It is the Group’s policy FLOEBFEEE - EUERS
to keep its borrowings at floating rate of il B S v

interests so as to minimise the cash flows
interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures to interest rates AEE TS B EE R A =R
on financial liabilities are detailed in the BREFBEHNAWTRBE SR
liquidity risk management section of this REE—f c AEECZRERE
note. The Group’s cash flow interest MERREEEFRREREE
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the ETRARBBEEEZRA
fluctuation of LIBOR and benchmark rate RITRIZENF B R P B BRI
in the PRC arising from the Group’s US$ g o

and RMB borrowings.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for both derivatives and non-
derivative instruments at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of asset and liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis points increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the
year ended 31st December, 2015 would
decrease/increase by HK$46,198,000
(2014: HK$57,983,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate bank and
other borrowings and bank balances.

B BHRRME

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

7. ®RMIA(E)

(b) MBEMERERRBE(E)

miE k(&)

(i)

Fl=m R (E)

I TSUKE DT HERITERIE
PTETARRE IR 2 A X @R
EE o mEU DT RN W
EHRZ AWM EERAEER
ELEARFZELE AETBEE
2 A B R EBEE A R R R i - B
FASOMEESh 2 38R, + ERERER
B FI RS IR ] RE B B) 2 7T o

fifd F & | F+ T B 50 fE £ 2 i
FrEEM ] SRS K&
BERE—ZT—AF+-A=1+—
BIEFEZ GRS 180
46,198,000,%75(_jE PO -
57,983,000 7T) © L& (L EE
KQZKEI?JEE?E%IJ%EH&
HifEE RIRITAEFFTEER 2
KRR o

—HEFHR RAIBXEEERLA
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. eRIAE)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BKEREEEERKE(E)
and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) miZEK (&)
(ili) Other price risk (iii) HtpEKRERE
The Group is exposed to equity price AREEIEER L HER
risk arising from its investment in listed & i mERAREEEER - EIRE
available-for-sale investments. The #REETERR 2IZREHEE A
management manages this exposure by EIERERAR - NEBZREE
maintaining a portfolio of investments with BEREEEHRERBZARE
different risks. The Group's equity price ZETRETE  fboh - AEE
risk is mainly concentrated on listed equity REIESHINEN = v e
instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange. WA 7 Z 05 =E B R FTE
In addition, the Group has appointed a Z BB e

special team to monitor the price risk and
will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis BT
The sensitivity analysis below has been AT EURE DT T ER IR EHIR
determined based on the exposure P B 2 IRIEB R R EE o

to equity price risks at the end of the
reporting period.

If the prices of the equity instruments MR T 2 B L7 B
had been 5% higher/lower, investment 5% AEEZEREMGERER
valuation reserve would increase/decrease #hn, 41,838,000/ (= F
by HK$1,838,000 (2014: increase/decrease — PO 4 : #hnE 42,852,000
by HK$2,852,000) for the Group as a YEIT) + VBN Em Al E1R
result of the changes in fair value of listed B2 RNV EEEES -

available-for-sale investments.
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R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7.
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

eRMIAE)

(b) MBEMERERRBE(E)

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31st December, 2015, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
and financial guarantees provided by the Group
is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit ratings, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of
credit risk.

FERR
R-ZFE-—RAF+-_A=1+—H &%
BRESFHAREETEERNEEM
REZHBERMAAZGBR Y
BERENRREERR - HRGAH
BRRERFAIERCHERAEREE
ZIRmEEMmEL

SREEBREEERR  AKEEEE
EZk—XEKAEEEEERE -
EESENEMERIEF - UERS
REURETB W EIBHETRS - s

AEEENSRENRENSTHES
B2 FIHE 58 - LAREIR 5T AT I
EIFIREH RS2 BERRE - st
5 ARREERR/AEBEZEER
AR D

R F A BB EER R REE
RTREENRZERT  BHWARBHE
EEERBREAR -

BRERRZHEAREEFRZRT
Z B E & P R 2 & E B R R
oh AEBEWBEHEMEAZEERET
[

—T-REFHR RIEXKEERAF

185



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt % 3R 3% i &%

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7.
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

SEMIA(E)

(b) BERBEEEERBEEE)

and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group has net current assets amounting
to approximately HK$49,369,077,000 at 31st
December, 2015.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank and other borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank and other
borrowings as a significant source of liquidity.
As at 31st December, 2015, the Group has
available unutilised bank loan facilities of
approximately HK$10,548,550,000 (2014:
HK$16,214,569,000). Details of which are set
out in note 37.

The following table details the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. For non-derivative financial liabilities,
the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.
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31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. ERMIAE)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MFEREEEERBEE)
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRR(E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables REEERFERERR
Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective  or less than 1-5 Over undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate 1 year years Syears  cash flows amount
il 355 REXY, ARRE

Lk IR-5 -E1f BENE il £ R
% HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TAn Tin TR TAn

2015 “E-RE
Non-derivative financial liabilities #{74£RAE
Trade and other payables 8 S REMER 11,438,834 2,081,217 - 13520,051 13,520,051
Property rental deposits nEReRe 494 102,676 15,096 118,266 118,266
Amount due to the ultimate holding - ERSEERATZE

company

—interest-free ~ 78 22,488 - - 22,488 22,488
Amount due to an intermediate it —FmiaER A

holding company v

—interest-free ~Tit8 26,859 - - 26,859 26,859
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  ERRZHEAFE

— interest-free -8 2,253,839 - - 2253839 2,253,839

—Variable rate — ZEF% 121 224,022 - - 224,022 214,286
Amounts due to non-controlling  ERHEATIEERRR

shareholders of subsidiaries 7

—interest-free ~Tit8 540,273 - - 540,273 540,273

—fixed rate - EEf® 1.12 152,481 - - 152,481 145,982

—Variable rate ~ FH% 517 2,289,261 - - 2,289,261 2,217,670
Amounts due to joint ventures ERAELESE

— interest-free - T8 12,450 - - 12,450 12,450
Bank and other borrowings RORAEE

—fixed rate - EEH% 8.13 11,197,523 13,841,580 - 25039103 21,607,029

—Variable rate - FEHI% 4.9 7349304 23,138,328 764,757 31,252,389 27,736,803
Notes payable ENZE

—fixed rate - EEF= 4.75 - 4,482,566 - 4,482,566 3,900,000
Loan from a fellow subsidiary —RRZHBARER 6.00 - 214,286 - 214,286 214,286

35,507,828 43,860,653 779853 80,148,334 72,530,282

Financial quarantee issued in respect  EEHBBAATIRAL
of credit facilties to associates and ~ AEFEREEREY

joint ventures HBER
- maximum amount quaranteed  ~FEERE

(note 46) (Biz46) 2,780,000
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

7. TRIAGE)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIEEBEEBRRBE(E)
and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBELRR(E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued) REBEERAERER(E)
Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective  or less than 1-5 Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year years Syears  cash flows amount
TS HEXY, FERS
BRI PR-E —2h% ENE nEgR HEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T i Th Tn T
2014 —E-MmE
Non-derivative financial liabilities {74 2REE
Trade and other payables T2 5 RE MR 12,157,526 2,279,596 14678 14,451,800 14,451,800
Property rental deposits VIS - 100,929 15,125 116,054 116,054
Amount due to the ultimate holding BRI ERAFZE
company
- interest-free -Fit8 242483 - - 242483 24,243
- Variable rate - F8flx 590 35312 451,014 - 486,326 413,803
Amount due to an intermediate ~ ER—ERERRAT
holding company v
- Interest-free - Rt 8 26,856 - - 26,856 26,856
- fixed rate ~ B 6.74 923418 - - 923418 886,076
- variable rate — 87| 6.57 64,387 - - 64,387 62,327
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  ERFZHBAFZE
— Interest-free ~Mit8 2,233,189 - - 2233189 2,233,189
- variable rate - FER% 7.21 185,267 - - 185,267 177,215
Amounts due to non-controllng ~ ERHBAFHERKE
shareholders of subsidiaries 4
- Interest-free -8 264,744 - - 264,744 264,744
- fixed rate —EEF= 6.85 78,706 - - 78,706 15,475
- Variable rate - F8flx 6.33 1,387,537 = - 1,387,537 1,334,701
Amounts due to joint ventures ERAEAETE
- Interest-free - Rt 8 10,391 - - 10,391 10,391
Bank and other borrowings AP E U
- fixed rate - A= 8.14 9,883,031 12,997,681 - 280712 19,764,826
- variable rate - FEflx 6.10 11,093,825 21,092,561 704224 32,890,610 28,918,769
Notes payable RES
- fived rate - Eeflx 475 - 4482566 - 4482566 3,900,000
Loan from a fellow subsidiary ~HRZHBARED 6.00 - 227 848 - 227,848 227 848
38368932 41,632,195 734027 80,735,154 72,838,317

Financial quarantee issued in respect  BEHHBAATRAL
of credit faciliies to associates and R FEREEREY

joint ventures AR
- maximum amount quaranteed - HEERE
(note 46) (Fi3%46)
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)
(c) Fair values

(@

Financial instruments carried at fair
value

The following table presents the fair value
of financial instruments measured at 31st
December, 2015 on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair
Value Measurement”. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

e Level 2: fair values measured using
qguoted prices in active markets for
similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which
all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market
data

e Level 3 (lowest level): fair values
measured using valuation techniques
in which any significant input is not
based on observable market data

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

eRMIAE)

() DA¥E

() MHUAAVEFEZEMIA

REBEEEVHRELENE135%
[RFEAEIMREN=L
FEESR R-_E—HF+_A
=T EERREUEEFENS
BTANAFEZIIN TR -2
FEFFEMFERNERTIZRIA
MMEE AR B ASEN A B
ERENERIREMETE

¢ E-REEZR) A
EEET ST RRSBT
At ECRERE) 58
AF(E

o EH:NRAEERWS
REUERIARRE -
IMEEZH AT ERRK
B3R BN A LR T 45 2R
ZEERMEEAFE

. BERBRESR) WA
EREBHALEERT
B 15 B 2 B
SEATE
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189



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt % 3R 3% i &%

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. SRITAE(E)
(Continued)
(c) Fair values (Continued) (c) A¥EE)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair (i) UAFEFEZEBIAE)
value (Continued)
At 31st December, 2015, the Group had RZE—RAF+=ZA=+—H "
following financial instruments carried at REEUT /T BERUAATE
fair value all of which are based on the ERHEZE—RABEZ A TE
Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy:— NG
2015 2014
—Z-1fF —E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Assets BE
Available-for-sale investments At ERE
— Listed -k 36,762 57,043
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBRE
— Listed —Ekm - 867
36,762 57,910

(i)

During the year ended 31st December,
2015, there were no significant transfers
between financial instruments in Level 1
and Level 2.

Fair values of financial instruments
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost were not materially
different from their fair values as at 31st
December, 2015 and 2014.
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31st December, 2015

R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. EMIAE)
(Continued)
(c) Fair values (Continued) () DAFEE)
(iii) The fair values of financial assets and (i) EMEERSHABBEZAFER
financial liabilities are determined as UTAHEXEE : —
follows:-
The fair values of financial assets with ZERMBREGR A - R
standard terms and conditions and traded EEREREMISEE L SRMEE -
on active liquid markets are determined HATFEDNEN S 2 EREER
with reference to quoted active bid HEEE  mMEMERMEERD
prices and ask prices respectively; and BEBEIATFEINREARIE
the fair values of other financial assets BN - UABRZEHmER
and financial liabilities are determined SEERMABBRRTBERESRE
in accordance with generally accepted DITTEEE
pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices or rates from
observable current market transactions as
input.
8. REVENUE 8. WA
Revenue represents the aggregate of the net WABRE=FE R REWKIBFE B
amounts received and receivable from third parties, HF(HBREN2PREHER) - NREBFR
net of business tax payable in the PRC. An analysis WAZDHT : —
of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:—
2015 2014
—ET-EHF —ZT e
HK$'000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Sales of properties MZSHE 23,377,815 26,435,471
Rental income and building WA REFE IR IR
management service income WA 1,114,910 938,440
Income from hotel operations B JE & B 198,046 196,934
Sales of goods HES M 92,292 123,010
Others EHih 150,304 814,882
24,933,367 28,508,737
“TREFR RABEEEERAF
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

9. OTHER GAINS, NET 9. Hfthlliz - FHR

2015 2014
—EB-HF —ET-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT
Dividend income B B U A 2,732 4,983
Exchange loss [E i &518 (465,530) =
Government subsidy IEdiaRn: 26,017 21,538
Gain on re-measurement of joint DEERWETRERAES
ventures to acquisition date fair value EREEWREAEZ
in step acquisition (note 54) AE 2z Weas (KiEEs4) 32,086 =
Interest income from bank RITHIBUA 143,623 128,185
Interest income from loan to an associate &zt T — B2 A 7 & 2K
Z M BA 1,084 382
Interest income from loans to joint ERFEENESKZ
ventures MEMA 245,346 200,675
Reversal of impairment loss previously (3138 7 gt H {th fE UL BR X
recognised in respect of other BEHER 2 R EEE
receivables 3,216 3,218
Reversal of impairment loss previously — #£[E1:@ 1 5h W E SRR
recognised in respect of trade R RERE
receivables (note 27) (Pt5E27) 12,133 551
Reversal of impairment loss previously #8387 g e IS A E X
recognised in respect of short term BRERZRERSE
loan receivables (note 28) (F1z£28) 1,019 400
Others Hib 55,755 86,103
57,481 446,035
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31st December, 2015
R=-F—AF+=—A=+—H

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BERA
2015 2014
—E—RF —ZE—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Interest on interest bearing borrowings 3 EEEF] S 4,358,890 4,084,218
Less: amounts capitalised B BAREFE (3,267,167) (3,191,148)
1,091,723 893,070
Borrowing cost capitalised during the year arose ERNER L EERAEAEEHEE -
from specific borrowings.
The capitalisation rate of borrowings was 6.68% BE—ZT—AFE+—_B=+—BItEE
(2014: 7.16%) for the year ended 31st December, EHEEBARNEEAE6.68%(-F—[MF :

2015. 7.16%) °
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 1. ES5ME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section RIE A FHEGI (5£622F ) £383 16K A Al
383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. (BEESEMEEE) R0 (E6226E ) HE
622) and the Companies (Disclosure of information MESMHESHT « —
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) is
as follows:—

Other emoluments

Hitie
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits Bonuses contributions emoluments
§eR BAER
e At R 4 HE 5 aMe

HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TER TER TER TER TER

2015 ZE-1F

Wang Xu o - 1,237 - 18 1,255
Xue Ming ] - 1,218 - 18 1,236
Han Qingtao BEE - 3,323 - 18 3,341
Ye Li Wen ERH - 2,111 - 18 2,789
Choy Shu Kwan 296 220 - - - 220
Ip Chun Chung, Robert 26 220 - - - 220
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia 2EX 240 - - - 240
Wong Ka Lun XM 240 - - - 240
Total =t 920 8,549 - 72 9,541
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31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 1. EE5M< (&)
(Continued)
Other emoluments
Afhie

Retirement

Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits Bonuses  contributions  emoluments

ek EIER
ik Etoig bzl FE e ape

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

2014 —E-ME

Chen Hong Sheng FRitE 4 - - - 4
Wang Xu o - 3,535 - 18 3,553
Xue Ming ZH = 3,535 - 18 3,553
Han Qingtao BiEE - 760 21 4 985
Zhang Wan Shun REIE - 2,145 237 15 2,397
Ye Li Wen 2l = 2,573 380 18 2971
Choy Shu Kwan b=yt 200 - - _ 200
Ip Chun Chung, Robert ERE 200 - - - 200
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia RERS 220 - - - 220
Wong Ka Lun EXR 220 - - - 220
Total ) 881 12,548 838 73 14,340
In each of the two years ended 31st December, REBEE—ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILME
2015, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the FEEF  ANEEBEREAESSE A
directors, as an inducement to join or upon joining SYEREXEN IR SR IR AN B B 2 228D
the Group or as a compensation for loss of office. BB AEE RBEE_T—AFER=-F
None of the directors has waived any emoluments —OF+ZA=+—HIEMEFEEFE -
during each of the two years ended 31st December, BT = EE AN S o

2015 and 2014.

“T-RFEFR RIUBXEEMERAF 195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bi #§ R & M &F

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, four (2014: four) were directors of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosure in note 11 above. The emoluments of the
remaining one (2014: one) highest paid individual
are as follows:—

12. AifumSHFMA L

AEBEAURSHMALS  BERAF
M (T —m4F - O EE(EMe N
EXHEEN) c BT (ZF—F : —
f&ESFMALZMEWT : —

2015 2014

—E—IF —TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHTT

Salaries and other benefits e REMER 2,849 2,651
Bonuses TEAL - 1,040
Retirement benefit scheme contributions :E K& F|zT2)4 18 18
2,867 3,709

The emoluments of the remaining one (2014: one)

B (ZF—0OF : —(DRSFHMA

highest paid individual are within the following T2 BENTLATER : —
bands:—
2015 2014
—E—FEF —Z—OF
Number of Number of
employee employee
EEAH" BB AR
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 LE
3,000,000 77T 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 #BLE
4,000,000 7T - 1
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13. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss) profit before taxation has been arrived at after

charging (crediting):—

R=

13. BrBiA1 (&8 ) m Al
BB ERIEINB (GEA) - —

B BHRME

31st December, 2015
F—AFEf=—A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-AfF —EmE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Staff costs 8 TR AR
— directors’ emoluments (note 11) —EEME (FIEE11) 9,541 14,340
— other staff costs — =8 TRA 910,482 831,209
— other staff’s retirement benefit — H i B TRIKEF
scheme contributions FTEIEtR 137,787 81,981
1,057,810 927,530
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments #4478 70 & 2B
(included in administrative expenses) (GtATTE R 2 ) 11,156 11,856
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERZETE
equipment 139,779 142,385
Total depreciation and amortisation W LA 150,935 154,241
Auditor’s remuneration 1% E A B < 7.400 6,902
Cost of inventories recognised as MRERT 2 FEKA
expenses 21,115,381 21,409,379
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading HEFEEERE 2 s
investments (309) -
Gain on re-measurement of joint FEER R SRt E
ventures to acquisition date fair value /\**&\%il&ﬁﬁ HEf 2
in step acquisition (note 54) NE 2 e (HiREs4) (32,086) -
Gain on dissolution of subsidiaries R ARP B A B 2 Mz - (586)
Loss on disposal of investment properties H&#&R &Y% > &R 8,822 11,828
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE BEKKREZ
equipment BB 57,403 964
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 20)  FE£& 7 E{E & (K13520) 26,281 176,592
Impairment loss on other receivables JE U HL h BR 3 2 R (B & 1R 20,807 =
Impairment loss on property, plant and  #% - % E & &2 FiE
equipment (note 18) B8 (f17118) 2,452 3,911
Operating lease rentals in respect of NTRIEZKREHERS
— rented premises —HEWE 38,353 30,155
Property rental income and building MERSWAREFER
management service income, net of BRI (IR EER
direct expenses of HK$33,772,000 33,772,000/ 7T
(2014: HK$5,568,000) —F—NF
5,568,0005%7T.)) (1,081,138) (932,872)
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FRr8FiB XX

2015 2014
—E—EF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FH&T

The charge comprises:— X BE  —
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBMEH - -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax MR B (b EFTIS L 555,333 901,481
555,333 901,481
LAT T HIRER 880,579 810,201
Deferred taxation IEEFIE 100,537 315,447
1,536,449 2,027,129

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2014:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the
year. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made as there is no assessable profit for both
years.

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25%
based on the estimated assessable profit for the
year.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 43.

Certain PRC subsidiaries are also subject to the PRC
LAT which is levied at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of properties,
being the proceeds from sales of properties less
deductible expenditure including costs of land use
rights and development and construction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

14. FRSHIB (&)
FNBIAMZ BT ABRERT 2 BB (B
1B RAHENT < -

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the
(loss) profit before taxation per the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as follows:—

2015 2014
—E-AF —ZE—mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
(Loss) profit before taxation MR A AT (B8 ) A (1,235,842) 3,310,736
Tax at PRC statutory tax rate of 25% BHBUEERE25%:T &
(2014: 25%) ZBRE(ZZ M4
25%) (308,961) 827,684
Tax effect of share of results of associates (5B A T 34E 2
MG E 3,209 3,020
Tax effect of share of results of DMEEEREREZ
joint ventures HiETE (8,391) 19,032
Tax effect of expenses not deductible DAER IS HIR 2
for tax purpose Fs 2 B & 524,790 223,127
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERRZ WA Z
tax purpose M2 (33,225) (56,084)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AIERHIEEEZ
TG 2 691,645 401,981
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B 2 B AR IAE 18
previously not recognised 2R (45,151) (24,530)
Effect of different tax rates of REMANEERLE 2
subsidiaries operating in other WB AR ZTRKEZ
jurisdictions TE 90,713 43,201
Effect of LAT T IR ER 2 (220,145) (202,550)
LAT T HbIRER 880,579 810,201
Others HAt (38,614) (17,953)
1,536,449 2,027,129
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

15. DIVIDENDS 15. RE
2015 2014
—EB-HF e Sbpicfcs
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT T
Dividends recognised as distribution FRNEBRBDIKL
during the year:— S —
2014 final dividend of HK$0.076 —E-MERBAREER
per share (2014: HK$0.223 per share 0.076/8T(=F—M
for 2013) F B =F 75K
0.2237%7T) 278,277 812,754

No interim dividend was paid for both years.

The directors of the Company do not recommend
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31st December, 2015 (2014: HK$0.076 per share).

16. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 16.

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)
earnings per share for the year is based on the
following data:—

{8 S Z 1 IR BARLE.

RAREEEERE_—_T—HFE+-A
=+—HIEFERNRERARE(ZZ—M
£ Bh%0.07687T) ©

F(ER)BH
FRBRERREE(BR)BNDHRET
FIBEEH  —

2015 2014
—E-EF —TF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAT
(Loss) earnings:— (B8 &R« —
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to AR FFEA AEEER
owners of the Company (E18)m 7 (2,817,149) 929,448
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31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

16. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. 8RR (BER)EBF(E)
(Continued)
2015 2014
—E-h0fF T
Number of shares:— BrEE  —
Weighted average number of ordinary  stEEREREFZ
shares for the purpose of basic TR INRE 2
earnings per share 3,661,467,799 3,645,714,876
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary HEASEFT I 2 EiRR 2
shares on share options BIEEE R 57,571 9,989,948
Weighted average number of ordinary  stESRESSZEF ~
shares for the purpose of diluted B INRE 9 E
earnings per share 3,661,525,370 3,655,704,824
The weighted average number of shares has been WM EE39FTH - RBIE=ZE—hFE+=A
adjusted for the shares issued during the year ended =+—BIEFE  ROMETFHEHEREF
31st December, 2015 as set out in note 39. WEBEITRMOIEL AR o
The diluted loss per share for the year ended 31st R RRER T RS AR AR A B A A JE 4G
December, 2015 are the same as basic loss per share EEITESA#HEYE  WEE—_2—1
presented as there was no material dilutive effect FTA=+T—RHIEFE  8REETER
from the assumed exercise of the share options on HAFR 2 R 2 B E A EIEAR ©

the loss attributable to owners of the Company.
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REW %

2015 2014
—E—EF —F—UF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Level 3 fair value measurement F=HATEE

At beginning of the year FH) 10,053,392 8,522,004
Additions NE 779 11,613
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 54) W RE M A = (B 5E54) 39,048 -

Transfer from property, plant and HEEYE BB KEE
equipment 33,443 167,993
Transfer from properties held for sale EEFEHEME 1,054,865 512,776
Transfer from prepaid lease payments LEA=REL SRl I8 - 21,438
Change in fair value N EED) 654,745 968,623
Disposals HE (126,828) (151,055)
Exchange adjustments FE 5, 5 (614,160) -
At end of the year FER 11,095,284 10,053,392

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
at 31st December, 2015 and 2014 were arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date
by AA Property Services Limited, an independent
professional surveyor and property valuer not
connected with the Group. AA Property Services
Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation
were determined either on the basis of capitalisation
of rental income derived from existing tenancies
or by reference to comparable sales transactions
as available in the relevant market. The Group’s
property manager and the chief financial officer
have discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results twice a year when
the valuation is performed for interim and annual
financial reporting.
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31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REME(E)
(Continued)
All of the Group’s property interests held under REEFMAERBELHERFUARRES
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital SEBREER G 2 MEER  HFBA
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair FEEAGE - WA BARIEREDSE -

value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties RBEARFTECAEBREYEZ AT
measured at the end of the reporting period is BN BARERB BV BHREERFE 135
categorised as level 3 of fair value hierarchy as FrEEN A TFEERHES=H -

defined in HKFRS 13.

The carrying value of investment properties REWMHEZ REERE : —
comprises:—
2015 2014
—E-REF —ZT—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Properties held under BN HI T AT 5 77 R
ESpk/ES
- long-term leases in Hong Kong — RBEABZRBAMELD 195,000 191,000
— medium-term land use rights in — Rz R E i
the PRC 158 A #EE 10,900,284 9,862,392
11,095,284 10,053,392
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value

17. REWE(E)

FRF=MAVEFEZEHR

measurements
Fair value
as at 31st Significant Relationship of
December,  Valuation unobservable Range or unobservable
2015  techniques* inputs weighted average  inputs to fair value
RZB-1%
t=H
=t-—HH EATAEE FAUERBAYBH
AEE  RERE WAHE HESNMETY ATENER
HK'000
AL
Completed properties in 195,000  Direct Transaction price HK$19,000 The higher the
Hong Kong comparison (HKS$/square feet) (2014: HK$19,000) transaction price,
the higher the fair
value
REBNR TR BEEER RHER 19,0007 LHERES
(BT/TEAR) (Z2-m%: ATESER
19,000%7)
Completed properties in 5,215,256  Direct Transaction price RMB3,600- The higher the
the PRC comparison (RMB/square metre) ~ RMB45,700 transaction price,
(2014: RMB4,000- the higher the fair
RMB44,300) value
Nz lEiT:ob A ES BELR RHER AEH3,600mE RS ERER
(ARER/FHK)  ARE457007 DA
(Z2-mEF:
AR#4,000E
AR#44,3007)
Completed properties in 5,685,028  Income approach Capitalisation rate 1.4% to 25% The higher the
the PRC (2014: 2.4% to capitalisation rate,
25%) the lower the fair
value
Nz lEiTob ARy ES LN 2N ds 1.4%%25% Mt xie DT
(Z2-mF:24%  EHE
225%)
11,095,284
S Fair value of completed properties are generally derived @ BTN DN E—RERERLEESH(BR

using the direct comparison approach unless reliable market
information are not available for certain properties due to
their locations or specialised function use.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “increase in fair value

of investment properties” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during

the year.
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31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. 1% - lEKNRE

Furniture,
fixtures Plant
Hotel  Leasehold and Motor and  Construction
properties land  Buildings equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
Bl %8

BEnE  RELH gr Rikfe RE RERME  ARIR GH
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK§'000  HK$'000

TR Thr TR TR TR TEL TR TR

Cost or valuation:- BAGfE: -
At st January, 2014 W=8-MmE-F-B 1,180,126 115,230 867,595 218,085 169,177 243,681 4850 2,798,744
Additions HE - - 75,962 18,033 13,756 357 26,275 134,383
Transfer B - - - 8,291 - 475 (8,766) -
Disposals e - - - (7.929 (7.496) (6,224) - (21,649)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 53)  HENBAF(K53) - - - (%) - - - (98)
Transfer to investment properties  EZEEHNE - - (180.802) - - - - (180.802)
Increase in fair value upon transfer ~ ERRENERHAT

toinvestment properties [EEN(RFE2E

recognised in statement of WaRER)

comprehensive income - - 9,979 - - - - 9,979
Surplus arising on revaluation L 49413 - - - - - - 49413
Less: Elimination of accumulated 5 : i 23E

depreciation (49.413) - - - - - - (49413)

At 31st December, 2014 and R-E-ME
1st January, 2015 tZA=+-BR
ZE-RE-A-B 1,180,126 115,230 172,734 236,382 175,437 238,289 22359 2,740,557

Additions WE = 33428 9,718 4433 7134 25,680 80,600
Transfer i ad - - - 7,988 - - (7.988) -
Transfer from properties Epifng

held for sale ES - - 276047 - - - - 206047
Disposals i3 = = (53208) (13979 (3,656) (1422) (3.455) (75,720)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 54)  WEMBAF(Hizts4) - - - 3532 5950 - - 9482
Transfer to investment properties  EZEANE - - (11,577) - - - (23,085) (34,662)
Increase in fair value upon transfer ~ BIRENERHAT

toinvestment properties [EEMRGFE2E

recognised in statement of haRED)

comprehensive income - - 7,859 - - - - 7,859
Surplus arising on revaluation EftRR 46,927 - - - - - - b9
Less: Elimination of accumulated 5 : 44 23147E

depreciation (46,927) - - - - - - (46,927)

Exchange adjustments BB (70,245) - (44311)  (13,541) (9,945) (14,184) (1332 (153,558)
At 31st December, 2015 R-B-1E

tZA=1-A 1109881 115230 980,972 230,100 172219 230,024 12179 2,850,605

Comprising:- o)
At cost B - 1530 980972 230000 172219 23004 12179 1,740,724
At valuation - 2015 RiAE-ZF-1F 1,109,881 - - - - - - 1,109,881
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W% - MER%RHE(48)
(Continued)

Furniture,
fixtures Plant
Hotel  Leasehold and Motor and  Construction
properties land  Buildings equipment  vehicles machinery i progress Total
i 28

EEN%  ERLH gr Rkt RE  HEREE  £RIE aif
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000
ThT ThI TR ThT ThT ThI ThT TR

Accumulated depreciation:- it -

At 1st January, 2014 R=2-mE-A-A - 39080 187483 109,737 84106 206,610 - 627016
Charge for the year EER 49413 2304 34,969 27,863 21819 6,017 - 142385
Impairment oss HEER = - - - - 3911 - 3911
Elimination on disposals HERYH = - - (7.144) (7,081) (6,012) - (0230)
Elimination on disposal of HEMBAREHE

subsidiaries (note 53) (Hzt53) - - - (60) - - - (60)
Transfer to investment properties  EZ|FAHE - - (12,809) - - - - (12,809)
Elimination on revaluation BB (49,413) - - - - - - (49,413)

At 315t December, 2014 and R-E-BE

1st January, 2015 tZR=1-Bk

ZZ-5E-f-H - 41384 209643 13039 93,844 210526 - 690,793
Charge for the year EENR 48072 2,305 35373 28320 20,400 5,309 - 139,779
Impairment loss HEER - - - - - 245 - 245
Elimination on disposals HERHE - - (6,243) (7.827) (2,900) (1,346) - (18,316)
Acquisition of subsiciaries (note 54)  JEEFIB/AF(isk4) - - - 229 3852 - - 6,142
Transfer to investment properties &2 &7E - - (1219 - - - - (1219
Elimination on revaluation BiRHH (46,927) - - - - - - (46,927)
Exchange adjustments B AE (1,145) - (12700 (8,027) (6,037)  (12,65) - (40569
At 31st December, 2015 RZZ-ZE+25

=il - 43,689 224,852 145,152 114,159 204,283 - 132,135
Carrying values:- BEE: -
At 31st December, 2015 W-E-1%

t2A=1-A 1,109,881 154 756,120 84,948 58,060 25,14 121719 2118470

At 31st December, 2014 Rz
_I_

—mE
R=1-A 1,180,126 73846 563,001 105,986 76,593 27,163 22359 2,049,764

Ayl
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31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. 1% - BiERR%R#E (&)
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment EaE - BE RREE B SRESET
are depreciated using the straight-line basis at the B AEmESEENT : —

following rates per annum:—

Hotel properties 2% B TEY) 5 2%
Leasehold land over the lease term FAE L R4 A
Buildings 2% — 18% gF 2%—18%
Furniture, fixtures and 20% R ~ KB RRE 20%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20% RE 20%
Plant and machinery 5% —23% R M i g 5% —23%
2015 2014
—B-HF —Z=-mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT

The carrying values of hotel properties, & 51375 LA T 5175 K%
leasehold land and buildings located BZBEEME HEL

at: R IEF 2 BREE -
— long-term leases in Hong Kong —REBZRBALD 89,113 91,983
— medium-term land use rights in — PR Bl 2 Fp H b b

the PRC A 1,848,429 1,725,080

1,937,542 1,817,063
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W% - MER%RHE(48)

(Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s hotel properties at
31st December, 2015 was arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out on that date by AA Property
Services Limited, an independent professional
surveyor and property valuer not connected with the
Group. AA Property Services Limited is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences
in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The valuation were determined by either
discounting the construction cost or arrived by the
income approach, whereby the income derived from
the hotel operations with regard to past trading
accounts are capitalised at an appropriate rate of
return to arrive at the value of the property interests
with due allowance for outgoings and expenses. The
Group’s property manager and the chief financial
officer have discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results twice a
year when the valuation is performed for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair value of the Group’s hotel properties
measured at the end of the reporting period is
categorised as Level 3 of fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

R=

31st December, 2015

F—RFE+=A=+—H

18. 1% - BERRB(E)

EME=RAFEHEZ AR

Fair value
as at 31st Significant Relationship of
December,  Valuation unobservable Range or unobservable
2015  techniques inputs weighted average inputs to fair value
R=F-%%
+-A=t-H BEXTAER TOBERABER
WATE fHERG BARE EEIMETY ATENEE
HK'000
THL
Hotel properties in Beijing, 503,929  Income approach  Capitalisation rate 5% to 8% The higher the
PRC (2014: 7% t0 9%) capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value
KB RAEED S LN VNS 5%%8% B RS -
(ZB2—mE: ATEBIE
T%%9%)
Estimated profits RMB6,300 The higher the estimated
from operations (2014: RMB6,800) profits, the higher the
(RMB/square metre) fair value
EEDET AR%6,3007 EEplE
(ARE/FHK) (Z2-—mE: ATEER
AR%6,8007)
Hotel properties in Wuhan 605,952  Costapproach  Adjustment to 10% - 20% The higher the discount
and Guiyang, PRC construction cost (2014: 10% - 20%) rate, the lower the
(Discount rate on fair value
building cost)
RAERERER KA BEKARZ(BFRA  10%E20% HHRxEE -
HEENE HhR%) (Z5—mE: RFHEBIE
10%%20%)
Construction cost RMB4,700 - RMB9,700  The higher the
per square meter (2014: RMB4,700 - construction cost, the
RMBY,700) higher the fair value
BYAARENA AR%4,700mE RERAHS  ATEY
ARH9,7007 5
(Z2-—mé:
AR¥4,700m%
AR%9,7007)
1,109,881

Surplus on revaluation and exchange adjustments
of properties held for own use are recognised in

consolidated statement of comprehensive income in

“Surplus arising on revaluation of properties”.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during

the year.

= A\
A

FIEEAMEZELBBRNERLFEIIR
EHRER [ MEREHES FER -

RERE =AU EAFEARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bi #§ R & M &F

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. FESHHEMNIE

2015 2014
—E—FREF —Z—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FHIT

The Group's prepaid lease payments REE 2 BRAEERIER

comprise:— & —

— medium-term land use rights in the — PR EZ AR+ (s

PRC FARE 357,099 391,280

The Group's prepaid lease payments AEEZEMNEERER

comprise:— FE o —
— current asset —mEEE 10,927 11,523
— non-current asset —ERBEE 346,172 379,757
357,099 391,280
20. GOODWILL 20. B2
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHBT
Cost:— B — 816,630 816,630
Accumulated impairment losses:— ZERERSE - —
At 1st January w—H—H 509,018 332,426
Impairment loss for the year FRREREE 26,281 176,592
At 31st December W+—_HA=+—H 535,299 509,018
Carrying amount:— BRMEE : —
At 31st December R+=—A=+—8 281,331 307,612
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be TEHAY £ © FER M B2 Al R T 15 5% o

deductible for income tax purpose.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

20. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill of HK$281,331,000 as at 31st December,
2015 (2014: HK$307,612,000) acquired through
business combination has been allocated to
certain cash-generating units within the property
development segment. Goodwill is tested for
impairment by the management by estimating the
recoverable amount of these cash-generating units
based on value in use calculations. These calculations
use cash flow projection for the specific property
development project based on the financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year
period. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 4.4% (2014: 7%).

Key assumptions used in the value in use
calculations

The following describes the key assumptions on
which management has based its cash flow projects
to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:—

Revenue from the property
development project

YEHRER ZBA

Cost of construction

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

20. BE(B)

EEBECREELEVZRENR

RZE—HE+-_A=+—0  BBEK
& B BT 15 A e 22 281,331,000 T ( = F
—PO4E : 307,612,000 7T ) B D B2 %
BRERDANE TREELEN - EHE
BEFEABETEEGTHERSEESE
iz /9 AT U Bl B (A DA T R BRI - 3%
LHERERFY  UECEEEEMEZ
MTEEARER  AEEWEEEBEE
ReRETER - BEMEFRBMA 2R
RRAAY%(ZZ—DF : 7%) °

SAEEREERARAZERRBR

AT REEEBETRERENRE - A
RenBBRAMKEBEITEBRE : —

The selling price is estimated by management by reference to the
average selling price of a similar property in the relevant locations

EEESERMLRALME 2 FHEBRZEE

The cost of construction is estimated by the engineering department

based on the projected cost to completion of the project

FREER AR T2 EBIRIRIE B 72 T 2 FRRIRC A b5t 2 AR AR

As at 31st December, 2015, due to decline in
expected revenue from the relevant project
companies in coming year, the recoverable amounts
of these project companies as separate cash-
generating units are estimated to be lower than
their carrying amounts and an impairment loss
of HK$26,281,000 (2014: HK$176,592,000) was
recognised for these project companies in 2015. As
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units
had been reduced to HK$281,331,000, any adverse
change in the assumptions used in the calculation
of recoverable amount would result in further
impairment losses.

R-BE—AFE+-A=+—8 aRKF
REMBEER ARMTEHKRA TR - 85
WEEE RRI(EAERIREELRENM) R
AkEeEINERAE  RZE—A1F
B EIE B A RIFER I EE1526,281,000
BT (ZZ—WE : 176,592,000 7T ) ©
HRBECELBNNAKRESEDRDE
281,331,000 7T  ERI AR E Al E &
BB A DT & 28 B BUHE — PRES

18 e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bi #§ R & M &F

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

21, KB A 2

2015 2014
—E-hEF —F—UF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHTT

Costs of unlisted investments in REtE AR 2 IEEHIRE
associates %N 304,888 323,980

Share of post-acquisition losses and DU EETE B R R A
reserves, net of dividends received MR 2 WAE S (29,385) (17,717)
Goodwill e 1,561 1,660
277,064 307,923
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T

Amounts due from associates JiE Wi Bt & N B 5RO

— Interest-free — st R 359 2,788
— Fixed rate of 8% —ETEMZE8% 48,214 50,628
— Fixed rate of 8.9% —ETEFE8.9% 281,052 347,481
329,625 400,897

BRI BERI o 48,214,000 7T
—F P4 : 50,628,000 7T ) B —4F
AEEIN » HARFOREEERKEE -

The amounts are unsecured and repayable
on demand except HK$48,214,000 (2014:
HK$50,628,000) are repayable within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(Continued)
Details of the Group's principal associates as at 31st
December are as follows:—

21.

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

REE N7 2B ()

REER+TZZA=+—HZE£5
ZFHBAT

i]i
b
ol

Proportion of ownership
interest by the Group

AEEHES R LA

Place of

establishment/
Name of associates operation 2015 2014 Principal activities
BERNTER R E i B —B-HF —E-IF FEXK
BINREFHEHENRE PRC 49% 49%  Property development

=1 UNG| H MR

MEmDEHE PRC 30% 30% Property development

HEBRA A I
(FRENLPEBED

The above table lists the associates of the Group
which is the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other associates would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

MFRER

EERR - ERINBBEAREZFERE
EREAFEZAEEBRERR  URR
ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁ%@?z%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂﬂ B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bi #§ R & M &F

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of
material associate
Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material associate is set out below:—

21.

RiE A8 2w (8)
EABE A AMBENEE

A B E A A T B S AR B 5
T —

EENDEHE
2015 2014
—g-%f —T-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T

As at 31st December WR+=HA=+—H
Current assets mENEE 1,442,008 1,253,558
Non-current assets FEMENEE 4,277 3,493
Current liabilities mEaE (289,846) (267,556)
Non-current liabilities ERBAR (238,095) =
Included in the above amounts are:— FIA_FALEIERIIER 5 —

Cash and cash equivalents B NEFRKRS 94,302 4,502

Current financial liabilities (excluding mEemaE(rteRg

trade and other payables) 5 R E M ERFRIR) (162,446) (167,660)
Non-current financial liabilities FnEemaECrei
(excluding other payables) H b FE T FRIE) (238,095) -
Year ended 31st December BZ+=-BA=t+—H
IEEE

Revenue WA - -
Net loss and total comprehensive income %% & 2 HINZ A4 (12,551) (12,924)
Included in the above amounts are:— FIA _FHLGERIES A —

Depreciation and amortisation e M gH (147) (105)

Interest income FEUA 38 26

Interest expense FMERZ - -

Income tax expense FriSH F 2 (1,163) (1,275)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:—

31st December, 2015
R=-F—AF+=—A=+—H

/

21. REEE

]}n]?
it

._l

2 (#48)

BB EMBRED RGE M HRRE
REER S A Bl AV R ETEE’J%TEE P

A 2 R

B

2015 2014

—EB-AF —ZE—mE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Net assets BEFE 918,344 989,495
Proportion of the Group’s ownership INEE AR LA

interest 30% 30%

Group's share of net assets AEBHIEEEFE 275,503 296,849

Goodwill S 1,561 1,660

Carrying amount BREE 277,064 298,509

Aggregate information of associates that
are not individually material

FEREANHELTERER

2015 2014

—F-1% Tl

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Group's share of losses AEEHGEE 9,070 8,201
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bi #§ R & M &F

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21.

(Continued)

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share
of losses of certain associates. The amounts of
unrecognised share of those associates, extracted
from the relevant financial information of associates,
both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:—

REEE N7z S (8)

AEBERILBRED S THEATE
- Wi BE ARSI
RBH AR ERSHE QA KED
-

2015 2014
—EB-HF —ZTmE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FHET
Unrecognised share of losses of FEARBERD G E QA
associates for the year &8 6,197 -
Accumulated unrecognised share of ZETARMERD(HEEE R F)
losses of associates &8 6,197 -
22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 2. REELEER
2015 2014
—E—FF —E—pE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Costs of unlisted investments in REEREZIEFTRE
joint ventures AR 1,395,216 627,247
Share of post-acquisition losses and DB BB R
reserves, net of dividends received R E W RS (25,472) (93,482)
1,369,744 533,765
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22. REE bR B (B)
(Continued)
2015 2014
—E-h0fF —E-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Amounts due from joint ventures:— JEURE EFERIA - —
— Interest-free — P&t R 57,207 357,508
— Fixed rate of 8% — EEFMZE8% 2,369,405 3,464,644
— Fixed rate of 10.16% —BEFZE10.16% - 388,550
— Fixed rate of 10.7% —BEFZE10.7% - 519,578
— Benchmark rate in the PRC — R B B 2 - 393,968
— 110% of benchmark rate in the PRC ~ —110% 0 B & %515 722,070 573,164
3,148,682 5,697,412
Amounts due to joint ventures: e & &R EFIA
— Interest-free — &R 12,450 10,391
The amounts are unsecured and repayable on BRFIE AR R AR ERER -
demand.
Details of the Group’s principal joint ventures as at AEER+ZA=+—Hz=x
31st December are as follows:— EEEREZFBENT : —
Proportion of ownership
interest by the Group
’ Place of AEBHER B LA
”émeo establishment/
Joint ventures operation 2015 2014 Principal activities
CELESLR AL E 2 —E-HF —E-mF FEER
ARYIT R A BB PRC 45% 45%  Theatre management
BHEEFRAT A Blb &R
EERITIREERE PRC 50% 50% Investment holding
BRAF] R HEER
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

22.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 2. REEEER(E)
(Continued)

Proportion of ownership
interest by the Group

. Place of 7 g2 W 5 M2 L
!\la.\me ° establishment/
Il et L operation 2015 2014 Principal activities
AELELR AL E B —E-RF “E-IFE FEXEK
EERAEEEE PRC 50% 50% Investment holding
BRAF i B
BRI EEE PRC 50% 50% Investment holding
BRAT a3 REERR
EERBIREERE PRC 50% 50% Investment holding
BRAF i B
EEBRRIEEEE PRC 50% 50% Investment holding
BRAT] a3 REERR
FEERKREBRAA PRC 50% 50% Investment holding
H B
ERRFAEFIEE PRC 41.5% 38% Property development
BRAT] § MEER
MR IR B B R PRC 50% 50% Investment holding
BRAF i B
2T GE N EHE PRC - (i) 50% Property development
FEBRAR [ MEER

(M=% )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Y

b

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22. RE%E
(Continued)

B (E)

i

Proportion of ownership
interest by the Group

Place of AEBEEEERLH

!\Ia.me of establishment/

oLl el e operation 2015 2014 Principal activities

EELERE AL EE i B —E-HF —E-mFE FEXER

EISRFEIRFEE PRC — (i) 50% Property development
FEARAT H MR R
([EBRAEZ])

BERFNEXBRAA PRC — (ii) 35% Property development
(ME=ARF ) B MR

ERRFEE PRC — (iii) 36% Property development
AR AR H MEER
(BRRAEME )

SR II| TR 50 B 1t 22 25 PRC 50% (iv) — Property development
BRAF H MR

(DRINR B HE 1)
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31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

The above table lists the joint ventures of the Group
which is the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other joint ventures would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Notes:

()  EEFES became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group in
2015 and the Group previously held a 50% equity interest in
HUEES. For details, please refer to note 54.

(i)  The Group holds 50% equity interest in &SR F#%. &
ZIRA| is a 70% owned subsidiary of B[5FF &K, The
Group obtained control of &[FRF|E & under the revised
memorandum in November 2015, and thus, accounted for as
a subsidiary of the Group. For details, please refer to note 54.

(i) ERRFEHE became a 73% owned subsidiary of the
Group in 2015 and the Group previously held a 36% equity
interest in EEAIRAIFEMZ. For details, please refer to note
54,

(iv)  The Group acquired 50% equity interest in JEYIRHE t
from an independent third party at a total consideration of
RMB903,393,000 in 2015 to explore business in property
development.
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22. REERE ERE(E)

EFRH - LRIIHARE L EENE
EAEAVEZARELEEE  URBA
MR A BOK 2 ARFMIIL - B
HRIBRTIE -

() REEBR-P-AERAFEEOHEKEL
A« M BB R R R A 50% AR A
2% - FE IS BHIEESS -

@iy  AEEREBRA ST HE0% MR AR - 8
FE R T BB ISR T EHZ KB 70% AR A i 25 HO B
BRAE c AEER T —AF+— ARKBEIERT
BRI B ISR AR AR G - St BB R
FERIIRAREBHMBARR o 15728
54 ©

@iy BARFFMERN-_FT-AFKALAKEEE
73% AR AHBAR - MAREBEREHR
RFIBS HUEE R B 36% R A AR o FFIERE 2 BT
k54 °

vy AEER-T—AFABILE=HRERIR
WMEMEMNSO% R AR  BRERARE
903,393,0007T * MABITRYIE R E £S5 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22. NEELE R (&)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of EAGELENBEERBE
material joint venture
Summarised financial information in respect of the AEFBEREERLENTBELEZH
Group’s material joint venture is set out below:— NI

RIYNRBE it E

HK$’000
FET
As at 31st December, 2015 R=-=T—HAF+=-A=+—H
Current assets mENEE 2,239,412
Non-current assets EREEE 491
Current liabilities MENAE (91,899)
Non-current liabilities EREBBE -
Included in the above amounts are:— FIA_EIFEREE A -
Cash and cash equivalents e kERRE® 2,867
Current financial liabilities nHeMAE(TeRES MEM
(excluding trade and other payables) IR ) (91,899)
Non-current financial liabilities FERFermAaFECTeEEMmEN
(excluding other payables) FKIE) -
Period from 1st September, 2015 to —E-AFNA—HEZ-ZE—HF
31st December, 2015 +=—RA=+—HHMH
Revenue A -
Net loss and total comprehensive income BT R E A (3,002)

—hFEEH RIBXKEERAE 221



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bi #§ R & M &F

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22. NEELFE R (E)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB BRI E R R AR B TS IR R AR
information to the carrying amount of the interest R EECFEERNREABENSE : —

in the joint venture recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:—

2015
—E-RF
HK$’000
FTERT
Net assets BEFE 2,148,004
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest REEER R 50%
Group's share of net assets and carrying amount A& @515 & &= 5B K EmEE 1,074,002
Aggregate information of joint ventures FEREANESELXERER
that are not individually material
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FABT
Carrying amount of not individually JEREBIERE ETFER
material joint ventures in the AREE
consolidated financial statements 295,742 533,765
Group's share of profits REE DA 35,066 76,127
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22.

23.

24,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22. REE bR B (B)
(Continued)
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share AEEERIIBREDEETAECEE
of losses of certain joint ventures. The amounts of B M EeE R ERENBERNFE
unrecognised share of those joint ventures, extracted REFARBERDhZES S EERIEN
from the relevant financial information of joint N =
ventures, both for the year and cumulatively, are as
follows:—
2015 2014
—E-EHF —ZT e
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Unrecognised share of losses of joint FERERADHEERE
ventures for the year Eia 26,339 3,003
Accumulated unrecognised share of it REROHEE R
losses of joint ventures 518 29,342 3,003

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION
OF LAND USE RIGHTS

The deposits were paid by the Group to PRC
government authority in connection with the bidding
of two (2014: one) pieces of land in the PRC for
property development purpose.

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION
OF SUBSIDIARIES

At 31st December, 2015, the amount represented
deposits paid by the Group in connection with the
acquisition of subsidiaries which was mainly engaged
in property development. The acquisition was not yet
completed at 31st December, 2015.

23. Wis i fE MEE RS

AEBETECHAENEERAE M
BT —MF : —18) L2 BEETE
BRE R iRE

24. WEBMTB AR C{TikE
W-E—F&+-A=1+—BHLEEL
EEGNETEREYERENBAT
BNZES - REKER-E—RE+—
B=+—H¥REM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bi #§ R & M &F

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

25. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

AND HELD FOR SALE

25. HEARFFELHENE

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Properties under development located iR BRI 3R ) %
in the PRC — PHEA T R AR
— medium term land use rights 54,219,357 53,367,720
Properties under development located IR E B ERE P2
in HK — medium term leases — FARFRAY 6,284,741 4,065,236
Properties held for sale located A BIR FEEH B %
in the PRC — FR HA s R A
— medium term land use rights 23,753,872 27,247,573
84,257,970 84,680,529

The impairment loss on properties under
development and held for sale of HK$1,321,390,000
(2014: HK$458,705,000) is recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31st December, 2015 due to
the decrease in the estimated net realisable value.

26. OTHER INVENTORIES

458,705,000 7T ) °

26. HFE

MRAGEAERFERY  MEE=-ZT
—RAE+_A=1+—HLEFE RE
mFRAERFERBELEDERE
/E5181,321,390,000 8 7t ( =& — PO &

2015 2014

—ZE—EF —ZT—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Raw materials B 45,679 39,876
Work in progress past LAy 412 57,126
Finished goods RIBK B 100,744 57,563
146,835 154,565
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. EIRE 5 Kk EM R

2015 2014
—E—RE —ZT—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables JEWE SRR 647,587 1,251,030
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts S REREE - (12,133)
647,587 1,238,897
Bills receivables rEd =15 - 204
Other receivables JRE L L Ath B 3k (FOBR B R
(net of allowance of HK$43,592,000) 43,592,000/ 7T )
(2014: HK$27,647,000) (ZZE—PO4F :
27,647,000/ 7T ) 3,196,396 2,835,684
3,843,983 4,074,785
(a) Aging analysis (a) RED

The credit terms in connection with sales of
properties granted to the customers are set out
in the sale and purchase agreements and vary
from agreements. There is no concentration
of credit risk with respect to trade receivables
arising from sales of properties as the Group
has numerous customers. In respect of sales of
goods granted to trade customers, the Group
allows an average credit period of 30 to 90
days. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts
at the end of the reporting period:—

REEWEBRTES 2 ERBHNE
Ein# - BEHHRL EEBIEHM
T - AR AEBBERSES - &
Ut HH Y 2 R 5 R L
EREEER - RRESESHER
minsE @ AEBEZFF30KREIORT
%2 PR R - AR B3R 2 Ak
B 5 R (N R IR RS ) SR H I 0
T

2015 2014

—ZET-EfF —T—mE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET BT

0 to 30 days TE30 K 242,655 753,089
31 to 90 days 31 £90 X 12,818 29,716
More than 90 days FB3EI0K 392,114 456,092
647,587 1,238,897
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bi #§ R & M &F

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. EWWE S R EMRF(E)
(Continued)

(b) Aging of trade receivables which are (b) BHERBEZEREZERRZ
past due but not impaired fRiR
2015 2014
—Z-hfF e —bpicf
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT T
91 to 365 days 91£365K 392,114 456,092
Included in the Group’'s trade receivable AEBEWKE FEREAEHABIERR
balances are debtors with aggregate B4 $£392,114,0008 T ( — = — I
carrying amount of HK$392,114,000 (2014: £ : 456,092,000/ 7T ) 2 FEURIE -
HK$456,092,000) which are past due at ZEFBERREHRE B - BAE
the end of the reporting period for which I kR E B IR R R - AEE
the Group has not provided for impairment BRZEERTAEEMERR - ZF
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral EHBEHEMERERES ' D5
over these balances. The balances arise from /382,584,000 7L (=& — U4
sales of properties and sales of goods are 453,081,000% 7T ) % 9,530,000/% 7T
HK$382,584,000 (2014: HK$453,081,000) (ZZ—M4 : 3,011,000/ 7L) ° iR
and HK$9,530,000 (2014: HK$3,011,000) BRALR  EFZRABARZRES
respectively. Based on past experience, the SIELRERE  FEREEEEL
directors consider that no impairment allowance EEAED  MEKTIWE AT 2
is necessary in respect of these balances as Ue[e o

there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered to
be fully recoverable.
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31st December, 2015
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. EWE S R EMERF(E)

(Continued)
(c) Movement in the allowance for () EWEZSRAZRRBEZET

doubtful debts of trade receivables

2015 2014

—E-AHF —ZE—mE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET THT

Balance at beginning of year FH LR 12,133 12,684
Reversal of impairment loss BEBRTEERZ

previously recognised B EE (12,133) (551)

Balance at end of year FRES - 12,133

28. SHORT-TERM LOAN RECEIVABLES 28. EWIEEAE X

2015 2014

—E—-8F —ZE—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHIT

Other loans (note) HiEZ () 25,121 26,140
Less: Impairment loss recognised B ERERZREEIE (25,121) (26,140)
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28. SHORT-TERM LOAN RECEIVABLES 28. EWEHIER (&)
(Continued)
Movement in the allowance of short-term EBWEHERZRE22E
loan receivables

2015 2014
—Z—EHF —Z—yF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Balance at beginning of year FH LR 26,140 26,540
Reversal of impairment loss previously B OB EEER
recognised BIEEE (1,019) (400)
Balance at end of the year FREERS 25,121 26,140
Note:— Bt « —
In accordance with loan agreements, the other loans carry interest RIRE R IHZE - EMOEFIR12% (=2 —F : 12%)F
at 12% (2014: 12%) per annum and repayable on demand. No MEFE - WARERER REBE_ZT-—HOFR-F
interest was accrued for the two years ended 31st December, 2014 —RF+ZA=+—HILMEFELBMETFIE -
and 2015.
29. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 29.a[tHERE
2015 2014
“E-HF —Z—F
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Listed investments:— ETIRE : —
— Interests in equity securities listed in —REB LT 2 BAE
Hong Kong (note a) % 2 o (fista) 36,761 57,043
Unlisted securities:— JELEmES  —
— Equity securities (note b) — IRAFE 5 (FizEb) 79,570 79,645
116,331 136,688
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30.

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

Notes:—

(@  The interests in listed equity securities are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period.

The change in fair value of HK$20,282,000 (2014:
HK$19,015,000) was charged to investment revaluation
reserve.

(b)  The unlisted equity securities represent investments in
unlisted equity securities in the PRC and are measured at cost
less impairment at the end of each reporting period because
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their
fair values cannot be measured reliably.

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS
The amounts represent investments in equity
securities listed in Hong Kong. The fair values of
these securities are based on bid market prices
quoted on the Stock Exchange.

AMOUNT DUE TO THE ULTIMATE
HOLDING COMPANY

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

29. A ERE ()

30.

31.

fiaE : —

(@) LETBRAEFERNEREHRIZATETE -

AF{EZ B 820,282,000/ 7T (= T — PO 4F :
19,015,000/ 7C) E R B IR E Sk FEE ©

() S ETIRAES R B2 I L RAE S 2
& - VAR EFRATAT i RE SR
B2 ATE - HEEERE RS BAZRAR
A -

HIEEERE
ZEBIEREB LM ZBRABLF ZRE -
%?ﬁ#z ANEENRRBER T2 TS E
AEBFHE -

B &K EZER A RFIR

2015 2014
—ZE-HF —ET—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Interest-free TR 22,488 24,243
92% of benchmark rate in the PRC PR EER R 2 92% - 34,056
96.5% of benchmark rate in the PRC R EEXERZR 7 96.5% - 379,747
22,488 438,046

Less: Amount due within one year B mEBEE N2
shown under current liability —FRE|H 2 A (22,488) (58,299)
Amount due after one year R—F & EIH 2 E - 379,747

The balances as at 31st December, 2015 (2014:
HK$58,299,000) are unsecured and repayable
on demand or within one year. The balance of
HK$379,747,000 as at 31st December, 2014 is
unsecured and repaid in 2015.

RZZE—RAF+-A=1+—HONEH(=ZZF
—PO4 : 58,299,000/ 7T ) A I /A fE
DRIR—FANEE R_T—EOF+=
A =+—BM#%#:379,747,0007 T &K
RN _E—RFEE -

—HEFHR RAIBXEEERLA
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32. AMOUNT DUE TO AN INTERMEDIATE  32. FE{+— R RS} A A1 E0E

HOLDING COMPANY

2015 2014

—E-EF —Z O

HK$'000 HK$’000

FERT FA&T

Interest-free TErE 26,859 26,856
Fixed rate of 6.4% [E T HMZE6.4% - 506,329
Fixed rate of 7.2% ETEMET.2% - 379,747
Benchmark rate in the PRC plus 0.5% AR B EE R ZEA00.5% - 3,741
Benchmark rate in the PRC plus 1% AR B YEF 2 01 % - 58,586
26,859 975,259

The balance as at 31st December, 2015 (2014:
HK$975,259,000) is unsecured and repayable on
demand or within one year.

RZB-AF+A=1—HHEHR(ZT
— P4 : 975,259,000/ 0 ) A& E KR /A

EEZKAMN—FAEE -

33. AMOUNTS DUE TO FELLOW 33. BN RZRAMNE X RFIE
SUBSIDIARIES

2015 2014

—E-hF —ZT—UF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FETT

Interest-free et B 2,253,839 2,233,189
Movement of benchmark rates in MR BRI R

the PRC plus 7.27% BENINT.27 % 214,286 177,215

2,468,125 2,410,404

The balances are unsecured and repayable on
demand.
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34. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) NON-

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

34. FRUR (1) B B 2 B SRR IR R

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OF g
SUBSIDIARIES
2015 2014
—E-AHE —ZT—mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHIT
Amounts due from non-controlling FEUR B A R 3EFE AR
shareholders of subsidiaries:— RSB aRIE : —
— Interest-free —TEtE 337,184 821,750
— Fixed rate of 10% —EEFE10% 107,143 -
— Fixed rate of 12% —BEERZE12% 9,524 10,127
— Benchmark rate in the PRC — PR B E YR R 326,667 303,924
780,518 1,135,801
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAT BB A R 3EFE AR
shareholders of subsidiaries:— RSB aRIE : —
— Interest-free — st B 540,273 264,744
— Fixed rate of 6.85% — [EEH%6.85% 70,982 75,475
— Fixed rate of 7.38% —EEFE7.38% 75,000 -
— Benchmark rate in the PRC — AR B EE R R 1,627,534 832,301
— Benchmark rate in the PRC — R EEFZEN1.5%
plus 1.5% 91,584 109,876
— Benchmark rate in the PRC — B E AR N12.6%
plus 2.6% 230,695 171,005
— Movement of benchmark rates in — B EERER 2
the PRC plus 7.27% FBNINT.27% 267,857 221,519
2,903,925 1,674,920

The amounts are unsecured and repayable on

demand.

e
25

RAREEMRRARELESR -
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35.

36.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND
BANK BALANCES, DEPOSITS AND

CASH

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged
to banks to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group. Deposits amounting to
HK$440,437,000 (2014: HK$1,519,231,000) have
been pledged to secure general banking facilities
and are classified as current assets.

The pledged bank deposits carry interest at
fixed rates ranging from 0.3% to 0.35% (2014:
0.35%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits
will be released upon settlement of relevant bank
borrowings.

Bank balances include HK$1,104,946,000 (2014:
HK$2,060,629,000) which carry interest at fixed
rates ranging from 0.37% to 4.2% (2014: 0.37%
to 5%) per annum and HK$16,800,643,000 (2014:
HK$14,173,512,000) which carry interest at variable
rates ranging from 0% to 1.38% (2014: 0% to
1.49%) per annum.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

35. B MIRITER ~ RITHEF -

FERRES

EEARTEREANEBRETASE 2
—RBITEEMERTFRITZER -
5 81440,437,000 8 0 (=T —H F
1,519,231,000/ 70 ) 2 R EEEA - A
BME—MIRITEE  WEREARBEE -

EHEARITEIIZN F0.3%E0.35% (=
T—PO4F : 0.35%) ZEEFFEFTE - E
BHBTEREREBTEERITEERRE
@ °

EIRITETH + B501,104,946,000 7% 7T

— TP : 2,060,629,00078 7T) LN F
037%Z42%(=ZF—P%F :0.37%=5%)
ZEEFENEGE 5 A216,800,643,000
BIL(ZZE—P4 : 14,173,512,0005 70 )
ENT0%E1.38%(ZZF—MNF : 0% =
1.49% ) 2 )ZF BN FFIKETE o

36. BYE Z R EMR

2015 2014

=E-I1% Tl

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Trade payables e E ZERK 10,159,911 10,719,490
Bills payables N EE 149,617 1,168,970
Other payables JRE < L h BR 2K 3,285,420 2,781,873
13,594,948 14,670,333

232 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &
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R=-F—AF+=—A=+—H

36. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 36. BENE S REMRR(E)
(Continued)
As of the end of the reporting period, the aging RERE R ENE ZRFERR DT T

analysis of trade payables is as follows:

2015 2014

—Z—-HF —Z—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR T

0 to 30 days ZTE30 K 4,490,045 8,282,869
31 to 90 days 31 290 X 66,568 369,830
More than 90 days HERIEBI0K 5,603,298 2,066,791
10,159,911 10,719,490

The average credit period is 90 days. The Group has FHEEHRIOR - NEEE BB R
financial risk management policies in place to ensure BREREE  BRABEMNERRTBEEE

that all payables are within the credit time frame. BRI o

37. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 37. \RIT R EMEE

2015 2014
—E-AHF —F—@mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiH5 Fx
Bank and other loans RITREAME K
— Secured — B K 19,792,457 20,086,196
— Unsecured — K 29,551,375 28,597,399

49,343,832 48,683,595
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37. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(Continued)

The bank and other loans are repayable as follows:—

37. {ITR HMEE(E)

EBERTREMERZIABMAT - —

2015 2014
—E2—REF — T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Within 1 year or on demand —FRKEEK 17,805,446 20,250,526
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEETBARF 21,629,607 13,217,714
After 2 years but within 3 years MFERETBRB=F 7,343,303 11,958,322
After 3 years but within 4 years =FRENBBEE 901,786 1,874,877
After 4 years but within 5 years R BTNERAF 1,184,524 888,486
After 5 years RF E 479,166 493,670
49,343,832 48,683,595
Less: Amount due within one year o PR REARE L
shown under current liability —FRNE|EFIE (17,805,446)  (20,250,526)
Amount due after one year —F 1R B BFIE 31,538,386 28,433,069
2015 2014
—E-REF —F—UF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Fixed rate ElailEs (i) 21,607,029 19,764,826
Variable rate FENFI
— Benchmark rate in the PRC — rh R BRI R (ii) 21,523,381 24,175,324
— London Interbank Offered —RBERITRIZER S
Rate (LIBOR) (tREERTT
FZHFE) (iii) 3,115,652 3,892,528
— Hong Kong Interbank —BARITRAZERE
Offered Rate (HIBOR) (BBIRTT
CEZiV-Y) (iv) 3,097,770 850,917
49,343,832 48,683,595
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31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

37.BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 37. RITREMMEE(E)

(Continued)

Notes:—

(i) The balance carries interest charged at fixed rates from 5.5%
t0 10.5% (2014: 6.08% to 10%).

(ii) The balance carries interest charged at variable rates based
on benchmark rate in the PRC ranging from 100% to 135%
of benchmark rate in the PRC (2014: 90% to 135% of
benchmark rate in the PRC).

(iii) ~ The balance carries interest charged at variable rates based
on LIBOR plus 3.4% (2014: LIBOR plus 2.85% to 3.4%).

(iv)  The balance carries interest charged at variable rates based
on HIBOR ranging from HIBOR plus 2.5% to 3.4% (2014:
HIBOR plus 3.4%).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
the following undrawn borrowing facilities:—

s —

(i) BHREEEFES5%E10.5%(=F—P04F :
6.08%%10%)5t 8 °

(i) RHBBREFEELENENFREEERN K
100% % 135% (= —P4F : {Rh B EEF|= 2
90%E135% )iFBFHKEHE ©

(i) ABBBRGBBEITREREM34%(ZF—N
F RBBERTRER B MN2.85%FE3.4% )% F)
FEES -

(v) HAHREFERITEZEREN FEBRITAZER

BI2.5%ZE3.4% (=2 —NF : REBRITRZE
PFEIN3.4%)FEFIREE ©

RBERR - AEEE THRERIEER

¥t

2015 2014
—E-RF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT BT
Variable rate SEEIFIE
— expiring within one year ——FRNEm 320,782 2,999,557
— expiring beyond one year ——F&Em 10,227,768 11,309,949
Fixed rate & 5E Kl =&
— expiring within one year ——FRNER - 1,905,063
— expiring beyond one year — —FIREW - -
10,548,550 16,214,569

Several banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment
of covenants relating to certain of the Group’'s
financial position ratios which are commonly found
in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If
the Group breaches the covenants the drawn down
facilities would become repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants and is up to date with the scheduled
repayments of the term loans. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
note 7(b). As at 31st December, 2015 none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached (2014: none).

ZHRRTEEARTHIRETAEEME
AR R 2 R - M SR RN EE E
BRI 2B H - MAKRER R
EXHZEERKAARELRER -

AEBTETHERRRETHELH I
RETHHREEFHER - ~&EEE
MENE & R A — P BN M7 (b) °
R-E—RFE+-_A=+—8  KEFL
EERBHUDAFEENEZH (=TT
Fm) o

—T-REFHR RIEXKEERAF
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38. NOTES PAYABLE 38. BN EE

On 16th May, 2013, the Group issued the 4.75%
notes due 2018 in the aggregate principal amount of
US$500,000,000 (equivalent to HK$3,900,000,000).
The notes bear interest at the rate of 4.75% per
annum, which are payable semi-annually in arrear
on the interest payment dates falling 16th May and
16th November in each year.

The movements of the note are set out below:

RZE—=FRA+8 AEEET
RZZE—NFEHERERIT% 2R
& - K& 4% 5500,000,0003 7T (FHE R
3,900,000,000 A7T) © ZERBIRFFIE
4.75% B - FIBZERBEUEBEFREN
REEEZFABIREA+AABET—A+R
H)XAfT o

SREHEIIWT

2015 2014
—E-0EF —Z—JuF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At 1st January n—A—H 3,900,000 3,900,000
Interest expenses =N 185,250 185,250
Less: Interest paid B/ BARE (185,250) (185,250)
At 31st December W+—-—A=+—8H 3,900,000 3,900,000
39. SHARE CAPITAL 39. R
2015 2014
—E-If —T—-mE
No. of shares HK$000  No. of shares HK$'000
ROEAE TR R #E TR
Ordinary shares, issued and  ZER - ERTRER :
fully paid
At 1st January R—F—H 3,655,682,046 17,677,143  3,644,637,046 1,822,319
Exercise of share options TR (frstn)
(note 1) 5,855,000 8,534 11,045,000 16,209
Transition to no-par value RN_E-ME=A=H
regime on 3rd March, 2014 BEEREERR
(note 2) (F¥aE2) - - - 15,838,615
At 31st December ®“+-B=1+—H 3,661,537,046 17,685,677  3,655,682,046 17,677,143
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40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note 1: During the year ended 31st December, 2015, 5,855,000
share options (2014: 11,045,000 share options) were
exercised by the eligible option holders, resulting in the
issue of 5,855,000 (2014:11,045,000) ordinary shares
in the capital of the Company at a total consideration of
HK$7,435,000 (2014: HK$14,027,000).

Note 2: In accordance with the transitional provisions set out
in section 37 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) on 3rd March, 2014
any amount standing to the credit of the share premium
account and the capital redemption reserve has become
part of the Company’s share capital.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Details of the equity-settled share option schemes
adopted by the Company are as follows:—

2003 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “2003 Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed on 28th May, 2003
(the "Adoption Date”) and it has expired at the
tenth anniversary of the Adoption Date on 27th
May, 2013, which was in accordance with the
revised Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) effective on 1st
September, 2001.

Following the expiration of 2003 Share Option
Scheme, no further share options could be granted
but the provisions of the scheme shall remain in full
force and effect in all other respects in relation to
the share options previously granted thereunder.
All outstanding share options granted before the
expiration of the 2003 Share Option Scheme and yet
to be exercised remain valid.

39.

40.

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

& NEY

Mzl : RBE-ZT—RAF&+-_A=+—BILEE -
5,855,000 7 ( =& — I £ : 11,045,000 15 )
BRIEES ERERIERE AITE @ BUEN
7,435,000 7t ( =& — P 4 : 14,027,000 74
JC) Z # R {B%175,855,0000 (=T — O F :
11,045,0004% ) 8 A R AR AN A 49 3 i8R o

RIBEBEDIF622EFHER R AHEHIFR 11
FITIRAB ZRIEMR > R=F—MFE=H=
B BORBREREABCREIEMERS
BERBERARRAZ—H5D °

MzE2

B Rt &
A RHRAD 2 PO A B R R BB 1
Fi-

—EE=FERESTS

ARBBER-_BEZ=FF A=+ N\B ([#
MBE ) ERBH L RARREMN—IEE
e (ST =FERETE ) - &
ERER-_ZET—FNLA B4R Z&E
ABRBHMAERSATERARES ETAEL
([EMRAUDETEEREMNE Him1TE
FEABIZZE—=FRA=-1+tR)Em-

R-ZZE=_FEREFEERER  TUH
E— TR N EMBAAE - A8 2 5t
SRR LB EN S EMBEEMT
EPNETRRARYA - EE_TT=
FREEEEMAEROMERITEZ
BRIEDAB -
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following table discloses details of the
Company’'s options under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme held by employees (including directors) and
movement in such holdings during each of the two
years ended 31st December, 2015:—

Exercise
Date of price  Exercisable
grant per share  period

RHAM SROGE  TREE

40. B IR AERT &I (48)

—EE=FERETEE)
TREERE - ET—AF+_-_A=+—H
tREFESFRE(BREER)ME-Z
T FHEREREIET 2 AR A E R E R
FEREENES) : —

Outstanding  Exercised Outstanding  Exercised Outstanding

at during at during at

1.1.2014 2014 1.1.2015 2015 31.12.2015
R-E-1f

R=2-DF N-%-1f t=A

-f-B W-%2-m& -B-B WR-E-3IfF =t-H
HATE % HATE T HATE

HKS
AT
Categories 1: Directors
- &%
Cheng Hong Sheng
Riks 14.7.2005 127 147.2005-13.7.2015 8,000,000 (8,000,000) - - -
Categories 2: Employees
$hI-: E8 14.7.2005 127 14.7.2005-13.7.2015 8,900,000 (3,045,000 5,855,000  (5,855,000) -

Total all categories
HieERlAs

5,855,000 (2014: 11,045,000) share options were
exercised during the year. The weighted average
share price at the date of share options exercised
during the year was HK$3.91 (2014: 3.44).

New Share Option Scheme

In order to provide incentives or rewards to the
directors and certain employees of the Company and
certain eligible persons (the “Eligible Participants”)
to contribute to the long term success of the
business of the Group, the board of directors of the
Company considers that it is in the best interest of
the Company to adopt a new share option scheme.
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

New Share Option Scheme (Continued)

At the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 28th May, 2014, the shareholders of the
Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “New Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to
which the Eligible Participants may be granted a
maximum of 364,463,704 options to subscribe for
shares of the Company upon and subject to the
terms and conditions of the rules of the New Share
Option Scheme. The New Share Option Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the adoption date of 28th May,
2014 and expiring on 27th May, 2024.

According to the New Share Option Scheme, the
board of directors of the Company may grant options
to (i) any director and employee of the Company or
subsidiaries, or an entity in which the Group holds
an interest (“Affiliate”); (ii) any customer, supplier,
agent, partner, consultant, adviser or shareholder
of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; (iii) the
trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which
include any director, employee, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, consultant, adviser or shareholder
of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or
(iv) a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee, consultant, customer, supplier, agent,
partner, shareholder, adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate to subscribe for shares in the
Company for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of
share options granted.

Share options granted should be accepted within 28
days from the date of grant. The board of directors
may at its absolute discretion determine the period
during which a share option may be exercised; such
period should expire no later than 10 years from the
date of grant of the relevant option. The board of
directors may also provide restrictions on the exercise
of a share option during the period a share option
may be exercised.

31st December, 2015
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40. BB RESTEI(4E)
HBRETEI(E)
RZE—NFRA-_TN\BEITHARQG]
BRAFRE £ ARRBRREMAIER
REETEI([FERERTE]) - Bt - &%
2 B AT AR R N0 52 PR A 3T B AR AT 2 48 Al
B 53 MR E 1R £ IR 5 364,463,704 1)
BBRRAE - UREBARFNG o 3R ER
ZlEREABRS - E—NER A=+ /\H
B AR+ FEIHER S _NFE A A
—t++tHEm e

RBFEREE > ARRESSA AN
TEABRHAURBARBRMN 2 BRHE
MBFREZBREZRERIVET  BH
BB - ()VARARHMERRRAEER
EazBEB([BMBAR D ZEREER
BE  (WVAEEXBBRARZEMES
HER  RIE  SEEH BHAA B
- BRHARH : (IEBABRFBUATA
TZEAERZETEA  IBFHRERE
UKTALZEABRBER  BRALER
AEEXBMEARZERNES  EE &
B firEm - R AEBH  EAA
B~ BRRSRER ¢ Sk(iv) AR B B
REAZERNESE  EE  FHAA TP
e - O - SEBH - KRR - BEF%
EEHESRERHRF o

PRI 2 BB RN X 2 H#EET 28 A A
EEM - EFeT 2RENBEEHBRER]
FTITEZHE - A EBEZEAREH
BRBREZ ARFH0FER - EF ST
AR EERB AR R T1TE 2 MR 1T B X
2R o
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 40. B&pRAEsH2I1(45&)

New Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The exercise price is determined by the board of
directors of the Company, and shall not be less than
the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant; and (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
total number of shares in issue.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
individual under the New Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company
(including both exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the total number of shares in issue of the
Company.

As at 31st December, 2015, no share options were
granted under New Share Option Scheme. The total
number of options available for grant is 364,463,704
(31st December, 2014: 364,463,704), representing
approximately 9.95% (31st December, 2014: 9.97 %)
of the issued share capital of the Company.
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41. PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENTS

In 2015, the Group issued perpetual capital
instruments (the “Perpetual Capital Instruments”) to
third parties with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$251,226,000 (2014: HK$998,696,000).

The Perpetual Capital Instruments have no maturity
date and the Group had discretion not to declare any
investment returns. Therefore, the Perpetual Capital
Instruments are classified as equity instrument and
recorded in equity in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

31st December, 2015
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41. KAEARTE

RZZE—RAF  AEBRE=FEITK
ABARTE([KAEBARIAR])  BFFA
& R 4251,226,0008 L ( —ZF — U F :
998,696,000/& 7T ) °

KABARTAWESHA - MAKEAE
BEAEREMRE @R - Fitt - ZKAE
AITADBARERT AR  WHELGS WK
RET AR

Movement of the Perpetual Capital Instruments is as KABARTEEHMAT : —
follows:—
Principal Distribution Total
biN 2k @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THT
At 1st January, 2014 RZZ—M$—H—H = - -
Issuance of Perpetual Capital FITKABATIR
Instruments 998,696 = 998,696
At 31st December, 2014 N—E—E
+ZA=+—H 998,696 - 998,696
Issuance of Perpetual Capital BITKABAIA
Instruments 251,226 - 251,226
Profit attributable to holders of KABATIEREAEA
Perpetual Capital Instruments FE(R R F - 131,812 131,812
Distribution to holders of Perpetual DKTXRABATLA
Capital Instruments #EEA - (93,914) (93,914)
Exchange adjustments [E 5 A% (59,446) (902) (60,348)
At 31st December, 2015 A\_ZT—-hEF
+-A=+—H 1,190,476 36,996 1,227,472
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42.

43.

LOAN FROM A FELLOW SUBSIDIARY

The amount represents loan from a subsidiary of the
ultimate holding company. The amount is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable upon expiration of the
joint venture term of Poly Plaza Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company.

The fair value of the loan at initial recognition has
been determined based on the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted using the
prevailing market rate of 6% on the date the loan
was granted. The loan is then carried at amortised
cost in subsequent periods of effective interest rate
of 6% (2014: 6%).

42.

—BERRAHMB 2 RER

RHOBIE R B RAIERA ) RN B A T
ZER o RMAH BN - T B RAR
AARAMBERDRANABERATZAE
BRI -

NEERE ZERZ AFETIRBEHER
EHZBITHENR6%ITIR Z fHat Rk
BEREZREE - ZERNELEHM
R AR AEBEFNE6%IR(=ZF—1W
F:6%) -

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 43 ELERBEE BE
The deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised by REBRAFEERBEFEBRR BTN
the Group and the movements thereon during the BEE/AEREZHNT : —
current and prior years are as follows:—
Expenses
recognised
in profit or
loss but
deductible in
Tax  subsequent
Deferred tax assets: losses period Others Total
BER
EReRET
REREE
BEHEEE HEESE MAMNEE X Hit CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TR TAL
At 1st January, 2014 R-E—NF—A—H 125,425 262,715 36,208 424,348
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 53) HEHB A A (fiE53) - (2,191) - (2,191)
Charge to profit or loss Y=g b (67,114) (5,839) 105 (72,848)
At 31st December, 2014 and R-B—ME+-A=1—H
1st January, 2015 E=ZE-h%—-HA—H 58,311 254,685 36,313 349,309
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 54)  YxEE KB AR (Ftz54) - 13,665 109 13,774
Charge to profit or loss ka8 50,211 15,984 (2,827) 63,368
Exchange adjustments B 5 3R (4,666) (15,541) (2,094) (22,301)
At 31st December, 2015 R_E-—RF+-A=+—H 103,856 268,793 31,501 404,150
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(Continued)

43. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

43. BEEBRIEEE BE(E)

Revaluation of properties

MEEMR
Properties
Investment Hotel under
Deferred tax liabilities: properties  properties developments Others Total
BEHEAE: REME BEE B ES Hith At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHL FHL FHL FHL
At st January, 2014 RZE-NE—-A—-H 957,085 52,294 81,012 3486 1,093,877
Charge to statement of Nk aka 2GR
comprehensive income 2,495 12,353 - - 14,848
Charge to profit or loss neEE 243,293 - (589) (105) 242,599
At 31st December, 2014 and RZE-MF+=A
Ist January, 2015 =t-BR-Z-1%
—-A-8 1,202,873 64,647 80,423 3,381 1,351,324
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 54)  UrBEHB A =) (FiiE54) 2,059 - 50,971 - 53,030
Charge to statement of R EEA2ERER
comprehensive income 1,964 11,732 - - 13,696
Charge to profit or loss Nk B8z 168,723 - (5,171) 353 163,905
Exchange adjustments [ R (75,617) (3,848) (4,664) (210) (84,339)
At 31st December, 2015 R-E-1F
+=A=t+-H 1,300,002 72,531 121,559 3,524 1,497,616

At 31st December, 2015, the Group other
than its subsidiaries in the PRC had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$351,824,000 (2014:
HK$376,923,000) for offset against future assessable
profits. Such unused tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

In addition, at 31st December, 2015, the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries had unused tax losses
of approximately HK$5,666,983,000 (2014:
HK$2,749,504,000) other than those unused tax
losses for which deferred tax has been provided
for, for offset against future assessable profits. The
maximum benefit from unutilised tax losses can
be carried forward up to five years from the year
in which the loss was originated to offset future
taxable profits.

R_ZE—FF+-_A=+—H8  KEBH(CF
BREAREEZHBEWBAR)BAREH 2/
TA 518 49351,824,000/8 7T ( Z B — P 4 :
376,923,000 7T ) + A] 45 H0 7K 2K FE AR B s
F o % E AR 2 B IB 18 AT 4R (R HA s 82 -

AN R=T—FHE+-_A=+—H " XK
EEzHERBATEARABRA ZHEAE
18 #75,666,983,000/ 8 L ( =& — U4 :
2,749,504,0007% 7T ) (B 1E I IR IE B 1B B 4
2 ARBARIEEIERRIN) - A0 R SR E R
Finfl o XABAFRESEZ &S - A
LRI N R SR FE R A5 Bl 2 518 2 48
Est BERZHF -
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43.

44.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(Continued)

At 31st December, 2015, deferred taxation has
not been provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries amounted to HK$5,412,329,000
(2014: HK$8,064,700,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The deferred tax assets arising from the above
unused tax losses have not been recognised in
the consolidated financial statements due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

43.

BYBHRME

EEBRERE BE(E)

RZZE—RF+_A=+—H ARAE
@%% BT R R B AR ﬁﬁ
7 E B 22 2 AE 0] 78 R A R RAR A A
%@ ERAR R BN E A Tﬁmz@ﬂm
1l 2 B = $5412,329,0008 L ( =&
— P04 : 8,064,700,000/87T) * BEER 4R
AR AEL L -

R ARREFRRI RIS MR E - Bt R
B A DU TR B 1R P A IR FE TR IR B E 1 R
RERE TS RR AR

OPERATING LEASES 44, KEHELY
The Group as lessee:- AEBEREBEA -
2015 2014
—Z-hfF e —bprinfo
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Lease payments paid under operating FRELEHENIBETENZ
leases during the year HERUA :
— office and factory premises —MRNERBEYE 38,353 30,155
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44. OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:—

31st December, 2015
R=-F—AF+=—A=+—H

44, BEFRL (E)

R HIK - AR ER R A a2
43 T B ERRS B B 2 oK SR B A AR A
Ti—

Office and
factory equipments
MAERBEDE
2015 2014
—E-IF —TpE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER T
Within one year —FR 6,492 39,896
In the second and fifth year inclusive E_EFERF
(BEEEME) 17,668 51,177
Over five years AF% 8,607 14,708
32,767 105,781
The Group as lessor:— AEBEERBEBEA  —
2015 2014
—E-IF —TpuE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Income from operating lease WNE R ERREE S
arrangements in respect of office and X ZHE 2 WA
management services 1,114,910 938,440
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44. OPERATING LEASES (Continued) 44, BEBRN(B)
The Group as lessor:- (Continued) AEBERHBA  —(8)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RI|EHR - AEEEBF BT Z KK
contracted with tenants for the following future SEMEHIBAT : —

minimal lease payments:—

Office and shop Management fee income Equipment
HAERAER 53:3-UON By
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
%-1f CET-mE  Z%-1F RO CE-Rf 0 ZEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TiEn TR Fin TER T
Within one year —ER 285,331 158,410 19,818 16,907 - 379
In the second to fifth year inclusive ~ £-Z£RF
(RIEEERE) 540,668 519,240 66,990 63,031 - 382
Over five years % 761,391 458,651 73,490 25,513 - -
1,587,390 1,136,301 160,298 105451 - 761
Significant leases are negotiated for a lease term of MEBREANEAREZHENR1E205F
1 to 20 years (2014: 1 to 20 years). Certain leases —E-MFE: —E_+F)AF o 5THE
contain a contingent rental element. ERSHAHEEHD °
45. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 45. ERIE
2015 2014
—E-REF —Z—JOF
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Capital expenditure and investments BT SIEEETH
contracted for but not provided in the  BARR4&GZA B BHRE
consolidated financial statements in Btz BT
respect of:— Ri&&E : —
— property development expenditures —MEEERT 12,515,243 13,862,585
— acquisition of interest in a joint —E—HeEhEz
venture P 565,452 -
— acquisition of land use rights — Ug B8 £t (s FA R - 750,789
— capital injection under the capital —RE-_ZT—RAFENA
increase agreement with Poly ++ B ERFI B 7
Finance Company Limited dated BIRARIZEIEE
17th September, 2015 W ZEE 154,787 -
13,235,482 14,613,374
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46. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group arranged mortgage loan facilities
with certain banks for purchasers of property
units and provided guarantees to banks to secure
obligations of such purchasers of repayment. The
maximum guarantees given to banks amounted to
HK$22,704,939,000 as at 31st December, 2015
(2014: HK$19,283,061,000). Such guarantees
terminate upon the earlier of (i) issue of the real estate
ownership certificate; and (ii) the satisfaction of the
mortgage loans by the buyers of the properties.
The Group has not recognised any deferred income
in respect of these guarantees as its fair value is
considered to be minimal by the directors. The
directors also consider that the fair value of the
underlying properties is able to cover the outstanding
mortgage loans generated by the Group in the event
the purchasers default payments to the banks.

At 31st December, 2015, the Group had
given guarantees to certain banks in respect
of credit facilities granted to certain associates
and joint ventures of the Group amounting to
HK$1,827,619,000 (2014: HK$1,177,215,000)
and HK$952,381,000 (2014: HK$2,849,342,000)
respectively, of which HK$1,827,619,000 (2014:
HK$1,177,215,000) and HK$952,381,000 (2014:
HK$2,849,342,000) had been utilised by the
associates and joint ventures respectively.

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

46. ABE
NEBEMYEEMERES TRITLHE
RIBEFRME - WRRITREERARER
ZEBRBOEREL R_T—1F
+ZA=+—H K TFTRITOERER
KA 3¥22,704,939,000/8 L ( =T — M & :
19,283,061,000/87T) ° A RAERKEN T3
WEEEERKIE : (VBHFEMEMGE
FRINDEERENZBER - ~5H
W ERZFERERTAELTIRA - 1 TY
HREFREEQAFELTEKN - EFN
R BB ERWEMRITER - HEY
FZATEDNRARABAS B EE 2 -K
BEIZBER

R-ZZE—RE+-_A=1+—H  x&E
MAEBETHELRRARALEERN
EREERE D A A H1,827,619,000
B (=Z=F—MF : 1,177,215,000 /&
JC ) % 952,381,000 8 L (=& — U 4 :
2,849,342,0008 7T ) [ & T HRITIR H#E
R MBEERAREECEESFBA
H #1,827,619,0008 L (=& — I &
1,177,215,000 % 7t ) % 952,381,000 % 7T
(ZZ—PU4 : 2,849,342,000/87T) °
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47. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 47. EEEF

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying RBERAR - BIRIERAEEMEREER
value of the Group’s assets which were pledged to MEZERZAEBEEZREABNT  —

secure credit facilities granted to the Group are as

follows:—

2015 2014
—B-HE —E—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
Investment properties LB 4,532,142 3,949,832
Hotel properties B TE 2 503,929 702,911
Buildings EF 104,254 113,432
Prepaid lease payments TENHEERE 191,321 284,095
Properties under development ERAPYE 17,782,220 24,036,940
Properties held for sale HIELEYEE 1,319,957 2,195,906
Bank deposits RITFER 440,437 1,519,231

24,874,260 32,802,347

In addition to above pledge of assets, at 31st B i EERBI R —RER =T

December, 2015 and 2014, the Group's interests —ME+=ZA=1+—08 XEBDEFREF

in certain subsidiaries was pledged to secure credit BETHEB AT 2 EEIKBIELSNEFT

facilities granted to the Group. The details of net asset EREZERBZIER WBAREZSEFE
value of subsidiaries are as follows:— ZEEMT - —

2015 2014

—E-RF —ZE—UF

HK$"000 HK$'000

FHExT FA&T

Total assets BERE 12,498,665 6,802,099

Total liabilities BfEBE (11,466,405) (5,966,803)

Balance at end of the year FEREERS 1,032,260 835,296
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48. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong
operate a defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme for their qualified employees pursuant to the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the scheme are held separately in a fund
which is under the control of an independent trustee.
The retirement benefit scheme contributions charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represent the contributions payable by the Group to
the fund at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.
When there are employees who leave the scheme
prior to becoming fully vested in the contributions,
the amount of the forfeited contributions will be used
to reduce future contributions payable by the Group.

To comply with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the "MPFO"), the Group also
participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
("MPF Scheme”) for its qualified employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority
under the MPFO. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at rate specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect of MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising
from the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represent contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the scheme.

48.

31st December, 2015
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RAERETE
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HEIGRDIAE EREB R ERHEIRK
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SR SR AT AR FRR R R A 2

K -

ELBRESHE ZRABNGEHKE
BEGBmRNE  HERAREREZ
AEIZRRIFRIEZ L RN TR 2 H

e
N

“T-REFR RIUBXKEEERLIF 249



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt % 3R 3% i &%

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

48. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES BINERETEI(E)

(Continued)

The employees in the subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefit. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme.

At the end of the reporting period, there was no
significant forfeited contributions, which arose upon
employees leaving the retirement benefit scheme,
available to reduce the contributions payable in the
future years.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement
of profit or loss of approximately HK$137,859,000
(2014: HK$82,054,000) represents contributions
payable to the schemes by the Group during the
year.

250 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED Annual Report 2015

TEMBARZEEDTERFEECE
REBERAKBAFTEIZKE - HERFA
BEBTEZETENLERTZENRE
HMEFBIAE BN BRABA - NEBHBENRE
MEt8 2 — B ERRBEZLEUEL A

B3 o

RE|ERR - WEE R SRR REFG
B 2= A AT PR AR IO R R AR JE 0% R A R
ZERZIHK -

BERAREaRNBZ2EKRENR
137,859,000/ 7T (= F — M4 : 82,054,000
BT HERFAEEFANERZSEIX
2 5K -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

49, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 49. BBAALR S
(a) Transactions and balances with China (a) EFERINEBZRZREH

Poly Group

The following is a summary of material related T3 AR FE21 22 ~ 31~ 32 %33
party transactions and balances entered into by IR R 5 RAEERIN - AREE EAp
the Group with China Poly Group Corporation BlRFEE A A REKE AR ([HE
and its subsidiaries (“China Poly Group”), apart RAEEDFTZMERBEATRZS
from transactions and balances disclosed in RESBE - R IMEK ETRAIZE
note 21, 22, 31, 32 and 33. The transactions MUAETEENEER D - ZZFMER
also constitute connected transactions as SME—THBREFSREHE
defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. R | —BHKEE o

Further details of these connected transactions
are disclosed under the paragraph “Connected
Transactions” in the Directors’ Report.

2015 2014

—E-HF —Z—OF

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
bz FET FAT

Transactions:— RS —

Construction services fee EEREER (i) 1,174,334 1,951,020

Property rental income IEL R ON (i) 15,141 14,954

Interest expenses FE X (iii) 151,312 164,328

Guarantee charges EREAX (iv) 8,645 20,122

Theatre operating expenses BB = i 2 (v) 8,537 8,861

Management fee income EEBRA 1,217 1,158

Rental expenses paid BEfNHESEAX 2,525 1,964

Interest income from loan to B F—R#Z QA F]

an associate IR 2 F BURA (vi) - 382

Notes:— BieE : —

(i) The amount represents the construction services (i) BRFERYEZREBER Z2ENAFESE
fee paid or payable to China Poly Group for BRASFE A5t T o BURFI SR B 2 2SR ARIS B A -
the construction services in respect of property
development projects.

(i) The amount represents rental income received for the (i) ABFEEL2EMERZEKERES
theatres which made with reference to market price. A ©

(i) The interest expenses derived from the loans advanced @iy FEXHKREPERRMEERNZER -
from China Poly Group. Details of the terms are set out RREFE IR R MIFE31 ~ 32 /%33 ©

in notes 31, 32, and 33.
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49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(a) Transactions and balances with China
Poly Group (Continued)

Notes:— (Continued)

(iv)  The guarantee charges paid to China Poly Group for
acting as a guarantor of bank loans borrowed by
subsidiaries of the Group and it was charged at 1% on
the maximum guarantee amount.

(v)  The theatre operating expenses were paid to a joint
venture for the operation and management of a
theatre.

(vi)  Details of the terms are set out in note 21.

49. EBALRZ (1E)

(a) RAPERFEEZXZ KA

(%)
i

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

— (&)
PERFAX TN T BRA S E (A AKE

MBARMERITERZERA) - LRk
BERERER %ATHE

B Bre 2 58 5 2 T i I B R B e A S A
FTRAERE-

TR B R 21 -

2015 2014
—E-IF —E—mEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FET FAT
Balances:— rEeR o —
Bank balances and deposits IRITRETFERTER (i) 642,477 690,602
Amount due from an associate f& iy — R <
NGIEQ] (ii) 48,573 51,010
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE (iii) 815,476 962,025
Notes:— BieE : —

(i) The amount represents the deposits placed by the
Group with China Poly Group.

(i) Details of the terms are set out in note 21.

(i) The amount represents loan from China Poly Group,
which was unsecured, carried interest at a variable rate
of 110% of benchmark rate in the PRC and a fixed
rate of 7.99% and repayable within two years.

(iv)  The balances with the ultimate holding company, an

intermediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries
are set out in notes 31, 32 and 33.
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49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(b) Material transactions with other

(9]

related parties

During the year, the Group entered into the
following material transactions with related
parties other than China Poly Group:—

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

49. BEEAALXRF(E)

(b) BEMBBAALZEARS

FA o AN B AR R A 5 B LAY
BEBEALRIL TIEARR S © —

2015 2014
—E—RF —ET—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mot FHExT FHETT
Transactions:— x5 —

Interest income FEHA (i) 246,430 200,675
Interest expenses M BFEX (ii) 118,503 79,882

Notes:— izt : —

(i) The amount represents the interest income from loans
to an associate and joint ventures. Details of the terms
are set out in notes 21 and 22.

(i) ~ The amount represents the interest paid to non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries. Details of the
terms are set out in note 34.

Material transactions with other state-
controlled entities in the PRC

Part of the Group’s operations is carried
out in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities directly or indirectly
owned or controlled by the PRC government
(“state-controlled entities”). In addition,
the Group itself is part of a larger group of
companies under China Poly Group which
is controlled by the PRC government. Apart
from the transactions with China Poly Group,
other related parties disclosed in this note,
the Group also conducts business with other
state-controlled entities. The directors consider
those state-controlled entities are independent
third parties so far as the Group’s business
transactions with them are concerned.

(i) BERBEERT —HEE AR KEERETRK
BB o EREFBERPMTE21 %22 ©

(i)  AEARBECN THEBRRIFEHBRZAE -
R BRNA T E34 -

() HEAEHEMEEEEZEARS

AEE T B AT A B BT E &
EHREAIEFRcER(TEHZERR])
TECREBEREPETHEDRS
BESN  ANEE AR H T B BT iR
Bz hBERMNEEE T 2RARAF
B o BRAHI AT ER E AP BIR NI
B HARATETZIRZI K
SETEEBEECRETRS - &
ERA - RAREEZSEECRE
TREBRIME » ZFHELES
BEIE=T -
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49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c) Material transactions with other

state-controlled entities in the PRC
(Continued)
In establishing its pricing strategies and
approval process for transactions with other
state-controlled entities, the Group does not
differentiate whether the counter-party is a
state-controlled entity or not.

Material transactions/balances with other
state-controlled entities are as follows:—

49. EBALRZ (1E)

() EFEHMEEEEIEARS

(&)

ERIVHEAMEAECEETRHZE
B RAERED - AEEYERE
ST BB EhRESR -

BHEMEELEETIERARS
RO : —

2015 2014
—E—IF —E—OF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FH&T

Transactions:— RG =
Trade sales B oHE 83,859 91,279
Trade purchases BH5EE 8,780 -

In view of the nature of the Group’s hotel
operating business, the directors are of the
opinion that, except as disclosed above, it is
impracticable to ascertain the identity of the
counterparties and accordingly whether the
transactions were with other state-controlled
entities.

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposit placements,
borrowings and other general banking facilities,
with certain banks and financial institutions
which are state-controlled entities in its ordinary
course of business. In view of the nature of
those banking transactions, the directors are of
the opinion that separate disclosure would not
be meaningful.
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49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(9]

(d)

Material transactions with other
state-controlled entities in the PRC
(Continued)

Except as disclosed above, the directors are
of the opinion that transactions with other
state-controlled entities are not significant to
the Group’s operations.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other
members of key management during the year
was as follows:—

31st December, 2015
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49. BEEAALXRF(E)

(c)

(d)

EREHMEEREIEARS
(&)

BREXPIREEIN  EFRR - HE
EERRETIRZHAEEZE
BREMSLTEK -

TEEBAEME

FA - EFZREMEIZEEARZM
BT —

2015 2014

—E-HE —ZT—OF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET BT

Short-term benefits ySEGEER 21,714 26,344
Post-employment benefits BER 1278 ) 594 449
22,308 26,793
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50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 50 A NElR=-ZEBE—-—HF+ZHA

POSITION OF THE COMPANY AS AT

31ST DECEMBER, 2015

=t+— BBk

2015 2014
—E-EF —E—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
(= FHET T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries B A B 539,794 539,794
Amounts due from subsidiaries UL B A T FIE 22,628,365 20,504,019
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 78,378 78,378
Total non-current assets IERE B EMARE 23,246,537 21,122,191
Current assets REEE
Other receivables FEUL EL At BR R 99,255 133,550
Amount due from a subsidiary  fEUk—REHIE
NGO 3,925,675 4,011,203
Bank balances, deposits and IRITAET - TR
cash 4 1,411,828 2,483,727
Total current assets MENEEERE 5,436,758 6,628,480
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables FET E A BR SR 37,254 41,444
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHT B A FIEIE 228,526 471,847
Bank borrowings RITEE
— due within one year — —F RN FI|H - 780,000
Total current liabilities M BERRE 265,780 1,293,291
Net current assets REEEZE 5,170,978 5,335,189
Total assets less current EEABRRBEE
liabilities 28,417,515 26,457,380
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31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY AS AT

50 KR ARR=-ZFE—HRFE+=ZA
=t+—HZBBERRERE)

31ST DECEMBER, 2015 (Continued)

2015 2014
—E-HF —E=—mE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ih=s FHExT BT
Capital and reserves BEXRR #E
Share capital N 39 17,685,677 17,677,143
Reserves H & 2,864,398 916,792
Total equity RiEEzE 20,550,075 18,593,935
Non-current liabilities FRBAEME
Bank borrowings RITEE
— due after one year — — %% 3,967,440 3,963,445
Notes payable e Ri& 3,900,000 3,900,000
Total non-current liabilities IR BEARE 7,867,440 7,863,445
28,417,515 26,457,380

KABSEEN_ZE—"F=A-+-A#
R AR RETE -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 22nd March, 2016.

HAN QINGTAO YE LI WEN
25 ERE
Managing Director Director
EERE £
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50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

0. XRANR=F — E‘L‘:

POSITION OF THE COMPANY AS AT =t+—HziBikREk(E)
31ST DECEMBER, 2015 (Continued)
The reserves of the Company are as follows:— RABZIHEEAT © —
Share Capital
Share option redemption Accumulated
premium reserve reserve profits Total
ROEE BRERE ZARERE By &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR TR TR TR TR
At 1st January, 2015 R-E-RF—F—H - 1,099 - 915,693 916,792
Exercise of share options TE R e - (1,099) - - (1,099)
Dividends paid (note 15) BARE (Hz15) - - - (278,217)  (278,217)
Profit for the year R - - - 2,226,982 2,226,982
At 31st December, 2015 RZT-R%
+=A=1+-H - - - 2,864,398 2,864,398
At 1st January, 2014 RZZ-mE-A—-A 15,814,698 3,281 23917 2,267,367 18,109,263
Exercise of share options TfEiERE = (2,182) = = (2,182)
Dividends paid (note 15) BARRE (15) - - - (812,754) (812,754)
Loss for the year EEER = = = (538,920) (538,920)
Transition to no-par value regime on ~ R=Z—ME=A=H
3rd March, 2014 ERZERERD (15,814,698) = (23,917) - (15,838,615)
At 31st December, 2014 R-E—-ImF
+-RA=1-H = 1,099 = 915,693 916,792
Notes:— BisE : —

(@) As at 31st December, 2015, in the opinion of the directors,
the reserves of the Company available for distribution
to shareholders amounted to HK$2,864,398,000 (2014:
HK$915,693,000).

(b)  The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company includes a profit of HK$2,226,982,000 (2014:
loss of HK$538,920,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.
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(@ W=-T—AF+=-A=+—8 EFRA X2
T“Mﬁ n Ik T AR 3R 2 17 5 45 2,864,398,0007% 7T
(ZZ—W4 : 915,693,000/87T) °

(b) AQRERAERGREHMNBIEERAEAARG
SR ERIE 2% F12,226,982,000/8 T ( =2 —M
F : [f548538,920,000/7T) ©
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31st December, 2015 are as follows:—

31st December, 2015

R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

51. FEME QT

R-ZE—AF+-_A=+—8 AQR=E
BB ARZFHBAT « —

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/

registered capital held

by the Company
AARMBERTRE/
AR AR fG =
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
TR ERTREBHRE
WEAR AR Bt 2 MR A B Mg FEXH
Bassington Investments Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares — 100%  Property investment
Limited BB 2RERAR NERE
ARERBARRATA
Big Nice Development Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share = 100%  Property development
FEERBARAA BB iR B MEER
Able Lucky Development Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100%  Property development
Limited B IR AR MEERE
HEERARAT
Big Support Limited British Virgin Us$1 = 100%  Investment holding
AEERDA Islands (ES REER
RERLHE
CMIC Finance Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% - Financial services
BB 2MREER S RRH
CMIC Management Services  Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100% - Management services
Limited BB 100f% & A% EIRR
Fainland Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares = 100%  Property investment
MABR AT BB 2MREER WERE
First Great Investments Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
Limited BB 2RERAR REER
BERERRRA
“T-NFFR RIBXEEERARF
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 51. TEMB AT (&)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
KAFAMBERITRE/
AR AR A b 2R
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
R, BERTRESRE
HEARER B 4t B SR BRARE H# HE TEXR
Geldy Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Property investment
BB 1,000% & A% MERE
Grandful International Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares = 100%  Investment holding
Limited ) 2MREBIR REER
EERRBRAR
High Wealth International Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100%  Property investment
Limited 0 2R BRI NERE
ERERERAF
Honorlink Investments Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100%  Property investment
Limited Bt 2RE AR MERE
MR ERRAT
L RFIAEEGR AR PRC Registered capital = 100%  Investment,
(THERA) HE RMB62,000,000 management and
(note i)(FiIzEi) AMRAARE operation of a hotel
62,000,0007C RE EER
EE R
Johnsbury Limited British Virgin US$9,600,000 100% - Investment holding
AIERERAA Islands 9,600,000% 7T REER
EBETRS
RIMREERAH PRC Registered capital - 75%  Investment,
(TRMAE]D) M US$10,000,000 management and
(note ii) (Pt i) RRA operation of a hotel
10,000,000% 7T complex
RE BEREEED
JERIE
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31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 51. FEMEB AR (&)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
EATFMBERTRE/
AR A B At 2=
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
B BRTREHRE/
HEARERE Rt 2 TR BRARFE Ef ME FEXH
T REFIZESEABERAR PRC Registered capital - 66%  Manufacturing and
([RFIZ)) F RMB9,000,000 wholesaling of
(note i) (K &iii) FMBRAARE compact discs, video
9,000,0007T compact discs and
digital video discs
SUERBBOLER - 55K
P ET O
Poly (Hong Kong) Property ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100%  Investment holding
Developments Limited EiB 1L A REER
RA(BB)FHEER
ARATF
Poly (Hong Kong) Real Estate  Hong Kong 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
Limited BB iR B REER
RA(EE) B ERE
BRAT
Power Jade Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Us$1 = 100%  Securities investment
BEERERAR slands 1£5 EERA
EEELHS
Prime Brilliant Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares = 100%  Property investment
HEBRAF B 2R ERAR MERE
Propwood Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares = 100%  Property investment
ERRAT BB 2RERAR MERE
“T-NFFR RIUBXEEERAR 261
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 51. TEMB AT (&)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
FATBERITRE/
AR AR A b 2R
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
R, BERTRESRE
HEARER B 4t B MR A H# HE TEXR
Rapid Bloom Limited British Virgin Us$1 = 100%  Investment holding
ARERAA Islands (E REER
EBRAHE
Saneble Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100%  Property investment
RERRDA B 2R B MERE
Smart Best Investments Hong Kong 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
Limited ) IR & AR REER
BERABRAA
Volgala International Ltd. British Virgin US$1 - 100%  Securities investment
Islands (E BHRE
EBRLHS
EERREEERAM PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
note i) (Fff&i) HE US$35,000,000 NEER
BTN
35,000,000 7©
BEEEEEERAT PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
(note i) (Fff&E1) PE HK$280,000,000 NEBR
BTN
280,000,000/ 7T
RIEXEEERAH PRC Registered capital - 100% Investment holding
(note i) (K1) PE RMB2,200,000,000 WERR
AMRAARE

2,200,000,0007T
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

51. T EMB LT (E)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
EATFMBERTRE/
AR A B At 2=
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
B BRTREHRE/
HEARERE Rt 2 TR BRARFE Ef ME FEXH
FEBfENEZERRAR PRC Registered capital = 100%  Property investment
(note ) (PfY&ED) i US$24,000,000 nERE
M AR A
24,000,000 T
LErFIEtERRERAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property investment
EP RMB15,000,000 MERE
TMRAARS
15,000,0007C
HEEHENEERAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property investment and
L RMBS5,000,000 investment holding
AMRAARS MERE RIREER
5,000,0007%
FERFIESEEEE PRC Registered capital - 90%  Property investment
BRAT H RMB200,000,000 NERE
A RAARS
200,000,0007T
FERAIERERTE PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
BRAT q: RMB 150,000,000 MEER
AMRAARS
150,000,0007T
ERRAERERAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
i RMB1,000,000 MELRE
AMRAARS
1,000,0007T
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 51. TEMB AT (&)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
FATBERITRE/
AR AR A b 2R
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
R, BERTRESRE
HEARER B 4t B MR A H# HE TEXR
FERFEEEEESE PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property management
BRAT HE RMB50,000,000 WEER
AMRAARE
50,000,0007C
HERFISEEXERDA  PRC Registered capital - 50.10% Investment holding
HE RMB20,000,000 REBER
AMRAARE
20,000,0007C
HEREEERRAR PRC Registered capital - 50.10% Property development
M RMB15,000,000 NEER
FfRAARE
15,000,0007T
FERREERRAR PRC Registered capital - 50.10% Property development
HE RMB8,000,000 NEER
FfRAARE
8,000,0007T
FEREBEEERAT PRC Registered capital - 50.10% Property development
ol RMB15,000,000 MEEE
AMRAARE
15,000,0007T
FeReFHWELLBRAR PRC Registered capital - 50.10% Property agency
i RMB1,000,000 MERE
AMRAARE
1,000,0007T
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

51. T EMB LT (E)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
ARAFHERITRE
AR A B At 2=
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
B BRTREHRE/
HEARERE Rt 2 MR A Ef ME FEXH
DERFISHBEHELSL PRC Registered capital = 100%  Property agency
BRAT] A RMB5,000,000 WERR
AMRAARS
5,000,0007C
FEBEEMERRE PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
BREEDH I RMB10,000,000 MEER
TMRAARS
10,000,0007T
FERAXERERS PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
ARAA HE RMB50,000,000 MR
EMRAARS
50,000,000
PERFINEFEHERE PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
BRAF HE RMB50,000,000 MEERE
AMRAARS
50,000,0007T
HERMEEFERE PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
BRAT] H RMB50,000,000 MEER
AMRAARS
50,000,0007T
DERFEFERE PRC Registered capital = 100%  Property development
ERAR i RMB50,000,000 MELRE
AMRAARS
50,000,0007T
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 51. TEMB AT (&)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
KAFAMBERITRE/
AR AR A b 2R
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
R, BERTRESRE
HEARER B 4t B SR BRARE H# HE TEXR
FERFBEXEEERLNA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
I RMB50,000,000 MERE
AMRAARE
50,000,0007T
TRREEREREER PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
BRAT ] RMB100,000,000 MEER
M RAARE
100,000,0007C
EENEEERERDA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
2] RMB200,000,000 NEER
FHRAARE
200,000,0007T
RAUEXEE(LE)RE PRC Registered capital - 100%  Investment holding
ARR7A HE RMB580,000,000 REER
FfRAARE
580,000,0007%
EERFIMECEER PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property investment
BRARF HE RMB208,170,000 MERE
AMRAARE
208,170,0007T
MIERHNEXBRAF] PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
[ RMB 100,000,000 and investment
AMRAARE holding
100,000,0007C NEERIREER
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 51. FEMEB AR (&)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
ARAFHERITRE
AR A B At 2=
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
B BRTREHRE/
HEARERE Rt 2 MR A Ef ME FEXH
MILRFIZETIRERAF  PRC Registered capital - 100%  Provision of construction
H RMB120,000,000 service
AMRAARS R LR
120,000,0007C
MILRFIRE BB AT PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
H RMB100,000,000 and investment
AMBRAARE holding
100,000,0007T MEBRREER
HILRFLREEEERAR  PRC Registered capital - 68%  Property development
T RMB50,000,000 MEER
AMRAARS
50,000,000
RERNEXERDA PRC Registered capital - 55%  Property development
HE RMB41,200,000 NEER
AMRAARS
41,200,0007C
BUE R R B PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property investment
BREAEAR HE RMB 100,000 MERE
AMRAARS
100,0007T
RERTIBSEEEE PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property management
BRAE HE RMB 100,000,000 MEER
AMRAARS
100,000,0007T
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

51. TEMB AT (E)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
KAFAMBERITRE/
AR AR A b 2R
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
R, BERTRESRE
HEARER B 4t B SR BRARE H# HE TEXR
EEFRANREXERAR  PRC Registered capital - 51%  Property development
2l RMB8&0,000,000 MEERE
AMRAARE
80,000,0007C
REEGBENEHERS PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
BRARA(THERS]) ] RMB10,000,000 MEER
M RAARE
10,000,0007T
TR EERIZERAE PRC Registered capital - 51%  Property investment
el RMB91,656,147 MERE
FHRAARE
91,656,1477C
BRGENEZFERAF PRC Registered capital = 100%  Investment holding
o] RMB300,000,000 REER
FfRAARE
300,000,0007T
BILTRANEZERAF PRC Registered capital = 100%  Property development
ol RMB30,000,000 MEEE
AMRAARE
30,000,0007T
BMNRMEAEEBRAR  PRC Registered capital - 51%  Property development
] RMB30,000,000 MELRE
AMRAARE
30,000,0007T
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

51. T EMB LT (E)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
EATFMBERTRE/
AR A B At 2=
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
B BRTREHRE/
HEARERE Rt 2 TR BRARFE Ef ME FEXH
BUMBRKEERAR AR PRC Registered capital = 100%  Property development
H RMB30,000,000 WEER
AMRAARS
30,000,0007C
BLTREEXER A PRC Registered capital 100% - Property development
(note i) (FIzEi) H USD50,000,000 MELE
M AR
50,000,000% T
ENRBEXERDA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
q: RMB50,000,000 MERER
EMRAARS
50,000,0007T
BMENESXER AR PRC Registered capital - 51%  Property development
i RMB101,800,000 NEER
A RAARS
101,800,0007C
BNRmEERZERRAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
H RMB30,000,000 MEER
AMRAARS
30,000,0007T
BNEERHERZEERAR PRC Registered capital - 55%  Property development
H RMB100,000,000 MELRE
AMRAARS
100,000,0007T
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 51. TEMB AT (&)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
KAFAMBERITRE/
AR AR A b 2R
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
R, BERTRESRE
HEARER B 4t B SR BRARE H# HE TEXR
ENREEZERAH PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
I RMB50,000,000 MERE
AMRAARE
50,000,0007T
BINRFBESE I ER % PRC Registered capital - 80%  Property development
BRAT ] RMB100,000,000 MEER
M RAARE
100,000,0007C
BEMMRAEEFMERE  PRC Registered capital - 70%  Property development
ARAT il RMB88,926,900 NEER
FHRAARE
88,926,9007T
RITRA R b A R % PRC Registered capital - 100%  Investment holding
ARRT HE RMB100,000,000 REER
FfRAARE
100,000,0007C
FYTRFEEERS  PRC Registered capital - 70%  Property development
BRAR HE RMB50,000,000 NEER
AMRAARE
50,000,0007T
FIMEZRREER AR PRC Registered capital = 70%  Property development
] RMB200,000,000 MELRE
AMRAARE
200,000,0007T
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 51. FEMEB AR (&)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
EATFMBERTRE/
AR A B At 2=
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
B BRTREHRE/
HEARERE Rt 2 TR BRARFE Ef ME FEXH
FINTRFUEEBERAR  PRC Registered capital = 100%  Property investment and
H RMB150,000,000 management
AMRAARS WERERER
150,000,0007C
RMEMNBXEEERAR  PRC Registered capital - 100%  Investment holding
] RMB200,000,000 REER
TMRAARS
200,000,0007T
ERFRFGREHERZ PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
ARAA H RMB50,000,000 MEER
EMRAARS
50,000,0007T
EGRARERHERS PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
BRAF H RMB20,000,000 MEER
A RAARS
20,000,0007C
RAEMNEHEREERARF  PRC Registered capital - 66.50% Property development
H RMB100,000,000 NEER
AMRAARS
100,000,0007T
RABMBREEER PRC Registered capital - 66.50% Hot spring operation
BBRAT i RMB3,000,000 RERR
AMRAARS
3,000,0007T
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

51. TEMB AT (E)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
KAFAMBERITRE/
AR AR A b 2R
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
R, BERTRESRE
HEARER B 4t B SR BRARE H# HE TEXR
ELRFIEHERZEERAR  PRC Registered capital - 66.50% Property development
HE RMB50,000,000 MEER
AMRAARE
50,000,0007T
EGRFEARERZ PRC Registered capital - 66.50% Property development
BRAT ] RMB50,000,000 MEER
M RAARE
50,000,0007T
EGRABEEERZ PRC Registered capital - 51%  Property development
BB HE RMB50,000,000 YRR
FHRAARE
50,000,0007T
BRRAERE N ERE PRC Registered capital - 50%  Property development
ARRT HE RMB50,000,000 NEER
FfRAARE
50,000,0007T
BRERRNEXEERDA PRC Registered capital - 35%  Property development
ol RMB50,000,000 MEEE
AMRAARE
50,000,0007T
LRTRMBRFEHERE  PRC Registered capital - 58%  Property development

BRAR([RFRER]) I
(note iv) (fff&iv)

RMB 100,000,000
AR AARE
100,000,0007T
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

51. T EMB LT (E)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
ARAFHERITRE
AR A B At 2=
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
B BERTREARE/
MEAREE Rt 2 MR A Ef HE TEER
RABXEEMERTIERAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
H RMB50,000,000 MELR
AMRAARS
50,000,0007C
%ﬁjéﬁﬂ%iﬁ? TARE PRC Registered capital - 51%  Property development
BREMER 3 RMB50,000,000 MEERE
A MRARARS
50,000,0007C
/ﬁm[}%i@,??‘&:{ PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
ﬁﬂﬁ H RMB20,000,000 MEER
A MRARARE
20,000,0007C
KREEREMELRE PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
BEAT] H RMB20,000,000 MEER
AMRAARS
20,000,0007T
RREEMENELRE PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
BRAT e RMB20,000,000 MEER
AMRAARS
20,000,0007C
IREERT SR ERRE PRC Registered capital = 100%  Property development
ERAR H RMB20,000,000 MELRE
AMRAARS
20,000,0007C
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 51. TEMB AT (&)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
KAFAMBERITRE/
AR AR A b 2R
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
R, BERTRESRE
HEARER B 4t B SR BRARE H# HE TEXR
RALFEZLEEER AT PRC Registered capital - 100%  Investment holding
HE RMB340,000,000 REER
AMRAARE
340,000,0007T
LWRRMNEZEEEERAR  PRC Registered capital - 80%  Property development
HE RMB50,000,000 MEER
M RAARE
50,000,0007T
IWRRFIER B ERZE PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
ARAT il RMB10,000,000 NEER
FHRAARE
10,000,0007T
WERIRFIRA S ER PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
ARRT HE RMB10,000,000 NEER
T RAARE
10,000,0007T
ERRNEXFRAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
ol RMB237,306,206 MEEE
AMRAARE
237,306,2067T
ERRAEEREERAR PRC Registered capital = 85%  Property development
] RMB200,000,000 MELRE
AMRAARE
200,000,0007T
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 51. FEMEB AR (&)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
ARAFHERITRE
AR A B At 2=
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
B BRTREHRE/
HEARERE Rt 2 MR A Ef ME FEXH
EaRNEXERAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
A RMB100,000,000 WEER
AMRAARS
100,000,0007C
BERNEEEB AR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
EP RMB100,000,000 MEER
TMRAARS
100,000,0007C
BETINEXERDA PRC Registered capital - 70%  Property development
q: RMB30,000,000 MERER
EMRAARS
30,000,0007C
EBRRNAEXERAR PRC Registered capital - 80%  Property development
H RMB50,000,000 NEER
AMRAARS
50,000,0007T
EEFIEEEERAR PRC Registered capital - 55%  Property development
H RMB50,000,000 MEER
AMRAARS
50,000,0007T
R ZEREZAER AR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Investment holding
H RMB180,000,000 KA K
AMRAARS
180,000,0007T
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

51. TEMB AT (E)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
AAFFECRITRE/
AR AR P A L =
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
FEMARL,/ BRTREHRE/
HWELRBRE R 3 MR A HE BiE FEXK
R ZEmEERZER AR PRC Registered capital - 80% Investment holding
HE RMB100,000,000 RAER
ABRAARE
100,000,0007C
TERFEMERZERAR PRC Registered capital - 80%  Property development
& RMB10,000,000 MEER
AfRAARE
10,000,0007T
EEENENERRERAT  PRC Registered capital - 90%  Property development
hE RMB50,000,000 MEER
ARBRAARE
50,000,0007C
ZERFIREFRAR PRC Registered capital = 100%  Property development
HE RMB10,000,000 nEERE
AfRAARE
10,000,0007C
ERRANEMEFRZER LA PRC Registered capital - 73%  Property development
hE RMB100,000,000 MEER
ARBRAARE
100,000,0007%
ERRNEEXEEER AR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Investment holding
hE RMB250,000,000 RERR
AfBRAARE
250,000,0007C
ERRFEEEREEAR PRC Registered capital = 100%  Property development
i RMB150,000,000 MEER
HMRAARE
150,000,0007T
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 51. FEMEB AR (&)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
ARAFHERITRE
AR A B At 2=
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
B BRTREHRE/
HEARERE Rt 2 MR A Ef ME FEXH
HEMRRAFMERRAR  PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
i RMB10,000,000 NEER
AMRAARS
10,000,0007T
MEMNREBEMERRAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
h RMB10,000,000 MELRE
FMRAARS
10,000,0007T
BRGHNENEEEE PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
BB AR H RMB50,000,000 MEER
AMRAARS
50,000,0007T
MNRFIEXERD A PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
B RMB100,000,000 MELE
AMRAARS
100,000,000
BERRNEEER AR PRC Registered capital = 100%  Property development
(note i) (Fit&Ei) i HK$1,459,000,000 NEER
AR A
1,459,000,000% 7T
ERREEERRAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
H RMB50,000,000 MEER
AMRAARS
50,000,0007C
BERNEEERAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
h RMB262,665,000 MELRE
AMRAARE
262,665,0007T
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 51. TEMB AT (&)

Attributable portion of
the issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
AAFFECRITRE/
RS P A b 3
Particulars of
Place of issued and
incorporation/  paid up capital/
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
ML, ERTREARE/
HEAREHE B3t 2 MR A HE MiE FEEE
RIMRFIBEFRAF PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
(note i) (BzEi) CaE HK$1,100,000,000 VIR R
TR
1,100,000,00075 T
RA(BRMN)EEBRAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Investment holding
CaE RMB8&00,000,000 REER
AMBRAARE
800,000,0007C
BEMNRMNEHERERARAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
i RMB1,200,000,000 MEEE
AMBRAARE
1,200,000,0007T
HEMNRMEREZBRAR  PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
i RMB328,623,300 MEEE
AMBRAARE
328,623,8007C
BMNRMEBEEBRAR  PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
i RMB329,108,480 MEEE
AMBRAARE
329,108,4807C
BEMNRMEXEEBRAR  PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
(note i) (P =Ei) CaE HK$380,000,000 MEEE
TR
380,000,000/ 75
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52.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table only lists those subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Notes:—

(i) These companies are a wholly foreign owned enterprise in
the PRC.

(i) {RFIAJE is a sino-foreign joint venture company established
in the PRC for a renewal term of 50 years commencing 9th
July, 2003.

(i) fRFIE is a sino-foreign joint venture company established in
the PRC for a term of 20 years commencing 18th December,
2000.

(iv)  {RFELR is a sino-foreign joint venture company established
in the PRC for a term of 20 years commencing 29th
December, 2004.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that none of the Group’'s subsidiaries that has
non-controlling interests are material to the
consolidated financial statement as a whole and
therefore, the financial information in respect of
those subsidiaries that has non-controlling interests
are not presented.

SEGMENT AND ENTITY-WIDE
INFORMATION

Reportable segments

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into four operating divisions. These divisions are
the basis on which the Group reports its segment
information.

Principal activities are as follows:—

Property development
business

Property investment -
and management

Hotel operations

property development

property investment and
management

hotel and restaurant
business and its related
services

manufacturing and sales
of digital discs and
others

Other operations

51.

52.

31st December, 2015
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52. SEGMENT AND ENTITY-WIDE 52. DEfREEER(E)

INFORMATION (Continued)

Reportable segments (Continued)

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of interests
in associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include trade payable, accruals and deposits received
attributable to the individual segments and other
borrowings managed directly by the segments with
the exception of other corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment result
s "adjusted EBIT” i.e. adjusted earnings before
interest and taxes. To arrive at adjusted EBIT, the
Group's earnings are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such
as share of results of associates and joint ventures,
gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries, directors’
and auditor’s remuneration and other head office or
corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning adjusted EBIT, management is provided
with segment information concerning revenue
(including inter-segment sales), interest income
and expense from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation, impairment losses and additions to
non-current segment assets used by the segments in
their operations.

280 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED Annual Report 2015

BAtfh D B RE RS0 BEZERS BEin
5 ARESHRITRERABRTIIESE
EREERmED AL BERAE :

DHEEBREMARN  BREERRY
BE  ERBERRRSELE 2R -
BEMAEEEREMEEEERI - 77
BEERBENBIENBE SRR BT
%ﬁﬁ&ﬂﬂﬁdﬁ - MEME R B EAG 2 Eoftb
CRAEEREMCHIBEREEZER
BRSN

WAKRRXTI2ZE A MEDMELE ZHE
RAZEzASXMAREAREDE AL
S2ELSMEEEECINERBHEL 2
SEREL ©

AR®BED %B%ZEEZH/E%W.:H%Z%D@
MBRBEAEMBN(EHEREHAE
UNDR Jr L HEERR BB AT &R - AN&
B2 Z R — 25 530 IR B REER IR MBI 2
ZIEBELAZE  MoEBERRREE
tEZEE HEMBARER WS -
EEEHEEM e MBS EET
BUKA

RN - %ﬂif‘)ﬂ%?ﬂ EE@H&U\( Pj DH
BHE) FEWRARBEOHEREE IR
SERBEREBERX  WE B BES
BROMESEPAERZIERDOMEE
NEZDEPERL



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bf # R & M &F

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

52. SEGMENT AND ENTITY-WIDE 52. pRELEER(E)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Reportable segments (Continued) AHmEDEWE)
Information about these segments is presented B ESE EHEZHNWT - —
below:—
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 E-E-RE+=-A=+—HLEE
Property
Property  investment
development and Hotel Other
business management  operations  operations  Eliminations Total
0%
NEBRER  RERER EEEE HthgE i £t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr Tén Thn Thn TR Thn
Revenue WA
External revenue HAMIA 23,510,764 1,114,910 198,046 109,647 - 24933367
Inter-segment revenue* DA - 179,327 - - (179,327 -
Total revenue aA 23,510,764 1,294,231 198,046 109,647 (179.327) 24,933,367
Segment results PHEE (744,258) 970,603 (28,724) 23,020 - 220,641
Unallocated income AARMA 143,855
Unallocated expenses RAEREY (529,345)
Finance costs HERK (1,091,723)
Share of results of associates MEBERREE (12,835) - - - - (12,835)
Share of results of joint ventures MeEELERE 41,656 - - (8,091) - 33,565
Loss before taxation BEAEE (1,235,842)
Income tax expense FERR (1,536,449)
Loss for the year ENER (2772,291)
S Inter-segment revenue were charged with reference to prices 2 EBREIULA Th 22 ST 5N f [R) 48 AR 75 X 22 o P I

charged to external parties for similar services or products.

B2 (BAR T YR
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52. SEGMENT AND ENTITY-WIDE
INFORMATION (Continued)

52. 7B R BEEER ()

Reportable segments (Continued) AR EDF(E)
Assets and liabilities BEEREE
Property
Property  investment
development and Hotel Other
business  management operations operations Total
S
NERREY RERER AEgE HiteE Ghl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thxn Thn Thxn Thxn Thxn
Assets B
Segment assets PHEE 94,316,638 11,602,635 1,488,569 215075 107,622,917
Interests in associates REERAER 277,064 - - - 277,064
Interests in joint ventures REEREER 1,367,969 - - 1,775 1,369,744
Unallocated corporate assets APEREEE 20,308,808
Total assets EEME 129,578,533
Liabilities L
Segment liabilities NEafE 42,741,962 717,565 223193 58,184 43,740,904
Unallocated corporate liabilities FORGEER 56,411,681
Total liabilities BfELR 100,152,585
Other information Hfrgs
Capital expenditure BARY 40,069 16,782 21,956 2512 81,379
Depreciation e 50,346 24,521 60,298 4,608 139,779
Impairment loss on goodwill BEHEER 26,281 - - - 26,281
Impairment loss on properties under BRM ML ENERE
development and held for sale Bi 1,321,390 - - - 1,321,390
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  EfAEESS 1,763 1,115 8,133 145 11,156
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52. SEGMENT AND ENTITY-WIDE 52. PEREEHEER(E)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Reportable segments (Continued) 'ﬂ"ﬁﬁ (&)
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 H= E¢+ B=+—HL%FE
Property
Property ~ investment
development and Hotel Other
business  management operations operations  Eliminations Total
0z
WEEREEE  RERER i)y EfieE i At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TEL ThL TEL TEL ThL

Revenue WA
External revenue HANEA 27,250,353 938,440 196,934 123,010 - 28,508,737
Inter-segment revenue* AERRA - 161,112 - - (161,112) -
Total revenue @A 27,250,353 1,099,552 196,934 123,010 (161,112) 28,508,737
Segment results PHEE 2,906,069 1,220,273 (29,629) (823) - 4,095,890
Unallocated income AATMA 266,277
Unallocated expenses KPR (90,824)
(Gain on disposal of interests in HEMBARERZ

subsidiaries Iz 20,668 - - - - 20,668
Finance costs BEHKA (893,070)
Share of results of associates AMEBENTIEE (12,078) - - - - (12,078)
Share of results of joint ventures MEEELEEE (67,669) = = (8,458) = (76,127)
Profit before taxation B SR 3,310,736
Income tax expense fiEHRY (2,027,129)
Profit for the year EREF 1,283,607
@ Inter-segment revenue were charged with reference to prices & 2 EBREIULA TH 2 $THME (i [R1 48 AR 75 =X 22 5 A

charged to external parties for similar services or products. BR 2 B A% 1 Y ER ©
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52. SEGMENT AND ENTITY-WIDE

INFORMATION (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bi #§ R & M &F

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

52. 7B R BEEER ()

Reportable segments (Continued) A EDIWE
Assets and liabilities EENAE
Property
Property  investment
development and Hotel Other
business management  operations  operations Total
VS
NEERER  RAREE BEEE Hir=ig Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
Assets EE
Segment assets NHEE 96,883,381 10,689,643 1,590,020 235,072 109,398,116
Interests in associates AN 3 307,923 - - - 307,923
Interests in joint ventures XA WA Fed 531,978 = = 1,787 533,765
Unallocated corporate assets RARLEEE 19,163,081
Total assets BERE 129,402,885
Liabilities B
Segment liabilities AR 38,512,432 771,738 221,951 47,053 39,553,174
Unallocated corporate liabilities APEOEERE 55,750,496
Total liabilities BEEE 95,303,670
Other information Hih gt
Capital expenditure BARR 89,189 39,947 15,170 1,690 145,996
Depreciation & 50,336 24,412 61,997 5,640 142,385
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREER 176,592 - - - 176,592
Impairment loss on properties under ~ #EH LEEHE
development and held for sale MERBEER 458,705 - - - 458,705
Amortisation of prepaid lease BARETEEE
payments 2,163 1,158 8,385 150 11,856
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

31st December, 2015
R=-F—AF+=—A=+—H

52. SEGMENT AND ENTITY-WIDE 52. DER R ETEER(E)
INFORMATION (Continued)

Reportable segments (Continued) AHmEDEWE)
An analysis of the Group's revenue by geographical REBZWARBF T 25T 2580
location of its customers is presented below: T
Hong Kong PRC Total
B L At
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

“§-Ef TR C¥-EfF ZTRF . CR-BF . IR IF
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000
&L TAT TE AT &1 TEL

Revenue WA 7,295 6393 24926072 28502344 24933367 28508737
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount AR ERREBEE » HEBEERME
of specified non-current assets, segment assets and RERBIILEENEZ DT °

capital expenditure analysed by the geographical
area in which the assets are located.

Hong Kong PRC Total
B hE Gl
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

“%-1% @ ZE-1f ZT-WmE  CE-3F  ZT-QF
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#n T TERL T TEn TEn

Specified non-current assets BEERBEE 288,152 288939 16,398,526  13,739426 16,686,678 14,028,415

Segment assets NHEE 8,152,726 7005287 119,778,999 121495910 127,931,725 128,561,197

Capital expenditure EARY 1,073 3,128 80,306 142,868 81,379 145,996

Note: Specified non-current assets include all non-current assets Mz : HEFEMBEERREME M TARRERIRE
other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets. EINIEREEE -

The Group’s customer base is diversified and no REBEFPERZ T YERTP 2

customer with whom transactions have exceeded REBARNEEWYAZ10% °

10% of the Group's revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bi #§ R & M &F

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

53. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

53. HEME R F

On 21st January, 2014, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with a third party to
dispose of its 37% equity interest in B BR{RFIFE 72,
which is engaged in property development business.
This disposal was completed on 28th January, 2014.

On 13th June, 2014, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with a third party to
dispose of its 50% equity interest in /&L, which
is engaged in property development business. This
disposal was completed on 13th June, 2014.

Details of the net assets of the subsidiaries as at the
date of disposals and the effect of disposals on the
equity attributable to owners of the Company is

RZZE—NFE—A=+—H8 ~&EBEHE
=AM —HEEHE LS ERERRF
BIhE 2 37% MM - ZRARREMRER
¥% - HEBER-_ZT—NMFE—A=+\H
TERX °

R-ZF-—MERNA+=0 " AEEEFE=
HAV-REERHELEER LBEERZ
50% M - ZARMEMREERER - b
EERT—MOFXAT=ATK

FRNBATREE BB EEFERY
ERAFEA ARG RIENT LSS
BT -

summarised below:—

HK$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB MR 38
Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights W&+ (@ BREE [iEe 207,025
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE B 2,191
Properties under development R 908,365
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 R B At BR K 127
Bank balances, deposits and cash RITHER  TRMRE 147,073
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 R E AR (837,647)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries JERTR R B A R 508 (197,564)
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders FE AR AR AR R SRR (6,915)
222,693
Non-controlling interests FEIE R = (29,933)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 192,760
Net gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries &I E R Az 2 W FFE 20,668
Total consideration BARE 213,428
Net cash flow arising on disposal HEMEL 2 RS RENFE
Cash consideration HeRE 110,126
Bank balances and cash disposed of & 2 RITEFE A S (147,073)
(36,947)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

54. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During 2015, certain acquisitions were made by the
Group to expand its property development activities
as follow:—

In August, 2015, the Group acquired additional 50%
equity interest in BJEF[5 at the consideration of
RMB5,000,000 (approximately HK$5,952,000). &%
#F% was previously a joint venture of the Group.

In November, 2015, the Group acquired additional
37% equity interest in EBRRFIFEHE at the
consideration of RMB37,000,000 (approximately
HK$44,048,000). ERRRFIFEHE was previously a
joint venture of the Group.

Details of the net assets acquired in respect of the

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

54. UEEHIE A7)
M-B—hE AEEATREMEER
SEBELAETUENT : —

R-ZT—RENA AEEBIMNER
EEBGHS0% AR  REAARKE
5,000,000 7T (#8495,952,0005 7T ) ° & Z
BERAAEBNEERE -

RZZE—HF+— A8 AEEFEIINEE
HRFEMERNITRBRAERS  REA
A K # 37,000,000 7T ( 48 47 44,048,000 7
7o) © BARFNEHESG AASENE &1
% °

LR BWENEEFEFERANT - —

above transactions are summarised below:—

HK$'000
FERT
Net assets acquired:- WEBEESE: —
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB RERE 995
Deferred tax assets IEEFIAE B 9,695
Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights g+ RS RS 826,291
Properties under development BERERPYE 3,047,236
Other inventories HifFE 14
Trade and other receivables BWE 5 N AR 372,257
Bank balances, deposits and cash HRITETF - TR R 1,145,255
Trade and other payables JENTE 5 I E At AR X (4,060,359)
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders JFE eI AR AR SR FRIE (183,051)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE (1,027,381)
130,952
Non-controlling interests IR (32,142)
98,810
Less: Ve
Transferred from interests previously held and ~ E#EBARERHEAE
classified as joint ventures BEh¥ETER (16,724)
Gain on re-measurement of joint ventures to BT EEEERZWER
acquisition date fair value ANEEEz W= (32,086)
50,000
Total consideration satisfied by:— BREZFNARN : —
Cash He 50,000
Net cash flow arising on acquisitions WEEFREE £ 2 B & M BN F 58
Cash paid ENRE (50,000)
Bank balances and cash acquired FrishE 2 IRIT4EF IR S 1,145,255
1,095,255

T -REFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& Bi #§ R & M &F

31st December, 2015
R-F—AF+ZHA=1+—H

54. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

In November, 2015, a unanimous resolution was
passed by HEREFEE to revise the clause in
memorandum regarding appointment of board
of directors that three out of five directors of
E[5RM3% are appointed by the Group. As a
result of this revision, the Group has the power to
control the &SR and thus accounted for as
a subsidiary of the Group thereafter.

Details of the recognised amounts of identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at the date
of deemed acquisition is summarised below:—

54. INEEIB AR (&)

R-ZZF—AF+—A BEBRAIEKR -
BRRBE BB EREEEESN
G AEBEEEBRMNBROALES
TRE=ZRESF - ARNFHKER - &K
B ARG EHREE - R EBRT
HEAMARASTEENMBAR -

RBELBER A KB BNEERE
AER B AN DR PR BRI T - —

HK$°000
FET
Property, plant and equipment e N 2,345
Investment properties REY%E 39,048
Deferred tax assets RIETIR A = 4,079
Properties under development BRPYE 5,912,213
Properties held for sale HIEHEYE 1,360,183
Trade and other receivables U E 5 & H Ath BRFK 220,643
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEUL R 2 KT B A &) 5k IE 6,284
Taxation recoverable Al Ug Bl 7 18 116,384
Bank balances, deposits and cash RITHET TREERES 622,869
Trade and other payables eI E 5 R EAth 8RR (1,297,456)
Pre-sale deposits TEER® (2,328,868)
Taxation payable e R TE (5.448)
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders FE S IEFE S AR R sk IR (937,055)
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMEE (3,178,571)
Deferred tax liabilities LR BaE (53,030)
483,620
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR = (317,010)
166,610

Net cash flow arising on acquisition WEEFTE £ 2 R e M ENFRE
Bank balances and cash acquired FriiE 2 IR1T4EF KR E 622,869
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %x & B # 3R %% i &

54. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The receivables acquired (which principally
comprised trade and other receivables and amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries) with a fair value of
HK$226,927,000 at the date of acquisition had gross
contractual amounts of HK$226,927,000, which
were expected to be fully collected.

The non-controlling interest recognised at the
acquisition date was measured by reference to the
proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of net assets of the subsidiary and amounted to
HK$317,010,000.

Acquisition-related costs were immaterial and had
been excluded from the consideration transferred
and had been recognised as an expense in the
current year, within the administrative expenses line
item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

54. WBHIE A = ()

Fri e R (= ERREREWE 5 R H
1 BR TR FE U (R R [T /8 2 B3R ) RIS B
A B{EA226,927,0008 7T @ #BEKE
¥6/5226,927,000/8 7T + TAER GBS E] -

R B RRERNIFERER2EME A A
ERREEFESHLIFE 28
317,010,000/ 7T °

WK AL TNEX - BERBERES
EREZI LB R E R FERER R
X RTARRBBRERMITRFESIASR °
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEME

Year ended 31st December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—2——F " “"T-=Ff "T-NF C—B-If
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FET AT FEL TER
RESULTS £
Revenue WA 14,104,913 20,695,429 28,625,008 28,508,737 24,933,367
(Loss) profit before taxation Bt AT (E518 )& A 5,001,371 4,581,210 5,462,002 3,310,736 (1,235,842)
Income tax expense FrisRiFY (1,778,964)  (1,538,500)  (2,220,504)  (2,027,129)  (1,536,449)
(Loss) profit for the year EE(FE) ST 3,222,407 3,042,710 3,241,498 1,283,607  (2,772,291)
Attributable to: TFII LS -
Owners of the Company ANRHERA 2,777,119 2,629,820 2,715,626 929,448  (2,817,149)
Holders of perpetual capital X ABAKIEHEA
instruments - - - - 131,812
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR RS 445,288 412,890 525,872 354,159 (86,954)
(Loss) profit for the year EE(ER) S 3,222,407 3,042,710 3,241,498 1,283,607 (2,772,291)
At 31st December
R+=A=t+-H
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
2% 2§ C—T-=f TN CB-I1f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FHT THT FET TER
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BERE 95,507,232 107,735,863 110,822,652 129,402,885 129,578,533
Total liabilities BERE (68,335,480) (77,688,509) (78,220,508) (95,303,670) (100,152,585)
27,171,752 30,047,354 32,602,144 34,099,215 29,425,948
Equity attributable to Z/NGIE 2 DN
owners of the Company FElE R 24,670,940 27,072,586 29,617,047 29,762,327 25,560,015
Perpetual capital instruments ~ KAZARTE - - - 998,696 1,227,472
Non-controlling interests SEIERR RS 2,500,812 2,974,768 2,985,097 3,338,192 2,638,461
27,171,752 30,047,354 32,602,144 34,099,215 29,425,948
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Details of the Group’s properties held for investment

SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR
INVESTMENT PURPOSES

HEEREYREGE

At 31st December, 2015
R-F—aF+=-A=+—H

AEBR_ZT—RF+_A=+—HBZHBELR

purposes at 31st December, 2015 are as follows: BEMEZFHIBWT :
Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
bk ZHHR itk SEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES:
Room 2502A, 2502B, 2502C and Room 2508 of Long lease Commercial 100%
25th Floor Admiralty Centre Tower |
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
BBERE18% RBRH BE
BERLE #2518
2502A% + 2502B% * 2502CE 22508 %
3 apartments of Legend Garden Villas Held under a land use right Residential 100%
89 Capital Airport Road, Beijing for a term expiring on
The People’s Republic of China 31st December, 2042
HREARLFE HELMERES £
bR B A5 55895 “EM-F+-A=t+—H
BRIERANEARBER
Portions of Basements 1, Portions of 1st Floor, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%

NO02, NO3 & N04, 11th Floor, North Tower,
NO02, NO3 & N04, 12th Floor, North Tower,

Whole of 14th, 15th, 16th, 17th and 18th Floors,

South Tower, N04, N0O5 & N06, 16th floor of
North Tower, NO7, 19th Floor, North Tower,
S01, S02, S03, S04, S07, S08 & S09,

for a term expiring on
14th November, 2043

20th Floor, South Tower, N02, N03, N06, NO7, NO8, N09,
20th Floor, North Tower, Whole of 21st, 22nd, 23rd, 24th,
25th and 27th Floors, South Tower and North Tower,
Whole of 26th Floor, North Tower,

Shanghai Stock Exchange Building,

No. 528 Pudong Road South, Lujiazui,

Pudong, Shanghai, The People’s Republic of China

REARLME LEFRERE RAETIRAES
TBRBIK528% LEE SRR “EP=5+—A+mA

LEEEES S « 122 » JLEE11/8N02 * NO3&NO4 *
JLEE12/8N02 - NO3NO4 « BFE14 15 16~ 17K
18/B2 8 - JLFE16NO4 « NO5KENO6 - L EE19/ENOT «
EEE20/8S01 ~ S02 ~ S03 * 504+ S07 ~ S081%509 *

1L EE20/EN02 + NO3 ~ NO6 * NO7 ~ NO8 * NO9

B R ALRE21 ~ 22~ 23~ 24~ 2527
2ELILE26ERE

T -REFR
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES #E{EREMH*ME

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
bk ZHHR B# SEES
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYE - (&)
4 houses, 7 apartments, an office, a commercial centre, ~ Held under a land use right Commercial/ 51%
a club house, a kindergarten and an extension for a term expiring on Residential
and a stadium, Legend Garden Villas, 31st December, 2042
89 Capital Airport Road, Beijing,
The People’s Republic of China
HEE AR FELTHERER mE/REE
bR B A5 9RE RIEE B Z “EM-F+-A=1—H
AERIE  TELZEN  —EHAE - —EEERL
—fAgr  —HYERRIRR—EEEE
Office Tower of Poly Plaza, The land use right for the property ~ Commercial 75%
No. 14 Dongzhimen Nandajie, has been granted for a term of
Dong Cheng District, Beijing, 50 years commencing on
The People’s Republic of China 27th October, 2003
AR AR METIHERED HE H%
LR R BEZZZ=FTA-ttHE:
REMEAL4% RERTE
(IPNEE /AN
Commercial/Office buildings at No. 465 Luo Shi Lu, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Hong Shan District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, for a term expiring on
The People’s Republic of China 12th May, 2047
AR FETHERER [EES
LB RETAILE “ZN+ERATZH
BRBRA6STE 2 B/ MAKE
2 residential units and 6 commercial units Held under a land use right Commercial/ 100%
at Zhuo Dao Quan Bei Lu, for a term expiring on Residential
Hong Shan District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, 16th January, 2075
The People’s Republic of China
HEARINE RELHERES mE/EE
AR ET LR —Z+RE—-R+AH

LRI EE T B K6 X B
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES #E{EREMHEME

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
bk BB R KEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYF - (&)
Various commercial units, cultural centre, exhibition centre, ~ Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
theatre, museum, cinemas and car parking spaces, for a term expiring on
Shenzhen Poly Cultural Plaza, Hou Hai Bin Lu, 15th January, 2054
Nan Shan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province,
The People s Republic of China
EARLAE HELTHERES [GES
BRERIMELE “ThNE-ATEHR
B R AIRFCES
SEBEEL - YLES  BEPL
Bllc - BYER - ¥R REEL
Golf training centre together with its ancillary Held under a long lease Commercial 40%
accommodations and an adjoining piece of land, for a term expiring on
89 Capital Airport Road, Beijing, 30th September, 2026
The People s Republic of China
AR HAE NREBHEREZR [GES
IR EEPHISRB9% 2 ZEREAA=THE
BRANS  BYERERRELH
Various commercial and office units, Poly Mingmen, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
China Asean International Business District, for a term expiring on
Nanning, Guangxi Province, 22nd January, 2076
The People s Republic of China
EARLAE HELTHERER [GES
BREHED “EtR¥-AZtZRH
PR BB E R
RMSAPIZ B % MR A= E L
Various office units, Shanghai Poly Plaza, Held under a land use right Commercial 90%
No. 18 Dong Fang Lu, for a term expiring on
Pudong New District, Shanghai, 21st July, 2055
The People s Republic of China
FEE AR AAE HELHERES [GES
LERRAE “ERAEtA-T-A
RAHK18%

LERNBES S ERAEEN
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294 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED

SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES #E{EREMH*ME

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
12 ZHHR B# SEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYE : ()
Various commercial units at No. 8 Dong Wu Da Dao Te, Held under a land use right Commercial 55%
Dong Xi Hu District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, for a term expiring on
The People s Republic of China 23rd April, 2042
AR AFAE RETHERER [EES
MIEERET R AR “TM-FMA=+=H
RRABRRZ AR EEN
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Guiyang Poly Clouds Hill International, for a term expiring on
No. 148 Shi Bei Lu, Yun Yan District, 24th May, 2048
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People s Republic of China
HEARINE FELERER EES
EMNEEGT “EEUNFERAZTHA
EEEMILER148%;
B RHZ LB
ZlERREM
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 66.5%
Guiyang Poly Hot Spring Newisland, for a term expiring on
Wen Quan Lu, Ye Jia Zhuang, Wu Dang District, 30th August, 2046
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People ‘s Republic of China
HEE AR FELHERER [EES
BMNEEGT “EERENR=TH
BERERIRRE
EGRIERITN S ERREL
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 66.5%
Guiyang Poly International Plaza, for a term expiring on
Shi Nan Lu, Nan Ming District, 24th May, 2049
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People s Republic of China
AR AAE FETHERER [EES
EMEEET “ZMASREAZ A
AR TR
EGRTIERES
SRR EL
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES #E{EREMHEME

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
bk BB itk KEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REWE : (£)
Various commercial units, Guiyang Poly Spring Street, Held under a land use right Commercial 66.5%
Shui Dong Lu, Wudang District, for a term expiring on
Guiyang, Guizhou Province, 20th February, 2050
The People s Republic of China
AR AL RETHERER [5ES
EMEEED e Tl ey =
BERKRE
EGRMFANEZ HHFEN
Various commercial units, Guiyang Poly Park 2010, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Wudang District, Guiyang, Guizhou Province, for a term expiring on
The People s Republic of China 15th March, 2051
REARKAE BRIERES [GES
ENEEGMEER “TI-$=AtHA
EGRAAE20102 AR #EL
Various office and commercial units, Wuhan Poly Plaza, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
No. 790 Wuchang Minzhu Road, for a term expiring on
Wu Chang District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, 19th August, 2049
The People s Republic of China
FEE AR AAE HELHERES [EES
LA RETHERE “ZMAENRTAE
B & REH7905%
RERNBESS AR AE REEEN
A commercial unit, Kunming Sunny Lake & Splendid Life, Held under a land use right Commercial 80%
Da Tun Xin Qu, Lian Ran Zhen, for a term expiring on
An Ning County, Kunming, Yunnan Province, 21st May, 2078
The People s Republic of China
REARLHE HELTHERES [EES
EHEEATRES e S AR By =]
ERERE

RARMENES —EREEN
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES #E{EREMH*ME

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
12 ZHHR R#& SEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYE - (&)
A kindergarten, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Wuhan Poly Royal Palace, for a term expiring on
Dong Hu Kai Fa Qu Shang Ma Zhuang, 10th May, 2072
Wuhan,
Hubei Province,
The People s Republic of China
HEEARANE FELTERER LS
itA “T+-FRATA
EEM
RRER I
EOERAZEE
_Fﬁﬁijﬁﬁ
A kindergarten, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Wuhan Poly Blue Ocean District, for a term expiring on
Hong Shan District, 26th March, 2051
Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People s Republic of China
HEE ARAME FELERER LS
HitA “TR—F=R=+/A
BEM
Bl &
EOERNE SR
_Fﬁﬁijﬁﬁ
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Foshan Poly Cullinan Garden, for a term expiring on
Chan Cheng District, Foshan City, 20th December, 2049
Guangdong Province,
The People s Republic of China
HEARAME RELERER LS
ERE “EEAETZAZTH
HILTESE
BILRAREEE
ZIERREN
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES #E{EREMHEME

At 31st December, 2015

R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
bk RHHR R KEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYF - (&)
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Guangzhou Poly Zephyr City, for a term expiring on
Hua Du District, Guangzhou, 15th December, 2079
Guangdong Province,
The People s Republic of China
EARLAE HELTHERES [GES
BRE “RENFTZA+THRE
BMmEHRE
BMRMTER
SERREL
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion, for a term expiring on
Zhu Shun Lu, Li Cheng District, 29th July, 2080
Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People s Republic of China
HEE AR AL FETHERER [GES
IWRAEED “ENEFLAZTNE
[ AR 52 %
ERRNEEALE
SlEEEENL
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 80%
Jinan Poly Daming Lake, for a term expiring on
north of Jing Yi Lu, Li Xia District, 28th January, 2050
Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People s Republic of China
GEINEP: S BELUERER [GES
WA EE D “ERTE-A-1+N\R
BT E— AL
ERRNALH
EAETHE S
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Nanning Poly City, for a term expiring on
Wuyi Xi Lu, Jiangnan District, 29th October, 2050
Nanning, Guangxi Province,
The People s Republic of China
GEINEP: S HELHERES [GES
EREEED “ERBETAZTNA
TRERI—AR
BHERH
C2ETHE 3

—T-REFHR RIEXKEERAF

297



SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES #E{EREMH*ME

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
12 ZHHR R#& SEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYE - (&)
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 50%
Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake, for a term expiring on
Xi Nan Xin Qu, Huaxi District, 9th August, 2051
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People ‘s Republic of China
HEE AR FELHERES [EES
BMNEEGT —ZL-¥N\ANR
TR REE
EBRMEH
ZIRREL
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 35%
Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future, for a term expiring on
Zun Yi Da Dao, 13th May, 2051
Zunyi, Guizhou Province,
The People s Republic of China
AR HAE FELFERES [EES
EMEEET “ZR—§hA+=RH
EHRE
EHRMARRHT
E4EES=in
6 office units at Long Yuan Da Xia, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
No. 24 Zhong Bei Lu, for a term expiring on
Hong Shan District, 16th May, 2052
Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People s Republic of China
hEE AR AR FETHERER [EES
LB RETAILE “ZR-FRATRA
H3k 245
ERAEERLEEN
A commercial unit, Guangzhou Poly Golf Shire, Held under a land use right Commercial 51%
Ma Xi Cun, Hua Du District, for a term expiring on
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, 26th October, 2049
The People s Republic of China
HEEARAME BB THERES [GES
ERERM™ “EMAFTAZTRA
TEH(E SR A
EMRFFELED
HEEEE
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES #E{EREMHEME

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
bk RHHR R KEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYF - (&)
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Liuzhou Poly Merization World, for a term expiring on
No. 2 Bai Sha Lu, 30th December, 2049
Luizhou, Guangxi Province,
The People s Republic of China
EARLAE RAETIRAES [GES
BREWMNT “ZMAFTZA=1H
BDHR25%:
HINRMATLE
E4EEES=
12 office units, Kunming Poly Sky and Earth, Held under a land use right Commercial 90%
Yu Chi Lu, Xi Shan District, for a term expiring on
Kunming, Yunnan Province, 31st August, 2052
The People s Republic of China
AR HAE BELUERER [GES
EHERAD e AV =]
7l & A
EBRRA7ERH
12{ERAE B
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
HHERRYEHME

At 31st December, 2015
R-FE—pF+=—H=1+—H

Details of the Group’s properties held for development

REBR-_ZT—AFT+-_A=+—BzHH1EE

purposes at 31st December, 2015 are as follows: R FBEWAT
Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floorarea  Type of use interest
EEE,
bk TIHRR Bt EIEH BEEE Az SEES
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
REEZRYE -
A parcel of land in Chai Lin Tou Village, ~ Under March 2018 27,000 sg.m./  Commercial/ 51%
He Ping Xiang, Hong Shan District, construction 141,000 sg.m.  Residential
Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE j3ets —ZT-\F=A 27,000 5K/ @R/
WL RET 141,000¥ 77K  {EE
HEIL R R 48
SEMERR Z — Rt
A parcel of land in No. 90 Xiao Quan, Under December 2016 210,000 sq.m./  Residential 51%
Nan Quan Village, Ba Nan District, construction (Phase IV) 54,000 sg.m.
Chongging, Sichuan Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAANE st ZT-REtZA 210000F5K/ @FE
W) EEET (FmH) 54,0007 K
ErEEERN
NRI0E 2 — i
A parcel of land on No. 20 Yong Wu Lu, ~ Under December 2018 465,000 sq.m./  Residential 100%
Xing Ning District, construction 521,000 sg.m.
Nanning, Guangxi Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARHANE BiEh “S-N\FTZA 4650005k fEE
EREEER 521,000 4 K
SR K205 — i
A parcel of land on San Huan Lu, Under December 2019 567,000 sg.m./  Residential 58%
Song Bei District, planning 647,000 sg.m.
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARHAME ek s “T-NETZA 567000%5Kk/  fEE
EEIARBET 647,000 77 &

IR =RE 2 —
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 65 E%& R E£HE

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floorarea  Type of use interest
EHEE
bk TIMR Bt T AH BEmE A% SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
HEIEERYF - (B)
Four parcels of land in Under December 2017 334,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 80%
Luo Yang Zhen, construction 491,000 sq.m.  Residential
Boluo County, Huizhou,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARANE et “E—tFE+ZR  33400085%K/ HEE/
BRE 491,000F 5K  HEXE
EMTEES
EGE
M3+
A parcel of land on Under December 2018 390,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 66.5%
Shui Dong Lu, construction 609,000 sq.m.  Residential
Wu Dang District,
Guiyang,
Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARKAE 4t ZZ-\EtZH  390,000F5%/ EE/
Mg 609,000 /K  EE
B5m
GER
KRB
— Rt
Two parcels of land in Under November 2016 74,000 sg.m./  Commercial/ 100%
the Northwest of Yongwu Overpass, construction 383,000 sq.m.  Residential
Nanning, Guangxi Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARANE et ZT-"E+—R  74000F5k/ @EE/
BREEED 383000F 5K {EE
ERVRALAZ
[
A parcel of land on No. 2 Baisha Lu, Under December 2018 225,000 sq.m./  Office/ 100%
Liuzhou, Guangxi Province, construction 903,000 sq.m.  Commercial/
The People’s Republic of China Residential
REARLRE 3ot B \E+ZR 22500085k BAE/
EREYMT 903,000k  EE/fEE

RPH25RE2 — Lt
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT G5 E& R E£HE

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floorarea  Type of use interest
i EE
ok TIHRR BitEIEE BEEE A% SEES
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
REFERYE - (£)
A parcel of land in Wu Dang pasture, Under June 2019 1,118,000 sg.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Wu Dang District, Guiyang, construction 1,990,000 sq.m.  Residential
Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARANE et “T-NERA 1L,118000F Rk AR/
BME 1,990,000 5
EEmSER
BENFS R
A parcel of land in the South of Under December 2018 142,000 sq.m./  Residential 100%
Zhu Shun Lu, construction 418,000 sg.m.
Li Cheng District,
Jinan,
Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
HEARLNE fee “T-)N\E+=F  142,000F 5K/ HEE
IWRE 418,000 ;7K
R
ek
Afilz st
Five parcels of land in Dong Ao Zhen, Under September 2024 398,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Shenzhou Peninsula, Wanning City, construction 496,000 sq.m.  Residential
Hainan Province,
The People’s Republic of China
EARKAE @i SECMEAA 398000k AE/HE
BEE 496,000 75 %
BEMEMNESE
FREZ AR
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 65 E%& R E£HE

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floorarea  Type of use interest
EHEE
bick s TIMR AT I A BEmE A% SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
HEIEERYF - (B)
Various parcels of land at junction of Under August 2019 369,000 sq.m./  Residential 100%
Guo Xiang Bei Lu and construction 1,057,000 sg.m.
Yin Shan Lake Lu,
Suzhou Wuzhong Economic
Development Zone,
Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
HEARLNE 3ty “Z-AENA 369,000 5K/ fE
TEEEMND 1,057,000F /7%
NP BRER
BEILBEFILABIAZ
St
A parcel of land at Dong Fang Da Under September 2018 293,000 sq.m./  Residential 100%
Dao and Dushu Lake Da Dao, construction 375,000 sg.m.
Suzhou Wuzhong Economic
Development Zone,
Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
HEARLNE 4ty “Z-\FhA 293,000F75K/ fE
TEEEMND 375,000 7K
FHNRPEBRER
RANBRBENNEL
—ftit
Two parcels of land known as Under November 2016 92,000 sq.m./  Office/ 100%
C10-6, C14-2 located in Jiading construction (Phase Il) 180,000 sq.m.  Commercial/
New City, Jiading District, Shanghai, Residential
The People’s Republic of China
LEINSI R ZZAEt-A 92000%5%/ WAR/EES
EEERETEH (5=8) 180,000 5% fFE
MR AC10-6RC14-22 Ti
Five parcels of land in Jiading New City, ~ Under May 2017 151,000 sq.m./  Office/ 100%
Jiading District, Shanghai, construction (Phase V) 478,000 sq.m.  Commercial/
The People’s Republic of China Residential
REARLNE 3ot —Z—+57A 151000875k BRE/HE/
LERER (FRH) 478 000F 7K  EE
RERM 2 AR
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT G5 E& R E£HE

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floorarea  Type of use interest
EER
12 TIMR B TIAE EEEE Az SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
REEERY% - (8)
A parcel of land in Wu Kang Zhen, Under November 2020 164,000 sq.m./  Office/ 100%
Huzhou District, De Qing County, construction (Phase V) 498,000 sq.m.  Commercial/
Zhe Jiang Province, Residential
The People’s Republic of China
hEARLNE Bigh “E-TEF-R  164000F53%/ BAR/BE/
HLE (ERH) 498,000 K  fFE
EEZHMNT
BEE SRt
A parcel of land in Zhenhai Under March 2019 326,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
New City, Ning Bo City, construction (Phase IV) 981,000 sq.m.  Residential
The People’s Republic of China
R A RAME BiET —T-hF=AH 326,000 4K/ @E/AE
Ekm (55mEH) 981,000F 5K
B
— L
A parcel of land in Tie Ji Village, Under April 2021 390,000 sq.m./  Office/ 68%
Hong Shan District, Wuhan, construction (Phase VII) 1,736,000 sg.m.  Commercial/
The People’s Republic of China Residential
R A REME B —E-—%MnA 390,000F 4K/ HWAE/mE/
REMALE (5+H) 1,736,000¥ 5k =
SN 2 — L
A parcel of land in Ma Chi Lu, Under November 2019 52,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 55%
Dong Xi Hu District, Wuhan, construction 225,000 sg.m.  Residential
The People’s Republic of China
BEINS AT “E-NET-A  S200085%/ HEEAE
REMRAHE 225,000 75 %
Bl L
Four parcels of land Under June 2016 206,000 sg.m./  Residential 70%
in Tu Hu Cun Xia Liao, Danshui, construction (Phase 1) 804,000 sg.m.
Huiyang District, Huizhou,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
R A RAME AT —ET-"FAA 206,000 7K/ fF=E
ERABMNMm (B—H8) 804,000 J5 %

BERKK
AN TER 2
ML
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 65 E%& R E£HE

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floorarea  Type of use interest
EHEE
bick s TIMR AT I A BEEE AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
HEIEERYF - (B)
A parcel of land in west of Under December 2016 100,000 sg.m./  Residential 100%
Hu Shan Nan Lu, north of construction 289,000 sq.m.
Feng Huang Nan Lu, Lai Shan District,
Yantai, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
HE AR H#AE iEh “ERETZA 100000F5%/  fER
IWRAZEST 289,000 77 K
HILR IR AT R
B2
—fti
A parcel of land at east of Under June 2018 208,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Cheng Dong Lu and South of construction 572,000 sg.m.  Residential
Tan Jia Ling Dong Lu,
Li Zhou Jie Dao,
Yu Yao County,
Zhejiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARLNE giEh —Z-\F5A 208,000¥ 5K/ EE/MEE
] 572,000F 77K
Rk
HNerE
HERBEARRBR IR KA 2
—Hti
Four parcels of land Under October 2019 120,000 sg.m./  Commercial/ 85%
in Bei Da Huai Shu region, construction 505,000 sg.m.  Residential
Huaiyin District,
Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARLNE iEh “Z-NE+A 12000075k EE/HEE
IWRA BT 505,000 75 K

REEBLAREREZ

MRt
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT G5 E& R E£HE

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floorarea  Type of use interest
EEE,
ok TIHRR BitEIEE BEEE A% SEES
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
HEIEERYZ - (8)
A parcel of land at south of Under December 2016 112,000 sg.m./  Residential 80%
Hua Yuan Lu, construction (Phase II) 419,000 sg.m.
east of Hua Xian Chang Lu, Lixia District,
Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
BEINEP BiE ZE-RETZA 11200085k fFE
IR BT ($=H) 419,000F 77K
FE T R
TR
LR R A2
— B3
Two parcels of land at junction of Under October 2016 40,000 sgq.m./  Commercial/ 70%
Long Guan Dong Lu and Qing Long Lu,  construction 138,000 sg.m.  Residential
Long Hua Xin District,
Shenzhen,
The People’s Republic of China
REARANE 3t —Z-~%1+A 40000775k  BEE/HEE
Ry 138,000 ;7K
EENEEERRREEE
RAZ ML
Four parcels of land at east of Hua Xi Da Dao, Under December 2018 244,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 51%
Nan Ming District, construction 1,566,000 sg.m.  Residential
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
HEARLANE fee “Z-N\E+Zh  244000F5%K/ BE/EE
EMEEGT 1,566,000 F 7K
HAEEENERA
AL} i
A parcel of land at junction of Under October 2016 65,000 sq.m./  Residential 100%
Qun Li Da Di Wu Dao and San Huan, construction 185,000 sg.m.
Qun Li Xin Qu, Dao Li District,
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE Bt —Z-~%51A 65000F 7K/ H=E
BETERAET 185,000 75K

EERBIHERNAENE
HZIRQ R
Z—HL
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 65 E%& R E£HE

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floorarea  Type of use interest
EHEE
bick s TIMR AT I A BEmE A% SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
HEIEERYF - (B)
A parcel of land at west of Qing Nian Lu, ~ Under June 2016 71,000 sq.m./  Residential 55%
east of Gui Hua Lu, construction 147,000 sg.m.
Zhi Fu District,
Yantai, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
HE AR H#AE =St ZZ-RF5A 71,0085k #E
IWRAZEST 147,000 7%
CRBEEERA  REARR
2t
A parcel of land in Dong Jiao Village Under July 2022 109,000 sq.m./  Office/ 55%
Li Wan District, Guangzhou, construction 564,000 sq.m.  Commercial/
Guangdong Province, Residential
The People’s Republic of China
REARLRNE 3o B+ R 109,000k BRE/HE/
EREBMT 564,000F 7Kk  EE
HEBRYN
2Rt
A parcel of land at Jiu Tan Lu, Under March 2016 40,000 sg.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Hua Du District, Guangzhou, construction 155,000 sg.m.  Residential
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARKANE fedetis —T-R%=R 40,0007k BE/AEE
EREBMT 155,000 752K
TEHE B
2Rt
Two parcels of land at the east of Under October 2017 45,000 sq.m./  Office/ 100%
North Jianshe Road, construction 93,000 sq.m.  Commercial/
South of Sandong Avenue, Residentia
Huadu District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
FEARLRE s ZF—+5+A 45,000F 7K/ WAE/EHE/
EREBMT 93,000FA K %
TEHE
BRILEAR
ZRABAR
MR

—T-REFHR RIEXKEERAF
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT G5 E& R E£HE

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floorarea  Type of use interest
EEE,
bk FEIMRR BT I A BEEE A% SEES
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
HEIEERYZ - (8)
Various parcels of land at Under October 2017 147,000 sg.m./  Residential 100%
Rongjiang Lu, Langjiang Lu, construction (Phase 1) 648,000 sq.m.
Qunli No. 1 Da Dao and
Qunli No. 2 Da Dao,
Qunli Xin Qu, Daoli District,
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE i —T—+5+A 147,00F75%/ H=E
BRTERAAET (5—5) 648,000 ;K
BEEFNTE
RUTEK  BALER -
BNE—RBRENE-_RE
5B
A parcel of land at Under August 2018 53,000 sq.m./  Office/ 100%
Ming Xiu Lu East, construction 301,000 sq.m.  Commercial/
Xixiangtang District, Residential
Nanning, Guangxi Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE 3 —ZT-\FN\A 53,000 ¥k HMRE/BES
EREEED 301,000F5K  EE
R AS R
LT
A parcel of land in Under March 2017 130,000 sg.m./  Residential 100%
Eastern New City, construction (Phase 1) 343,000 sq.m.
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE et ZT—LF=H 130000 Ak fEE
WL EER T (5—H) 343,000 75K
REFHZLE
2T
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 65 E%& R E£HE

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floorarea  Type of use interest
1 EE/
bk TIMR Bt T AH BEmE A% KEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
FEIEERYF - (8)
A parcel of land in Under February 2019 172,000 sg.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Shunde Xin Cheng Lun Jiao, construction 661,000 sq.m.  Residential
Shunde District,
Foshan, Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARANE 3t —Z-NEZA 172,000 FA%/ @WE/AE
BRAHILT 661,000 7K
1B B T S A
2t
A parcel of land at Under December 2018 10,000 sgq.m./  Residential 100%
New Kowloon Inland Lot 6527, construction 70,000 sg.m.
Kai Tak Area 11, Site 3,
Kowloon, Hong Kong,
The People’s Republic of China
REARKANE et ZE-\EtZA 10000 ¥k fEE
BBNEREE E3R0E 70,000 75 K
HNERRE65275;
2Rt
Two parcels of land near Under December 2018 291,000 sg.m./  Residential 50%
Luo Ping reservoir, construction 862,000 sg.m.
Xi Nan Xin Qu, Huaxi District,
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People's Republic of China
HE AR HAE iE ZE-\F+=ZA  291,000F5%/ fE®
EMLERT 862,000 ;7%
TERRZENE
BEKEEZ
[k
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT G5 E& R E£HE

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floorarea  Type of use interest
hERE
bk FEIMRR BT I A BEEE Az KEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
HEIEERYZ - (8)
Various parcels of land at Under June 2022 1,326,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 35%
west of Zun Yi Da Dao, construction 5,171,000 sq.m.  Residential
Zunyi, Guizhou Province,
The People's Republic of China
PEARANE B ZTCCFRA 1326000 FhKS  HE/AE
EMEEET 5,171,000 F75k
EHEAETRARZ
SRt
A parcel of land at Under December 2018 45,000 sg.m./  Residential 70%
north of Xifang Road and construction 131,000 s@.m.
east to Huanshan Road,
Huancui District,
Weihai, Shandong Province,
The People's Republic of China
AR A BiER ZE-\FtZA 45000 FHKS  EE
\IRE RS 131,000 F7K
REEMAAEAL - FEERILE
2T
A parcel of land at Under April 2021 157,000 sq.m./  Office/ 100%
Bai Sha Zhou Da Dao, construction 793,000 sg.m.  Commercial/
Feng Huo Cun, Residential
Hong Shan District,
Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People's Republic of China
PEARLNE 3ot “E-—#@A 157000 Bk HAE/ERS
LA RET 793,000 ¥R fEE
HILEEANBEDNAE
Z— i
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 65 E%& R E£HE

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floorarea  Type of use interest
EHEE
bick s FEIRR AT I A BEEE AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:
(Continued)
HEIEERYF - (B)
A parcel of land at Under September 2019 120,000 sq.m./  Office/ 73%
Xiao Tun Cun, construction 652,000 sg.m. Commercial/
Wu Hua District, Residentia
Kunming, Yunnan Province
The People's Republic of China
REARLRE 3ot ZE-AFAA 120000 FAkS  HAR/BES
EHEEHAM 652,000 FAK  HEE
TER/NER
2Rt
A parcel of land at Under planning ~ May 2019 8,000 5q.m./  Residential 100%
Tuen Mun Town Lot 542, 21,000 sg.m.
Castle Peak Road - Castle Peak Bay,
Area 48, Tuen Mun,
New Territories, Hong Kong,
The People's Republic of China
REARKANE e “T-NFRA 8,000 ¥Hk/ fE
B e 21,000 FA K
BUAK-FIER
P R 54255
2Rt
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
HHEEHENRHME

At 31st December, 2015
R-FE—naF+-H=1+—H

Details of the Group's properties held for sale at 31st AEBN-_ZE—AF+-_A=+—RAZEHIEH

December, 2015 are as follows: EVEZFBOT
Location Gross floor area Type of use Group's interest
ith B EEEE ke SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE:
HEEHEYR

160 carparking spaces, N/A Residential 100%
Poly Garden,

Gao Xin District,

Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,

The People’s Republic of China

E AR HAE i =

&R BN T

=HE

RMFEIEZ

160E= &I

Various commercial units 522 sg.m. Commercial 100%
and carparking spaces,

Nanning Poly Upper House,

Zhu Jin Lu,

China Asean International Business District,

Nanning, Guangxi Province,

The People’s Republic of China

I AR B 522F7K  EE
BRERED

Bl BB R A B

KRR

MEER LR

ZEpEEEN RIFEA
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE % EEHENEME

Location
1t 26

Gross floor area
BEEEE

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Type of use Group's interest
A% SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HHEIEHEYX (&)

Various villas, residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Harbin Poly The Water's Fragrant Dike,
San Huan Lu, Song Bei District,

Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China
HEE AR AR

RETIERBAET

AL = R

RRBRTIKERE

ZERE  TEEN  BEEMREEN

Various carparking spaces,

Nanning Poly Century,

China Asean International Business District,
Nanning, Guangxi Province,

The People’s Republic of China
HEE AR AR

EfmEEED

B R B B R A R

AERFRITRZ

SR ERL

Various residential units and carparking spaces,
Poly Harbin Contemporary No. 9 Park Life,
Song Bei Zhen, Song Bei District,
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
HEE AR AR
BRIEREED
SIS
BRERFIABNGZ
SEEEEN RIFEA

81,346 sg.m.

81,346F /7K

N/A

382 sg.m.

382 5K

Commercial/ 58%
Residential

EEES:

Residential 100%

Residential 51%

—HEFHR RAIBXEEERLA
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE = EEHENEME

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group's interest
ith Bk BEEE Rz SEEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)

FEIEHEY R : ()

Various villas, residential units, 26,234 sq.m. Commercial/ 66.5%
commercial units and carparking spaces, Residential

Guiyang Poly Hot Spring Newisland,

Wen Quan Lu, Ye Jia Zhuang,

Wu Dang District, Guiyang,

Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARLAE 262345k EE/EE

EME

EEmEER

ERIDARE

S RMB R Z

ZERE  TEEN BEBUREEN

Various residential units and commercial units, 353 sg.m. Commercial/ 80%
Kunming Sunny Lake & Splendid Life, Residential

Da Tun Xin Qu, Lian Ran Zhen,

An Ning County, Kunming,

Yunnan Province,

The People’s Republic of China

i A REAE 353F 75K [EEYLeEe

ERAMEES

BNEAH AR

B RARFIZHIES

ZEETEMREEEL
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE % EEHENEME

Location
1t 26

Gross floor area
BEEEE

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Type of use Group's interest
A% SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HHEIEHEYX (&)

Various commercial units and
a business centre,

Wuhan Poly Royal Palace,
Dong Hu Kai Fa Qu Shang Ma Zhuang,
Wuhan,

Hubei Province,

The People’s Republic of China
3 A REAE

isisl=)

HEm

RRER LS
RERMEL 2

LA EEN K

— (B RS

Various villas, apartment units, commercial units and
carparking spaces,

Shanghai Poly Town,

Zong Fang Cun,

Ma Lu Zhen,

Jiading District,

Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

3 A REAE

i}

vl

A

EERAIREZ

ZERIE - AEBA - mEEMKEEM

7,797 sq.m.

7,797F 7K

80,716 sq.m.

80,716F /7K

Commercial 100%

GES

Commercial/ 100%

Residential

CESEE:
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE = EEHENEME

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group's interest
1t 2 BEEE J2 SEEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYR - (&)

Various commercial units and carparking spaces, 6,406 sg.m. Commercial 100%
Nanning Poly Landscape,

Jing Guan Da Dao,

West of Zhu Gan Dao,

Dong Gou Ling, Xingning District,

Nanning, Guangxi Province,

The People’s Republic of China

I AR ARE 6,406 F K  HE
ERERED

HEERBS

THER

REAE

FERFLIK R 2

LA EEN RFE

Various residential units, commercial units and 4,963 sg.m. Commercial/ 100%
carparking spaces, Residential
Guiyang Poly Clouds Hill International,

No. 148 Shi Bei Lu, Yun Yan District,

Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEEARLRE 4963F K EE/EE
EMEEBT

EERMILIE 1485

SR RMELEE 2

ZAFEEEM  mEEMK

FEf

Various commercial units, office units and 1,069 sg.m Commercial 90%
carparking spaces,

Shanghai Poly Plaza, No. 18 Dong Fang Lu,

Pudong New District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

AR HAE 1,069F 7K A%

EEREHRE

R 185 LB RFIES 2

ZAMEEN PAZTEMREEN
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE % EEHENEME

Location
1t 26

Gross floor area
BEEEE

Type of use
A%

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Group’s interest
SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HHEIEHEYX (&)

Various residential units and carparking spaces,
Shanghai Poly Lakeside Garden,

Ma Lu Zhen, Jiading District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

HEE AR AR

bEEEREREE

EBERAHARE K562

SEEEEN RIFE

Various residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces, Guangzhou City of Poly,
East of Hua Gang Da Dao, Xin Hua Zhen,
Hua Du District, Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

3 A REAE

BT iEEbE

MEELHMABR

BEMRFISH 2

ZEFEEN BEBEUREER

Various carparking spaces,
Shanghai Poly Villa Garden,
Yang Pu District, Shanghai,
The People’s Republic of China
HEE AR AR

EEGER
EBRFENRE
== fs

2,508 sq.m

2,508 7 K

568 sq.m

568 77 K

N/A

Commercial/
Residential

CEEEEs

Commercial/
Residential

EESESs

Residential

100%

51%

100%

—T-REFHR RIEXKEERAF
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE = EEHENEME

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Location
1th 26

Gross floor area
EEER

Type of use
J2

Group's interest
SEEDR

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HHEIEHEYF (&)

Various villas, residential units and carparking
spaces,

Shanghai Poly Royal Garden,
Tang On Lu, Tangzhen,

Pudong New District, Shanghai,
The People’s Republic of China
i AR EAE

EEREHRE

EEERE

BRI

ZARIE - FEEMREE

Various villas, residential units,
commercial units and carparking spaces,
Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur, Luo Yang Zhen,
Boluo, Huizhou, Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China

i AR EAE

BERE =N

BREGEGE

BINRRL K 2

ZARIE - EEEM -

[SEE vyl

Various villas, residential units and
carparking spaces,

Nanning Poly Crescendo,

No. 20 Yong Wu Lu,

Xing Ning District,

Nanning, Guangxi Province,
The People’s Republic of China
i AR EAE

EREEED

HE R

235205

MERAILEE 2

ZARIE - EFEBEMREBE

8,378 sq.m

8,378 F 1K

105,346 sg.m.

105,346F ;5K

78,539 sq.m.

78,539F 737K
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Residential

Commercial/
Residential

HEEE

Residential

50.1%

80%

100%



SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE % EEHENEME

Location
1t 26

Gross floor area
BEEEE

Type of use
A% SEER

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Group’s interest

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HHEIEHEYX (&)

Various villas, residential units and commercial
units, Guiyang Poly Spring Street,

Shui Dong Lu, Wu Dang District,

Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China
HhEE A REAE

BMEERT

SERKERE

BGRAMERARNEZ

ZERIE  FEBAREEEMN

Various residential units,
commercial units and carparking spaces,
Jinan Poly Garden, northwest of
Xing Cun Li Jiao, Pan Zhuang Cun,
Gang Gou Zhen, Li Cheng District,
Jinan, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
3 A REAE

WA BT

i =y £

& IR 3 2 Pk
ERRMNEREZ

ZEEEEMN

PEE BN REEN

Various residential units,
commercial units and carparking spaces,
Jinan Poly Daming Lake,

north of Jing Yi Lu, Li Xia District,
Jinan, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
HhEE A REAE

WA BT

E @& —FE AL

AR N2

ZEFEEN BEBEUREER

42,977 sg.m.

42,977 7K

12,717 sq.m.

12,717 75 %

8,753 sg.m.

8,753F ;5K

Commercial/ 66.5%
Residential

CEEEE:

Commercial/ 100%
Residential

CESEE:

Commercial/ 80%
Residential

CEEEEs
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE = EEHENEME

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Location
1th 26

Gross floor area
EEER

Type of use
J2

Group's interest
SEEDR

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYR - (&)

Various houses of

Chongging Poly Spring Villa,
No. 90 Xiao Quan,

Nan Quan Village,

Ba Nan District,

Chongging, Sichuan Province,
The People’s Republic of China
AR HAE

M) & EER

EmEE RN

/NRI0%E

BERMNRZ

SERE

Various carparking spaces,
Wuhan Poly Cultural Plaza,

No. 788 Wuchang Minzhu Road,
Wu Chang District, Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
i AREAE

Witd

REMRER

HERFHKT885
RERFIICES 2

ZEEER

Various residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Foshan Poly Prestige City,
Donghua Road,

Longjiang, Shunde District,
Foshan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
AR HAE

(Al

IEfE = 5E)T

RER

BRILRA L2

LEEERN - BN RIFEN

385 sg.m

385F A K

N/A

78,357 sq.m

78,357F 7 K
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Residential

Commercial

[GES

Commercial/
Residential

BE/EE

51%

100%

100%



SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE % EEHENEME

Location
1t 26

Gross floor area
BEEEE

Type of use

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Group’s interest
A% SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HHEIEHEYX (&)

Various commercial units

and carparking spaces,
Nanning Poly Sincere Garden,
Feng Lin Lu,

Nanning, Guangxi Province,
The People’s Republic of China
HEE AR AR

BREEED

HRARES

MERNMENGZ

Z (A BN RIFEA

Various residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces,

Liuzhou Poly Merization World,
No. 2 Bai Sha Lu,

Liuzhou, Guangxi Province,

The People’s Republic of China
3 A REAE

BEEEYN T

B2

MIMRFIAITLES 2

ZEFEEN HEBEUREER

Various residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Guiyang Poly International Center,

Shi Nan Lu, Nanming District, Guiyang,
Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China
HhEE A REAE

EMEEGT

AR MR

BEGRANERES 2

ZEFEEN BEBEUREER

1,671 sq.m.

1,671F A%

8,248 sq.m.

8,248 15K

7,978 sq.m.

7,978 7K

Commercial/ 100%
Residential

CEEEEs

Commercial/ 100%
Residential

CEEEEs

Commercial/ 66.5%

Residential

EEESs
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE = EEHENEME

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group's interest
1t 2 BEEE J2 SEEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HHEIEHEYF (&)

Various villas, residential units, and 62,909 sg.m. Commercial/ 100%
commercial units Residential
Guiyang Poly Park 2010,

Wudang District,

Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARLAE 62,909F K  @E/fFE
EME &G

S5EE

EGRFIDE20102

ZARIE  FEBMREEEM

Various residential units, commercial units and 8,147 sq.m. Commercial/ 51%
carparking spaces, Residential
Harbin The Tsinghua Summer Palace of Poly,

Zi Xing Jie, Gong Dian Lu,

Nangang District,

Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKANE 8147 Kk  EE/MEE
REILRBAED

TERBHEE

IBRBRFEERE 2

SEFTEN  HEEMRFEL

Various residential units and commercial units, 7,704 sq.m. Commercial/ 70%
Shenzhen Poly Up Town, Residential
at junction of Shen Hui Da Dao and Yi Cui Lu,

Ai Lian Gang Bei, Longgang District,

Shenzhen,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARLAE 7704F K EEEE
el

REmRERME

RBABRIGEERA

RIMRF EHAER 2

ZAFEEMREEEM
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE % EEHENEME

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group’s interest
1 26 EEEE AR SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HHEIEHEYX (&)

Various residential units, commercial units 12,583 sq.m Commercial/ 100%
and carparking spaces, Residential

Nanning Poly City,

Wuyi Xi Lu,

Jiangnan District,

Nanning, Guangxi Province,

The People’s Republic of China

3 A REAE 12,583 F 75K CEV4E=S
EfmEEED

LR A — P

FMERFS 2

ZEFE - HEENRIEE

Various residential units and commercial units, 67,180 sq.m Commercial/ 100%
Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion, Residential
Zhu Shun Lu,

Li Cheng District,

Jinan, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

REARLFE 67,180F Kk  BE/fEE
I ERE AR ™

IR [ A 5 B

ERRMNEEARZ

ZEFEREESM

Various villas, residential units, 40,098 sq.m Commercial/ 100%
commercial units and carparking spaces, Residential

Weihai Poly Triumph Mansion,

north of Wa Shan, Qi Jia Zhuang,

Huan Cui District,

Weihai, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

A RAFE 40,098k BE/|EE
WREEET

REBEZFHELL
BB RMEIE DR
ZEAE - ETEBA - BEEBLREEL
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324 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED

SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE = EEHENEME

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Location
1th 26

Gross floor area
EEER

Type of use
J2

Group's interest
SEEDR

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HHEIEHEYF (&)

Various residential units,

Yantai Poly Champs Elysees Mansion,
west of Hu Shan Nan Lu,

north of Feng Huang Nan Lu,

Lai Shan District,

Yantai, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
i AR EAE

LREEAT

LR BRI B BE DA 7 R B LA B BA 3L
BaRMNEHENE L

% (AF=EEN

Various residential units and carparking spaces,
Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion,

junction of Guo Xiang Bei Lu and

Yin Shan Lake Lu,

Suzhou Wuzhong Economic Development Zone,
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,

The People’s Republic of China

i A REAE

TEAFIMNT

BMRPEEREER

BEILERFLABERR

EMNRME AR 2

ZEAFEEMN RFE

Various villas, residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces,

Shanghai Poly Elegant Mansion,
Jiading New City,

Jiading District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

i AR EAE

s}

5 E R BRI

EBERAMRIEE 2

ZARIE - EEBM - HEBLMREEL

15,370 5q.m

15,370 7K

20,128 sq.m.

20,128 7K

23,654 sq.m

23,654F 7 K

Annual Report 2015

Residential

Residential

Commercial/
Residential

HE/EE

100%

100%

100%



SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE % EEHENEME

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group’s interest
1 26 EEEE AR SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HHEIEHEYX (&)

Various residential units and 52,860 sg.m Commercial/ 100%
commercial units, Residential
Shanghai Poly Grace Garden,
Nan Chang Zhen,
Jiading District, Shanghai,
The People’s Republic of China
REARLFE 52,860F K AE/|EE
b
el
EBRFAFTESE 2
ZEFEEM R EEEMN

Various residential units, commercial units and 20,494 sq.m Commercial/ 100%
carparking spaces, Residential

Deging Poly Origin

De Qing County

Zhe lJiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China

i AR HME 20,494F % BE/|fEE
ipaE)
=5%

BERNERLE
ZEEEEMN  BEEMREET

Various residential units and 38,912 sq.m Commercial/ 100%
commercial units, Residential
Wuhan Poly Blue Ocean District
Hong Shan District,
Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARIME 38912F 5k HE/MEE
isisl=)
HEm LR
RERMEEGE 2
ZAFEEM REESEM

—HEFHR RMBXEEERLIA 325



326 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED

SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE = EEHENEME

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group's interest
ith Bk BEEE Rz SEEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)

FEIEHEY R : ()

Various residential units, commercial units, 21,640 sq.m Commercial/ 100%
office units and carparking spaces, Residential

Foshan Poly Cullinan Garden

Chan Cheng District, Foshan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARLAE 21,6405k EE/EE

BBl TR =

BILRMREER 2

ZEFEEN  HEBMN BREEMREEN

Various villas, residential units, commercial units and 44,289 sq.m Commercial/ 51%
carparking spaces, Residential

Guangzhou Poly Golf Shire

Hua Du District, Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEEARLRE 44,289k HE/MEE

BN miEER

BMNEFISRED 2

ZERE  TEEN BEBUREEN

Various residential units, commercial units and 2,459 sq.m Commercial/ 100%
carparking spaces, Residential

Guangzhou Poly Zephyr City,

Hua Du District, Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARLAE 2459F K EEEE

BMmIEHE
BMRATER 2
ZETEEML AREMREEM

Annual Report 2015



SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE % EEHENEME

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group’s interest
1 26 EEEE AR SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HHEIEHEYX (&)

Various residential units, commercial units, 34,450 sq.m Commercial/ 100%
office units and carparking spaces, Residential

Kunming Poly Lakeside Mansion,

An Ning County, Kunming,

Yunnan Province,

The People’s Republic of China

thiE A R HFIE 34450 K HEEE
EFE
ERMmLES

ERENENESR 2
ZEETEML  BEEL  PRAZTEMRIFEM

Various residential units, commercial units and 105,231 sq.m Commercial/ 100%
carparking spaces, Residential

Ningbo Poly City,

Ningbo,

The People’s Republic of China

REARLFE 105,231 F K &% /EE

)

R RFH 2

ZEFEEN BEBEUREER

Various villas and residential units, 41,503 sq.m Residential 100%
Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa,

Dong Fang Da Dao and

Dushu Lake Da Dao,

Suzhou Wuzhong Economic Development Zone,

Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,

The People’s Republic of China

HiEE AR HAME 4,503FHFK EE
TLERE BN T

BN R EEREE

RAOANBRBEENKE

BENRABERR 2

ZERE R EEEM
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328 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED

SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE = EEHENEME

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Location
1th 26

Gross floor area
EEER

Type of use
J2

Group's interest
SEEDR

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HHEIEHEYF (&)

Various residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces,

Jinan Poly Center,

Bei Da Huai Shu region,
Huaiyin District,

Jinan, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
i AR EAE

WRE BT
REEILASRE A R

ERRF L

ZEFE - HEEMRIEEN

Various residential units and carparking spaces,
Ningbo Poly Jordan International,
east of Cheng Dong Lu and
south of Tan Jia Ling Dong Lu,

Li Zhou Jie Dao,

Yuyao, Zhejiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China
A RHME

mIaRKkm

B

SR B A SR T iB 5 U SR B DA RS
ERRMNBEEFIER
SEFEEN RIFER

Various residential units,
Hainan Poly Peninsula No. 1,
Dong Ao Zhen, Shenzhou Peninsula,
Wanning, Hainan Province,
The People’s Republic of China
i AR EAE

BEEEED

BT

B

BERMFS 15

ZAFEEMA

37,615 sgq.m

37,615F 5K

153,344 sq.m

153,344 J5 %

63,049 sq.m

63,049F 737K

Annual Report 2015

Commercial/
Residential

HE/EE

Residential

Residential

85%

100%

100%



SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE % EEHENEME

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group’s interest
1 26 EEEE AR SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HHEIEHEYX (&)

Various residential units, commercial units, 19,286 50.m Commercial/ 100%
office units and carparking spaces, Residential

Shanghai Poly Star Island

Jiading New City,

Jiading District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

REARIME 19286F Ak  mE/EE

LERETEREENN

EBRANE G

ZEFEEN  BESEN - WAZEMREBEN

Various commercial units and carparking spaces, 34,605 sq.m Commercial 100%
Shanghai Poly Felicity,

Chang Jiang Xi Lu,

Song Nan Zhen

Bao Shan District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

A AR ARE 34,605F 7K EE
fwisa={1l] =)

AR SRR P B%

EBRFITI

SR BN RIFEA

Various residential units, commercial units, 70,755 sq.m Commercial/ 90%
office units and carparking spaces, Residential
Kunming Poly Sky and Earth,

Yu Chi Lu community,

Zong Shu Ying sub-district office,

Xishan District,

Kunming, Yunnan Province,

The People’s Republic of China

R ARLFE 70,755 5K EE/EE
AR

Al

REEHERER

bl o

EBRFSE R

ZEEEEN BESEN - BRAZEMREBEN
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE = EEHENEME

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group's interest
1t 2 BEEE J2 SEEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE - (&)

Various residential units, 50,422 sq.m. Commercial/ 70%
commercial units and carparking spaces, Residential

Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town,

Tu Hu Cun Xia Liao,

Danshui, Huiyang District,

Huizhou, Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARENE 50,422F 75k EE/EE
BREAZ/MM

HERRAK

TR TR

BMERFRE S
ZEETEN - BEREMMEEN

Various residential units 21,896 sg.m. Commercial/ 51%
and commercial units, Residential

Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay,

Hua Xi Da Dao,

Nanming District,

Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARLNE 21896F 7K EEEE
SME &R

MAREEAE

EGRTIEEE

ZETEREFEEN

Various villas, residential units 4,133 sq.m.  Commercial/ 50%
and commercial units, Residential
Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake,

Xi Nan Xin Qu, Huaxi District,

Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARAME 4133k EEME
EMEEBT

TERREE R

B RAZH

ZERIE - FERFEEN
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE % EEHENEME

Location
1t 26

Gross floor area
BEEEE

Type of use
A%

At 31st December, 2015
R-ZE—AFF+=-HA=1—H

Group’s interest
SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)

REEHEYE - (8)

Various villas, residential units,
commercial units, office units and
carparking spaces,

Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future,
Zun Yi Da Dao,

Zunyi, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China
HEE AR HME

BMEEEm

JCENE]

EE R T

LERIE - (EEEA - FFEBA -
WMAZENREBEMN

Various residential units

and commercial units,

Harbin Poly Up Town,

Qun Li Xi Qu, Daoli District,
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
HEE AR A
REIERBAT
EEEFHNTR

MR RERA L
SATEREFEEN

Various residential units
and commercial units,
Jinan Poly Elegant Garden,
Lixia District,

Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
HEE AR LA

IR & &R T

T

ERRFERE

AT EREEEN

123,802 sq.m.

123,802°F 77K

47,863 sq.m.

47,863 5K

9,777 sq.m.

9,777 ;%

Commercial/
Residential

mE/fEE

Commercial/
Residential

EEISES=

Commercial/
Residential

CEYEE:

“TRFFR RUBXEEMAERAF 331

35%

100%

80%



SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE = EEHENEME

At 31st December, 2015
REF—aF+=A=+—H

Location
1th 26

Gross floor area
EEER

Type of use
J2

Group's interest
KEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE - (&)

Various residential units

and carparking spaces,
Yantai Poly Blossom Garden,
Zhi Fu District,

Yantai, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
AR HME
IWEREEST

CRE

1 SR T ETRAD

ST EEN RIFER

Various residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Wuhan Poly City

Hong Shan District,

Wuhan, Hubei Province,

The People’s Republic of China
AR HAME

BILERET

AL

EUZRA R

ZEFEEN  FHEBMREEA

Various residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Poly Aegean Sea,

Northwest of Yongwu Overpass,
Nanning, Guangxi Province,

The People’s Republic of China
HEE A RHME

BREEED

ERVRAELA

RAIEEE

SEFTEN - EmEEMRFEL

15,731 sq.m.

15,731 F K

8,574 sq.m.

8,574F 75K

22,180 sg.m.

22,180 73k
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Residential

Commercial/
Residential

BE/EE

Commercial/
Residential

CEYA S

55%

68%

100%



@ This annual report is printed on environmental friendly paper 754 ¥ bAIR IR 4K 5K EN &Y



Poly Property Group Co., Limited
RHUEXZEBRFR A A

Room 2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower 1,
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

FWHBM 18 5%
WERLE—M 2503 %
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